
 

 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
July 6, 2015 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 
 

4. Minutes of Meetings – June 1, 10 and 15, 2015 
 

5. Public Hearing 
 

 A. Consider the request for a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License for 
  the Kwik Trip store under construction at 10451 72nd Avenue. 
 

6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will  be received 

from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 

 

7. Administrator’s Report 
 
8. New Business 

 
A. Consider a claim for refund of taxes by Sanmina Corporation due to a 

decision issued by the State of Wisconsin Tax Appeals Commission. 
 
B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Conceptual Plan 

to construct an 11,021 square foot veterinary office on the vacant property 
generally located on the north side of Prairie Ridge Boulevard west of 88th 

Avenue within the Prairie Ridge development. 
 
C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Certified Survey 

Map to subdivide the property generally located on the north side of Prairie 
Ridge Boulevard west of 88th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge development. 

 
D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #15-21 

for several amendments to Section 420 related to zoning permits required 

for driveways, time limits for permits, certificates of compliance and the 
issuance, duration, and approval or denial of sign permits. 

 



Village Board Meeting 
July 6, 2015 

 

E. Consider award of contract for the 2015 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation. 
 

F. Consider Resolution #15-22 to dispose of surplus vehicles. 
 

G. Consider a draw on the Letter of Credit for the Vintage Parc development 
located at the southeast corner of STH 165 and Old Green Bay Road. 

 

H. Consider a draw on the Letter of Credit for the Bain Station Crossing 
development located at the northeast corner of Bain Station Road and 88th 

Avenue. 
 
I. Consider Trick or Treat Date and Time – Saturday, October 31, 2015  

 3- 6 p.m.  
 

9. Village Board Comments 
 
10. Consider entering into Executive Session pursuant to Section 19.85(1)(e) to 

 deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investing of public 
 funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 

 bargaining reasons require a closed session. 
 

11. Return to Open Session and Adjournment 
 

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

June 1, 2015 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, June 1, 2015.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, 

Steve Kumorkiewicz, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Tom Shircel, Assistant Village 

Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; 

Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue Chief; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public 

Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and Recreation Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent and 

Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Two citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 A. Consider 2015-2016 Liquor License Renewal Applications. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Mr. President, first I would request that the application for the BP station at 10477 120th Avenue 

be tabled.  The reason for that is the conditional use permit that was to be on the Plan 

Commission agenda last week has been tabled or postponed to next week.  So I think a 

postponement of that application to the June 15th Board meeting is in order. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

So that would be right away tabled. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

It will be postponed to the next meeting. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I mean we will not have a public hearing on that one then. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

At the next meeting, yes. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

2 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

A motion to table is in order. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

So moved. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve for tabling of the BP application.   

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

And that public hearing for that application will be June 15th. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any comment or question?  We have a motion and a second.   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO POSTPONE THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE LIQUOR 

LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION OF BP AM/PM TO JUNE 15, 2015; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

So the rest of the applications we’re going to talk about tonight are renewal applications, and 

these are for the licenses that will run from July 1st of this year to June 30th of next year.  And 

what I will do is I will read the trade name and the addresses since those are more familiar than 

talking about or listing the agents and the corporations. 

 

So we’ll start with the Class A fermented malt beverage licenses.  We have Pantry 41 Mobil at 

7511 118th Avenue; PDQ store #352 at 8800 75th Street; Stateline Quik Shop at 12720 Sheridan 

Road; we have the Truesdell Mini-Mart at 8531 75th Street; and we have the Walgreens Store at 

7520 118th Avenue.  Those Class A fermented malt beverages they can sell them in original 

packages for off premise consumption only.  Those are your beer and your fermented malt wine 

coolers only. 

 

Then we go to our Class A fermented malt beverage and Class A intoxicating.  We have Dream 

Liquor, the liquor store at 4417 75th Street; and we have the Target Store at 9777 76th Street.  

And in addition to the fermented it would be the Class A intoxicating for off premise 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

3 

consumption only in original packages.  Then we have our Class C wine and Class B fermented 

malt beverage.  And we have one license, and that is for the Honada Sushi & Hibachi at 8501 

75th Street, Suite G.   

 

Then we go to the combination liquor licenses, combination for on premise or off premise 

consumption for the fermented malt beverage or on premise consumption for intoxicating liquor.  

Those are combination licenses, the first one being Big Oaks Golf Club, 6117 123rd Place, the 

Chancery at 11900 108th Street; we have Cheddar’s Casual Cafe at 10366 77th Street; and Chili’s 

at 6903 75th Street; Earl’s Club at 7529 88th Avenue; and Famous Dave’s at 9900 77th Street; 

Gordy’s at 3812 Springbrook Road; Halter Wildlife at 9626 113th Street; the Olive Garden at 

10110 77th Street; Ray Radigan’s at 11712 Sheridan Road.  Even though they have announced 

that they have closed, they have applied for a license, so that license is in effect to the end of this 

year.  And if they don’t follow through with any of the conditions the license is done, and then we 

wouldn’t issue a new one.  They have not pulled their application at this point.  Ruffolo’s Pizza at 

11820 Sheridan Road; Starlite Club at 8936 24th Avenue; we have Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub 

at 10936 Sheridan Road; the Village Supper Club at 10909 Sheridan Road; and the Wooden 

Nickel at 11606 Sheridan Road.   

 

Currently there are no outstanding building code violations.  I’ve attached a couple documents.  

The Community Development Department and the Fire and Rescue Department have some 

dealings that need to be taken care of before the licenses would be issued.  They can be granted 

tonight.  Obviously the condition of approval would be on paying the license and publication 

fees, delinquent real estate or property taxes or personal property taxes, delinquent invoices, 

utilities, any outstanding forfeitures.  If you recall we just added that into the ordinance two 

weeks ago or two weeks before that, I’m not quite sure.  And unpaid Fire Department permit fees.  

The licenses if granted when issued will be issued in the name of the agent or an individual, the 

agent of the corporation or individual and for the premise description as listed under each 

establishment. 

 

At this point today we started the investigation or asking the Finance Department and the Courts 

to determine what outstanding delinquencies there are.  It doesn’t pay to do them ahead of time 

because obviously any interest is tacked on after May 31st.  So once I get all of that information, 

if approved, letters will be mailed to the establishments or the corporation in such case, and they 

will be instructed as to what’s outstanding, what they need to pay, what needs to happen, if 

there’s any inspections, what needs to be done before the license is issued if granted.  So this has 

been the procedure for many years issuing the licenses, and then they pick up the licenses at the 

last week in June before July 1st.  They do not go out of the office unless everything is taken care 

of.  So with that it is a public hearing. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

With that I will open it for public hearing.  Did we have any signups? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We did not. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

4 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Once again this is a public hearing.  I’ll open it up to public comment or question.  Anyone 

wishing to speak?  Anyone wishing to speak?  Anyone wishing to speak?  Hearing none I’ll close 

the public hearing and open it up to Board comment or questions. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

I have one.  On the reports that were submitted, I know, Jean, you had one of them as well, we 

tabled the BP one.  But I think Target had an outstanding issue.  And then there’s also a small 

amount of them with inspections or outstanding violations or fees.  Are those published anywhere 

what the fees are, or is that not a public matter? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

The outstanding fees that we have for BP Amoco, and we do have that information for BP 

Amoco, and that was one of the reasons why they were being tabled.  And Target just had some 

landscaping issues which they were to get all resolved which they did this past week. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Okay, because I know today was the expected date for that one.  So that one was cleaned up? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Yes, that’s correct. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

And then the other portion about the outstanding fees, the time line for that is still expected that 

they’re not issued their permits until it’s all resolved. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

All the fees are paid. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Oh, they’re all up to date? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

No, until they’re paid. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

5 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Oh, sorry. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

They have to be paid before the license can be issued. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

So they didn’t get in yet.  Okay, thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Jane, in the past there were some problems in the neighborhood by the Starlite Club.  That hasn’t 

been an issue lately? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

It hasn’t been an issue from my office that I’ve heard of. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It has not been an issue from our office.  In fact, their site was extremely clean the first time, and I 

only had to go back to their site once.  It was very nice. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

I did talk to Chief Smetana and asked him if there were any problems with any of our 

establishments, and he indicated there was not at this point. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

John, I’d move approval of the license subject to compliance with the code violations -- 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

-- and the unpaid fees if any. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

6 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Kris.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING LICENSES SUBJECT TO THE 

PAYMENT OF LICENSE AND PUBLICATION FEES; PERMIT FEES; ANY DELINQUENCIES 

AND ALL VIOLATIONS CORRECTED: SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 
CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages 
in Original Packages for Off-Premise Consumption) 

 
NAME & ADDRESS                        TRADE NAME 
 
R & D V, Inc.   .   BP/AM PM 
Syed Hussain – Agent    10477 120th Avenue 
10477 120th Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 10477 120th Avenue 
 
Roadside Petroleum, Inc.    Pantry 41 Mobil 
Surendra Singh, Agent     7511 - 118th Avenue 
7511 118th Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7511 118th Avenue 
 
PDQ Food Stores, Inc.                 PDQ Store #352     
Kathy Loberger - Agent      8800 - 75th Street  
P.O. Box 620997     Kenosha, WI  53142 
Middleton, WI 53562     
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8800 75th Street 
 
Graham Enterprise, Inc.          Stateline Quik Shop 
Anthony Buches - Agent            12720 Sheridan Road 
12720 Sheridan Road                   Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 12720 Sheridan Road 
 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

7 

Truesdell Mini-Mart, Inc.             Truesdell Mini-Mart 
Steve Schuler - Agent                   8531 75th Street 
7831 45th Avenue                      Kenosha WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8531 75th Street 
 
Walgreens Co.     Walgreens #07935 
Liquor Renewals – License Adm.   7520 118th Avenue 
Patricia Briggs – Agent    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
P.O. Box 901     
Deerfield, IL  60015 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7520 118th Avenue 

 
CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

AND “CLASS A” INTOXICATING 
(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages and Intoxicating Liquor 

in Original Packages for Off-Premise Consumption) 
 
NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
H & N Enterprises, LLC    Dream Liquor 
Harjeet Singh - Agent     4417 75th Street 
1916 W. Timber Ridge Lane    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Oak Creek, WI  53154 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 4417 75th Street 
 
Target Corporation     Target Store T2251 
Daniel Olsen – Agent     9777 76th Street 
1000 Nicollet Mall TPN-0910    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Minneapolis, MN  55403      
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 9777 76th Street 
 

CLASS “C” WINE AND CLASS “B” FERMENTED 
MALT BEVERAGE 

(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages to Consumers for On-Premise  
or Off-Premise Consumption and Wine by the glass  
or original container for On-Premise Consumption) 

 
 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

8 

NAME & ADDRESS     TRADE NAME 
 
Honada Wisconsin Corp.    Honada Sushi & Hibachi 
Xiao Bin Chen, Agent     8501 75th Street, Suite G 
8501 75th Street, Suite G    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8501 75th Street, Suite G 

 
 

CLASS "B" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 
& “CLASS B" REGULAR INTOXICATING LIQUOR 

(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages and Wine for 
On-Premise or in original containers for Off-Premise Consumption - 

Sell Intoxicating Liquor to Consumers by the 
glass for On-Premise Consumption) 

 
NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
Jose N. Reyes - Agent              Big Oaks Golf Club 
Timber Ridge Ventures LLC     6117 123rd Place 
6117 123rd Place     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158                 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: One story clubhouse and golf course located at 6117 123rd Place 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Restaurant of Pleasant Prairie, Inc.   Chancery Pub & Restaurant 
George Flees, Agent     11900 - 108th Street 
7613 W. State Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Wauwatosa, WI 53213 
 
Premise Description: Restaurant at 11900 108th Street and hotel rooms and banquet facilities 
only located at 11800 108th Street 
 
Cheddar’s Casual Café, Inc.    Cheddar’s Casual Café, Inc. 
Travis Preston - Agent    10366 77th Street 
2250 W. John Carpenter Frwy. #560   Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Irving, TX  75063-2764 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 10366 77th Street 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

9 

ERJ Dining III, LLC     Chili’s Grill & Bar 
Paul Thompson – Agent    6903 – 75th Street  
1903 Stanley Gault Parkway    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Louisville, KY  40223      
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 6903 75th Street 
 
Earl's Club, Inc.                      Earl's Club 
John C. Willkomm - Agent              7529 88th Avenue 
3490 169th Avenue                      Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Kenosha, WI  53144 
 
Premise Description: One story building, basement, deck and horseshoe/volleyball/picnic area 
contiguous to building only located at 7529 88th Avenue 
 
*Team R’ n B Wisconsin LLC    Famous Dave’s 
Peter Benedict - Agent    9900 77th Street 
6600 N. Ballard Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Appleton, WI  54913 
 
Premise Description: One story building including outdoor covered fenced-in patio only located 
at 9900 77th Street 
 *Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Prairie Pub LLC              Gordy’s Prairie Pub  
Linda DeBartolo - Agent    3812 Springbrook Road 
8217 60th Avenue                Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description:  First floor and basement of building and picnic area south/east contiguous 
to building only located at 3812 Springbrook Road 
 
Halter Wildlife, Inc.  Halter Wildlife    
John F. Burke - Agent     9626 113th Street 
9626 - 113th Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158     
 
Premise Description: Two story lodge and storage shed only located at 9626 113th Street 
 
Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub LLC   Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub 
David Schulte - Agent     10936 Sheridan Road  
8834 42nd Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: Building, basement and outdoor patio/picnic area within fencing 
contiguous to building only located at 10936 Sheridan Road 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

10 

 
*GMRI, Inc. Licensing Dept.    The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant #1845 
Jeffery Zimmerman - Agent    10110 77th Street 
P.O. Box 695016     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Orlando, FL  32869 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 10110 77th Street 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Ray Radigan's Inc.     Ray Radigan's 
R. Michael Radigan - Agent    11712 Sheridan Road 
10510 Lakeshore Drive     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: Building only located at 11712 Sheridan Road 
 
Ruffolo’s Pizza LLC     Ruffolo’s Pizza 
Richard M. Stiles – Agent    11820 Sheridan Road 
11820 Sheridan Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement only located at 11820 Sheridan Road 
 
JAAD, LLC                      Starlite Club 
Angela Daniels - agent                      8936 24th Avenue 
8934 33rd Avenue                 Kenosha, WI  53143 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement only located at 8936 24th Avenue 
 
PAS Village Inn, LLC     The Village Supper Club 
Susan Neahous – Agent    10909 Sheridan Road 
10909 Sheridan Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158     
 
Premise Description: First and lower level of building only located at 10909 Sheridan Road 
 
Joseph Nickel                       The Wooden Nickel 
5813 43rd Avenue                      11606 Sheridan Road 
Kenosha, WI  53144            Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building and picnic area contiguous to building only located at  
11606 Sheridan Road 
 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

11 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS  

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We didn’t have any signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anyone wishing to speak under citizens’ comments?  Hearing none, I’ll close citizens’ 

comments. 

 

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Tom Shircel: 

 

Just a couple updates on 39th Avenue and the construction.  As you know, the official detour 

routes are Highway 31 and Sheridan Road.  We’ve had numerous people - obviously many 

people cut through the neighborhood back here, Rolling Meadows.  And in doing so we had the 

public works department put up three sets of speed bumps originally.  Late last week John 

Steinbrink, Jr. had his crews put up I think 10 or 11 more sets of speed bumps through that 

neighborhood.  And the reason being not only to slow down traffic but to try and curtail the 

amount of traffic going through there.  

 

We found that people were not taking the -- well, they were trying to not take the shortest direct 

route through there anymore because of the speed bumps, so we had to put speed bumps at other 

places throughout that subdivision to try and slow everything down.  So just so the Commission 

is aware of that there’s I think1 4 sets of speed bumps through that neighborhood now. 

 

Secondly, as far as the schedule of construction out there, and John can correct me if I’m wrong, I 

think we’re still looking for completion late September, early October. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

That would be correct. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

Okay, so that’s what we’re looking at for completion.  So it’s going to be a long summer, but 

hopefully everyone can bear with it and get through it.  That’s all I have. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

If I could just comment on these speed bumps, Tom.  I live in that neighborhood, and nobody 

likes the speed bumps.  That’s not a question.  But it certainly has helped slowing a lot of people 

down.  I mean there were people flying through that neighborhood like you wouldn’t believe.  

One kid I estimated his speed going past my house, and I followed him and got his license 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

12 

number and called it into the police department.  Estimated speed past by my house about 45 to 

50 miles an hour.  A Tremper student.  Now that’s stopped.  So we can’t wait until the project is 

done, but in the process the neighborhood appreciates the job that public works did in putting 

these in to keep people at a reasonable speed.  Those were not developed or designed for high 

traffic. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

And I think John and his crews for getting that done. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And a couple thoughts here.  The reason people are cutting through the neighborhood is because 

it takes a long time on the detour.  So if we can lessen the time on the detour that would help the 

neighborhood.  Talking with Mike and some others I know there was an idea to work with 

Kenosha to increase the light on 91st and Sheridan with the thought being if we can have a longer 

gap in that light that will help people turning left from Springbrook onto Sheridan.  Are you 

familiar with that or any updates on that? 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

I’m honestly not familiar with that. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

I can address that.  We have been in contact with the City of Kenosha, and their engineering 

department is reviewing that as we speak. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And then I know we had talked last time about a controlled intersection on Springbrook and 

Sheridan which is a State process and can take years.   

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Are you referring to Sheridan Road? 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I’m sorry, yes, Sheridan and 165.  So anticipating or instead of waiting for that light we had also 

talked about putting in a turn lane from 165 onto Sheridan.   

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We did evaluate several options.  One of them was a temporary traffic signal, and the cost was 

somewhere around the $60,000 range.  The project being done in 12 to 14 weeks that was kind of 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

13 

cost prohibitive.  We did work with Kenosha County to evaluate putting in an additional lane.  So 

then on eastbound traffic on 165 you would actually have a left turn dedicated and straight lane, 

but then you’d also have a right hand lane.  And those costs are being evaluated right now on 

what it would cost.  And then if we decide that it is cost worthy to have we would have to add 

that to the cost of the project.  So those costs are still being determined at this time.  They’re still 

developing what it would cost to make those geometric improvements at that intersection, and 

then we can address it from there.  I can give you an update at the next Board meeting on the 

results of what we found. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And that wouldn’t be adding any asphalt?  That’s adding striping? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

No, we would actually add additional base, a little bit of drainage.  We’d have to push some lanes 

off.  There’s a power pole on the south side of that intersection.  So we would have to shift traffic 

a little bit towards the north.  There would have to be a little bit of storm work to do to reroute a 

ditch, add some base clay material, some stone, asphalt and all the striping.  So it’s probably 

going to be a significant endeavor.  But until we have that cost it’s hard to tell for sure what it’s 

going to be. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

Then we also talked, I don’t think I talked with you, somebody else about adding striping at 93rd 

and Springbrook where there’s the four or five different ways that cars come.  With the increased 

traffic is there a way that we can look at adding some clear lines so that cars know how they’re 

supposed to turn at that intersection? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yeah, the geometry is probably one of our oddest shaped geometric intersections on 29th, 

Springbrook, 93rd and that area.  And we were looking through and it looked like the striping -- if 

they follow the existing striping it should be good.  Maybe something that we could do is try to 

repaint the existing striping that’s there to make it a little more noticeable.  And that’s something 

we plan on being out in the next couple weeks striping our roadways.  And I can add that to the -- 

since both those roads are under Village jurisdiction we can go through and add that just to 

brighten up the stop bars and the signs to help out a little bit.  It’s definitely due for a maintenance 

painting.  so it’s something we can add per the Board’s request. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I think that could help.  There are a lot of people going that way that aren’t familiar with that 

intersection.  Thank you. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

14 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We’ll be sure to add that to our maintenance. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And on those speed bumps those are temporary which means they can be removed and used in 

other construction areas where we have a problem later on, correct? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

That is correct.  I’m not sure how they’re going to come out yet.  We put them in with 146 18 

inch long pieces of rod.  So we’ll have to see how they come out to make them reusable.  So I 

don’t want to commit that they’re all going to be good.  But it could be a pretty big effort to 

remove them.  Because you want to make sure they don’t shift or the rods don’t come out, stuff 

like that.  We do have a couple of public works employees with a really sore shoulder pounding 

them in all day. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Somebody could invent a big nail puller.  Tom? 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

That’s all this evening. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you. 

 

7. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Receive Plan Commission Recommendation and consider a Lot Line Adjustment to 

add 416 square feet to property located at 8282 64th Court from property located at 

8276 64th Court. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, William and Ann Brown, the owners of the property 

located at 8276 64th Court known at Lot 20 of the Tuckaway Trails Subdivision, Tax Parcel 

Number 91-4-122-103-0420 they’re proposing to sell approximately 416 square feet from the 

southeast corner of their property to James and Amy Bejna.  The land would be added to the 

southwest corner of the Bejna property located at 8282 64th Court known as Lot 21 of the 

Tuckaway Trails Subdivision, Tax Parcel Number 91-4-122-103-0421.  Both properties are zoned 

R-5, Urban Single Family Residential District.  And they both will continue to meet the minimum 

10,000 square feet area for that district. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

15 

 

If there’s any type of regrading that’s wanted to be done by either of the property owners as a 

result of this transfer an erosion control permit would be needed.  But at this point the staff and 

the Plan Commission recommended approval of this lot line adjustment as proposed, as required 

as well by the Land Division and Development Control Ordinance. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved to approve. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Kris.  Jean, what’s the purpose for the lot line adjustment?  I keep 

looking at it and I can’t see it. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

I believe that they actually just wanted -- they have a swimming pool here, and they’ve got some 

additional play yard equipment here.  And it looks like they just wanted to get some additional 

space around the play yard area for on their property.  Again, it’s subject to them recording the 

proper lot line adjustment and bringing a recorded copy back to the Village within 30 days. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Alright, we have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION  

RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE THE LINE ADJUSTMENT TO ADD 416 SQUARE  

FEET TO PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8282 64TH COURT FROM PROPERTY LOCATED AT  

8276 64TH COURT. 
 

 B. Consider Ordinance #15-20 to repeal and recreate Chapter 30 of the Municipal 

Code relating to Contempt of Municipal Court. 
 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

Good evening, Dick Ginkowski, Municipal Judge.  This is basically a cleanup thing in which we 

are harmonizing the language of the ordinance with the State statutes.  I know that Mr. Brines 

from the Kenosha News actually called me earlier today to ask about that.  And I gave it some 

additional thought because it’s not uncommon for there to be situations where the ordinances and 

statutes to come out of synch with each other. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

16 

Back in 2009 the legislature did a massive, maybe massive is not the right word, but they did a 

substantial rewrite of the municipal court law for the State of Wisconsin.  And a number of things 

were changed and added.  For example, if you see me walking around when we have court in my 

black robe it’s because the 2009 revision said that we must wear a robe when court is in session 

and it has to be black in color.  So that’s actually mandated by the revision in the State law.  And 

we can’t hold court above a tavern either.  That’s also in the State law.  So this is just to 

harmonize the ordinance with the State law and to not have conflicting penalty provisions. 

 

It’s not uncommon in ordinances as well, particularly if you’ve made a transition as we went 

from town to village, to have conflicts that arise either because things become antiquated and they 

haven’t been changed, or just by the operation of codification or the recodification and they 

haven’t been revisited.  So, for example, like in Chapter 250, and it’s a delicate balance for me as 

judge because it’s not my position to be the legislator, the legislative body, that’s the function of 

the Board, but there are probably at least a half dozen portions in Chapter 250 of the Village 

Ordinances that duplicate each other, that we have more than one section that covers the same 

thing.  And that probably occurred during the codification process that there were ordinances that 

were on the books when we were a town.  And they carried over, and then the company that did 

the codification, this is my guess, didn’t come back in and catch that and come back in and say 

you have sections that seem to duplicate each other. 

 

So that’s a whole other ball game, and at some point I’m sure that there will be some discussion 

maybe down the road about harmonizing some of the other things that have fallen out of sync or 

need  to be updated.  And periodically -- we have two new Board members so I’m spending a 

couple more minutes on this than I normally would, periodically you’ll see little bits and pieces 

come up for an ordinance where they’re changing language or updating things, and that’s what 

happens.  Sometimes they fall out of sync with the State statutes which govern in an area.  And 

it’s kind of hard to absolutely guarantee that that will never happen.  There are some ways to 

work on that.  In the critical areas, for example, in the traffic code the language is properly in the 

ordinances to cover updates. 

 

So this is merely a housekeeping area where we want to put this in sync with the State statute 

where it should be.  And this actually was something that I caught a while back and mentioned it 

in passing and never got around to it as the saying goes.  And then a couple weeks ago when I 

was filling in in the City of Kenosha we actually did have a gentleman engage in an outburst in 

the court and he had to be sanctioned.  And that caused me to remember that we hadn’t 

harmonized our ordinance with the State statutes.   

 

So this is just getting around to this housekeeping matter.  Not anything of particular great 

significance.  And I assume for our new Board members periodically from time to time you may 

see some things come up on your agenda where there are things that are going to be attempts to 

put them into more modern form or eliminate surplusage.  So basically no big deal, but it’s just a 

matter of making sure that we don’t have conflict in the statutes.  And I’m happy to answer any 

questions if there are any. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

17 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

So I’m reading through the note here.  We’re currently at a $50 fine is what the Village has? 

 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

Well, actually quite frankly I would say that’s -- well, let’s put it this way.  It’s not in front of me 

officially, but I would say that’s what’s in the ordinance.  But the State statute actually governs so 

that’s surplusage.  You can’t have an ordinance that circumvents the State statute. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

So the State’s at $200 up to $500? 

 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

The statute is $200.  The statute also provides for different categories of contempt.  But the one 

that’s of major significance is the one if somebody just basically misbehaves in the presence of 

the court, that has an outburst in court and can’t be controlled.  Most of the time, quite frankly, 

over the past two years we’ve been able to talk people down and get them to behave and we’ve 

not had to use that.  But the statute allows for a forfeiture of up $200 plus costs which presently is 

$313 and/or up to seven days in the County jail.  So, for example, you don’t want to have a 

conflict where someone says are you acting under the ordinance or are you acting under the 

statutes.  The statutes govern the operation of the court since 2009.  So basically what was in the 

ordinance is surplusage. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And then this also covers not just in the courtroom but if somebody wants to do a meter reading 

or a fire inspection and someone doesn’t cooperate that falls under -- 

 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

Yeah, and that would be obstruction of the process of the court.  That is not specifically covered 

in the State statutes.  So, for example, we have had over the years some incidents where the fire 

department, and I can explain this -- if, for example, the people who do inspections or routine 

things such as meter reading, such as doing the annual or semi-annual or whatever they do, the 

inspections of property that the fire department does, and we have had over the years had some 

people either they’re unavailable or they’re unwilling to cooperate with providing access to the 

property, then the fire department, the inspection department, public works, maybe three or four 

times a month I assign special inspection warrants for public works.  A special inspection warrant 

is a court order that allows the Village employees who have to have access to property to conduct 

their duties, official duties, access to the property.  It’s not an allocation that there’s any crime or 

anything going on.  It just gives them the legal right to enter the property to conduct a fire 

inspection or a building code inspection. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

18 

Most of the time everybody cooperates.  Probably most of the time when I have to sign the 

warrants it’s because there isn’t someone around to cooperate, and we’re being helpful in trying 

to make sure we have all the i’s dotted and the t’s crossed.  The flip side of that, and when I 

mention warrants, and it’s not something that comes before the municipal court, but there’s things 

such as when you hear a warrant to access property you typically think like a search warrant.  

And a search warrant is where there’s probable cause to believe a crime is committed, and those 

warrants are issued by a circuit judge or a court commissioner.  I happen to be a court 

commissioner as well so I can issue search warrants and arrest warrants in criminal matters. 

 

But let’s say, for example, a good example of that would be a fire.  If the fire department is on the 

scene of a fire and they are doing their job at the time, cleanup and investigate, they don’t need 

permission of the owner to put out a fire because that’s a public disaster.  Now, if they haven’t 

finished their inspection and their investigation to determine the cause of the fire, and there’s 

some issues about accessing the property to do that, I could issue a special inspection warrant as 

municipal judge for the fire department to go back in and inspect that property.  And if somebody 

were to disobey that, well then under that ordinance provision, and that’s just cleaning up some 

language, that’s a secondary provision, that would provide a penalty for those who would disobey 

that order because it’s not in the presence of the court. 

 

And, of course, the third option if there’s some reason that the fire department should believe that 

the fire was a result of arson or a crime, once the investigation turns from determining the cause 

of the fire from a scientific perspective to one of possibly a crime being involved, that once they 

would have a reasonable suspicion of a crime then they would need to have a search warrant 

issued by the circuit court to access the property.  So that’s the differences in the types of 

warrants and the types of things that we do.  So, yes, periodically I’d say probably at least four 

times a month I’m issuing special inspection warrants for various purposes.  Usually it’s because 

the property owner isn’t there.  But maybe every once in a while, I can’t guess once a year or 

once every two years or something, but there might be somebody who is obstreperous and has to 

be reminded that there could be consequences if they don’t comply with the court order. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

That may be more of an answer than you wanted, but it gives you at least a little history or 

background.  Anyone else?  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Dick, before you go, it’s good to know that the court has a dress code, black robes and all.  But I 

wanted to commend you on you were the keynote speaker at the law enforcement memorial for 

the fallen police officers back in May.  And your address was both timely and well delivered and 

well received by the crowd.  So I just wanted to commend you on that.  You did a great job of 

that, and it was well done. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

19 

 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

Thank you.  I just wanted to actually kind of tell it like it is for officers today.  Because 

unfortunately the climate that we have now is such that -- well, no one wants to endorse and 

approve of police misconduct.  We do have a situation now where we have officers who are 

scared to do their jobs because they are afraid of the consequences.  They are afraid of what 

might happen to them and their homes and their families and their livelihoods if they do what at 

the time they believe they are required to do and what in many instances the officers are 

authorized to do. 

 

And many people don’t realize that police officers have to make decisions sometimes in under 

one second that other people will debate for weeks, months and years afterward whether they did 

the right thing.  So it was important I think to say that.  I know as a court and previously as a 

prosecutor and as a judge sometimes we have to make decisions that officers don’t like if you 

wind up having to acquit somebody or suppress something.  But in my experience, and 

particularly in this building, it’s not the result of anyone that I’ve seen acting with a nefarious 

intent.  It might be just because somebody made a mistake.  They didn’t read the law properly, or 

they were acting in good faith but they screwed up.  It wasn’t a matter that somebody was setting 

out to do something illegal. 

 

Our police department by and large does a very, very good job.  And every once in a while 

somebody makes a mistake.  They’re human and we can deal with that.  So, yes, I think you for 

the kind words.  But it was just something that I felt needed to be said at the time because across 

the nation police officers are very beleaguered at this point and also very confused because they 

don’t know if they do what they believe the law says that they are allowed to do, if they will be 

subjected to the type of scrutiny and the type of stress that has caused many of them to essentially 

give up.  So, yes, thank you very much.  It was my pleasure and my privilege and honor to have 

been there.  I hope I represented you well. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

You did.  No further questions?  Do we have a motion? 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I move passage of the amendment to Ordinance 15-20. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Dave, second by Mike.  Any discussion on this ordinance?   

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

20 

 KLIMISCH MOVED TO ADOPT ORDINANCE #15-20 TO REPEAL AND RECREATE 

CHAPTER 30 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO CONTEMPT OF MUNICIPAL 

COURT; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 C. Consider an award of contract for the Cooper Road Paving Program. 
 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, today I’m requesting approval of pulverizing and 

relaying asphalt of Cooper Road from 80th Street to 85th Street.  Sealed bids for the above 

referenced project were received until 2 p.m. May 20th at the Village of Pleasant Prairie public 

works department.  Three bids were publically opened and read aloud.  Cooper Road consists of 

pulverizing and relaying the asphalt pavement, grading the existing base, placing new asphalt 

pavement and road shouldering. The three bids received were from Payne & Dolan, Stark Asphalt 

and Black Diamond as the base bid of the Cooper Road project.  Payne & Dolan was low at 

$167,518.  Stark Asphalt was very close, just $400 above that at $167,9555.  And Black 

Diamond, the third bid, was a little bit higher at $198,970.  

 

The alternate A which I’m also proposing approval for is to do the 192 lift station driveway.  

Currently our trucks are accessing on this lift station, and we have some smaller vans, some 

maintenance service trucks, but we also have our large Vactor accessing off of 88th Avenue.  So 

you can kind of see the gravel drive on the aerial there.  Well, backing that large Vactor up since 

there’s no property there to make a t-turnaround becomes very dangerous especially with the 

large volume of traffic that we have on Country Trunk Highway H. 

 

So we are proposing and we did budget to go through and put this asphalt drive in as part of our 

paving program, but it’s funded through the sewer utility.  So this year also as part of the sewer 

utility crews are going down a rebuilding this lift station.  So it’s very timely.  The whole place 

will be under construction for a couple months in mid June and into July rebuilding the lift 

station.  And it’s perfect timing to complete this improvement also as a part of this.  And so with 

the bids added up Payne & Dolan was low at $172,680.76.  So the total paving program that we 

had as approved by the Board last fall and implemented this year for 2015 was $988,384.  If you 

recall on March 2nd Payne & Dolan was also awarded a contract for three various sections in the 

amount of $682,256.06.  And so that left us with a budget of just over $300,000 that we could 

still add something to it. 

 

Staff went through and evaluated all the arterials, and this was the worse arterial probably from 

the harsh winter that we did have this year.  We did the same thing, we took any extra money that 

we had in the paving program, evaluated the arterials, and we found the best use of that money.  

So we are looking to approve this award to Payne & Dolan in the amount of $172,680.76.  And I 

can answer any questions. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I have just one.  John, do we know the difference in pricing with the cost of asphalt this year 

compared to the last with the price of oil the way it is right now? 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

21 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We bid our main paving program pretty early.  We actually had it out the door in early February.  

And so a lot of times it isn’t really the price.  I mean the price does have a factor, but it’s the 

amount of work that crews have.  So by getting it out the door early everyone is kind of hungry, 

especially for a large project, a million dollar project.  And I think something else that’s helping 

in keeping our price down is that Stark Asphalt recently built a plant just in south Milwaukee.  So 

now we actually have three competitors where in the past we’ve only had two.  So I think just by 

demand of work and everything else that we had has really been helping out.  I spoke with the 

reps at Payne & Dolan and Stark, and it sounds like everyone acquired their work early on, but 

there’s kind of a need for a little bit later work this year.  So the timing I think was really good for 

us, and we were able to get some really good pricing. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

John, also that stretch on Cooper Road that’s where the Kenosha Water Utility did a lot of work 

in that area, didn’t they? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

That is correct.  The City of Kenosha maintains basically most of the water system in that north 

section of the Village from 85th Street north.  And so there were a lot of breaks over the last five 

years.  So this will really kind of clean that up in that area. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I know there was neighbor concern in that area.  Other comments or questions? 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Does it do anything with the trees along the sides, any cutback? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

No, it does not.  We’re not making any widening.  We’re not doing any stormwater 

improvements.  Pretty much taking the existing asphalt, pulverizing it, shaping, regrading it and 

putting down new asphalt at the new Village spec of five inches thick. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

And the projected time line for this? 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

22 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We have not had a schedule yet.  But a lot of times contractors won’t give you a schedule until 

it’s been awarded by the Board.  Preliminary conversations he’s probably looking for sometime 

in late June/July.  And we’ll make sure Chris Christenson, our communication director, gets the 

word out so everyone knows it.  And we always do direct mailings to the affected residents also 

once we have a date established after award of contract. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

I’m on vacation mid-July so if that coincides with my access to my house. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

I’ll ask the contractor what he can do. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

No, no favors.  Thank you for addressing it, though. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

What will the road look like for traffic?  Will it be half a road under construction and access on 

the other half? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yes, we’re always going to keep one lane open for construction and two lanes open in the 

evening.  So they’ll probably go through and pulverize the entire project within one day, and so 

they’ll close off the east side lane for the northbound traffic or vice versa with the other.  So there 

will always be flaggers, traffic control.  So traffic in both directions north and south will be 

available 24/7 on that.  We’re not going to shut the road down by any means.  It’s just a quick 

project.  They’ll probably have it paved in a couple days and then done.  One of the things we do 

is we always wait until school is out because with school buses and kids like that it really cuts 

down on the traffic.   

 

And so we have no intention of having a detour.  Everyone will have access to their homes the 

entire project.  I guess the only time they wouldn’t would be when the paver is going through for 

probably 15 minutes until the asphalt is rolled.  But we are in correspondence with all of the 

residents on a regular basis.  We let them know the day before that you may want to park your car 

across the street or something in case you have to get out.  But it always available to the residents 

and especially for emergency services also. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Jane, did we have a motion on this? 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

23 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We didn’t. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Move to accept award of contract for the Cooper Road paving and staff’s recommendation. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Kris, second by Steve.  Any last discussion?  Those in favor? 

 

 KECKLER MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO PAYNE & DOLAN, INC. IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $172,680.76 FOR THE COOPER ROAD PAVING PROGRAM FROM 80
TH

 TO 

85
TH

 STREET; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider approval of a Conceptual 

Plan for two (2) proposed multi-tenant retail buildings on the property located at 

the southeast corner of STH 50 and 94th Avenue. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, we have before us a request for a conceptual plan at the 

request of Mark Eberle from Nielsen Madsen and Barber, and he is the agent on behalf of Oldacre 

McDonald.  It is a developer that is proposing to develop Outlot 21 which is located immediately 

north of 76th Street, and it’s just to the east of 94th Avenue north of the Costco that’s under 

construction. 

 

The conceptual plan that they are proposing delineates two retail sites, restaurant-type sites.  

Specifically the two retail restaurant buildings, Lot 1, would be 1.042 acres with a 6,280 square 

foot building.  Retail A which is the corner building would be about 4,000 square feet.  And 

restaurant B would be 2,250 square feet.  That would have a fenced in outdoor seating area. 

Lot 2, which is also part of this Outlot 21, is just under an acre in size with a 7,370 square foot 

building.  There would be three different spaces in this building, restaurant C which is about 

2,400 square feet, office D at about 2,400 square feet, and another restaurant at 2,400 square feet.  

And, again, this final restaurant E will have a drive through and also a fenced in outdoor seating 

area. 

 

One of the things that was discussed before the Plan Commission was that in order to more fully 

evaluate the infrastructure and the traffic impacts of Outlot 21 that we needed to specifically take 

a look at all of the vacant land that’s north of Costco.  We needed to make sure that we addressed 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

24 

future development patterns as well as setbacks, cross-access, parking, drive throughs, the 

stacking areas, curb and gutter, landscaping, signage and all the various development factors 

between the two. 

 

And specifically, again, Outlot 21 is the first topic for discussion this evening.  But, again, we’d 

also like you to entertain and look at the balance of this land which is Outlot 20.  Again, Outlot 21 

is looking to be subdivided in the future into two different parcels.  Outlot 20 will also be 

subdivided into two different parcels.  And, again, after considerable discussion and meeting with 

our Village Engineers and their engineer we finally agreed that the two access points that would 

best serve this development would come off of 76th Street would be equidistant between 91st 

Avenue and 94th Avenue. 

 

Although Costco has a driveway right here leading into their site, it just did not work to try to line 

this up directly with that Costco.  It just did not work with respect to traffic entering into each of 

these sites.  Because what we really tried to do is make sure that when traffic was entering they 

would kind of go all the way towards the back and go east and west, or they’d go to a certain 

distance and go east.  We wanted to make sure that there was not a situation where traffic was 

backing up into the travel lane that people were using to get off of 76th Street.  And, again, this 

would also be a shared access on the east side just north of 76th Street, again, so that you could 

go to the west or you could go to the east. 

 

Again, because of where these properties are located there is no direct access to 91st Avenue, to 

Highway 50 or 94th Avenue.  So the only access to service these buildings would come off of 

76th Street.  So, again, this would be actually a lot line, and there would be cross-access between 

the two.  This would also be a lot line with cross-access between the two.  So, again, we’ve gone 

through this in detail.  At this point the first project that is looking to move forward is this one on 

the far west end which is Outlot 21.   

 

These are some of the conceptual elevations as discussed for Lot 1 with respect to the uses that 

are being proposed.  Again, we discussed this at length at the Plan Commission meeting.  We had 

about an hour and a half, two hour conversation with the developers, their engineer and my staff 

this past week to talk about some additional elements and to try to tie some of those strong 

materials from the Shoppes at Prairie Ridge into this development.  So their architects are 

working on bringing some additional elements and some of that vision into this development. 

 

In addition, there were some questions that were raised from the Plan Commission with respect to 

safety with respect to the outdoor seating areas.  And so the two corner tenants will have outdoor 

seating with some type of fencing.  But there’s actually going to be more sturdy, strong looking 

bollards, attractive architectural bollards at those corners just to make sure that there aren’t any 

incidents or accidents with people backing up or turning the corners in order to get around the 

buildings whether to the drive through or just to get around the buildings themselves. 

 

One of the biggest issues that we did discuss at the Plan Commission meeting was parking.  And 

I’m just going to go back for a minute.  One of the concerns was that there was not going to be 

enough parking for this first development, Outlot 21.  We’ve had a long discussion with the 

developer.  We’ve got letters that are coming from each of the tenants.  We know all five of the 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

25 

tenants which will be announced at the site and operational plan process.  And what they would 

like to do is submit to us exactly the amount of parking that they need with no concerns, no 

problems, no issues that they have ever had.  And so I am going to accept those letters. 

 

But one of the other things that we’ve requested the developer to do is to obtain written cross-

access agreements and easements from at least two different users in Pleasant Prairie in Prairie 

Ridge.  And they have actually -- an agreement hasn’t been penned yet, but they have an 

agreement in concept with St. Anne Catholic Church in order to have an additional 30 spaces if 

needed in their parking lot for employees or others that are there during the day, employee 

management, to park, and then they would have to shuttle them over there if it does become a 

problem. 

 

In addition they do want to entertain conversations with Costco.  Once Costco is up and operating 

I think that they’re probably about four to six months out anyway, and that will give Costco a 

good four to six months to see whether or not they could afford or they could share any of the 

parking at the various times it would be needed.  The next users to the middle and to the far east 

they have adequate parking pursuant to what our ordinance does require.   

 

And typically what does happen and what they will need to have are cross-access easements and 

agreements with these properties as well.  Because it is not uncommon that if there’s not enough 

parking with one that someone will typically go to the next lot over or the next lot over.  So as 

long as there are written agreements and easements in place and long-term ones that we can 

address the parking, then the staff is willing to support the parking as they have it shown.  We’re 

also addressing some things with respect to relocating the fire department connections and a 

couple of other things and specifically identifying some parking as more compact parking as well.  

so I think we’ve got those issues all worked out. 

 

One of the other items that we addressed before the Plan Commission is that this first 

development will need a planned unit development.  Again, because of the valuable nature of the 

land adjacent to Highway 50, the staff has worked with them in order to modify some of the 

setback distances in order to keep the similar site line setbacks and to allow them to get some 

additional parking that I really believe that they need on this particular site.  So in the staff 

comment it addresses things from the site acreage to the open space as well as some of the 

setbacks being addressed. 

 

Again, they will need to come back before the Plan Commission and the Board with detailed site 

and operational plans, with a detailed planned unit development text amendment, with a 

conditional use permit for the drive through, as well as any other items such as liquor license will 

come back before the Village Board as well.  So they’ll be coming back, and they’re working on 

some very detailed plans, and they are working with the staff on a regular basis now for us to get 

all these documents and information together. 

 

And then just some other conceptual elevations.  Again, we had some concerns about some of the 

elevations here and trying to keep a similar look and concept.  And so they are working, again, 

with making some modifications to those conceptual elevations.  You should be seeing these at 

one of the next meetings probably in early July. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

26 

 

So with that the staff, again, feels that they are adequately addressing the parking issues.  We’re 

working with them on architecture.  They are going to be requesting I think an expedited 

schedule.  Their engineer is here to address that if you need to ask him any questions.  But I think 

that they will probably do a preliminary site and operational plan request initially to get initial site 

grading and footings and foundations going.  And then they will come in with a final site and 

operational plan this summer.  Again, I believe their intent is to try to be completed by Christmas 

for at least this first Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Outlot 21. 

 

With that the staff recommends conditional approval of the conceptual plan subject to all the 

comments and conditions as outlined in the staff memorandum and as we discussed at the Plan 

Commission. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I questioned the parking at the Plan Commission meeting.  I keep on thinking back when we 

approved the Olive Garden we questioned the parking at that time.  And we were assured by 

Olive Garden it will be fine.  The last thing it is is fine.  And it’s just mushroomed from there 

because everything in that area is jammed.  It’s a nice thing to have that kind of business.  But we 

also have to provide enough parking.  My question, Jean, is this.  What if the agreements aren’t 

achieved with the offsite parking? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

The agreements have to be in place and executed and recorded prior to us moving forward with 

the project through permitting. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Because right now the parking that’s being proposed there doesn’t meet the ordinance, right? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It does not.  There’s 109 spaces being provided, and according to our ordinance 130 spaces are 

needed. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Like I said, it’s a nice problem to have that your business is doing that well, but we also have to 

keep in mind where the people are going to park.  I think this definitely has to be addressed, and I 

hope it’s achieved what you’re trying to do. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

Just a follow-up question there.  As Trustee Serpe said, there is some concern with the parking, 

and I think the developer needs to know that.  Because as soon as there is a problem with the 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

27 

parking when the place is open who is going to get the calls?  The Village is.  So I hope you can 

work this out.  And you mentioned St. Anne’s Church, is that a feasible alternative?  I think that’s 

like a third of a mile away as the street goes. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

They would need to shuttle or cross-access through getting the folks there, and they’d have to car 

pool.  Actually St. Anne does provide parking for another use in the Village not far from there 

that’s maybe like almost a half a mile away.  And they actually shuttle their employees back and 

forth, and they have 15 of them at that location right now.  So it would have to be set up. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

I think that’s very good.  And I think the developer needs to know that this may affect -- it could 

affect the feasibility of this project as time goes along. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

We do intend to, and I’m working with our Village Attorney, we do intend to discuss that fact 

because I think that their parking is also very dependent on these particular uses.  And, for 

example, we’ve got three restaurant uses and two retail uses or one retail and then one office.  

And there cannot be additional impact by higher intensity parking uses on this location.  So we 

will be putting that as part of the provisions as part of the PUD as well. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

And you and your department would obviously be reviewing each tenant change should that 

come along in the future for parking compliance? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

That’s correct. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

Okay, thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

As Trustee Serpe the Olive Garden is a unique thing but a very successful thing.  And one thing is 

they have sometimes 20, 30 people waiting for a table.  Until you get that turnover and 20 or 30 

other people leave you’ve got 15 more cars probably sitting there waiting for a parking space or 

using parking spaces.  Depending on what kind of restaurants are going in here that will make a 

difference, too. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

28 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I asked the developer about valet parking if that was an option.  You go downtown Chicago, 

downtown Milwaukee there’s no parking anywhere in these restaurants.  And for some reason the 

valet drivers find spots.  This would be a valet parking person’s dream come true, something like 

this.  But that’s another option.  It’s a problem, and we’re letting it happen.  We let it happen in 

Olive Garden. 

 

Tom Shircel: 

 

I think the difference with Olive Garden was they met their parking requirements if I recall, they 

had the ordinance required number of spots, but just the popularity of that restaurant.  I mean the 

honeymoon has not ended.  It’s still going on.  So all these restaurants they do have their 

honeymoon period, and we’ll see how this works out.  I just want to make sure that the developer 

understands that the Village does have concerns about the parking here, and hopefully it can get 

worked out.  I have full faith in Jean that she’ll work that out, and hopefully we don’t have any 

parking complaints coming from this site. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Mark, we’re in favor of this very much so, but we just want to address the problems. 

 

Mark Eberle: 

 

Mark Eberle, Nielsen Madsen and Barber, 1458 Horizon Boulevard. The developer is very aware 

of your parking concerns.  And we’ve tried to tweak the site plan as much as possible to gain as 

much parking on that site and still meet the other codes and the PUD that Jean has allowed here.  

So I think they’re very committed to their mix of tenants out here at the moment.  And these are 

going to be all corporate owned stores, long-term leases.   

 

They build these facilities for these tenants all over the country so they know their tenants very 

well.  They’re going right back to the tenants and showing them the site plan making sure they 

are 100 percent comfortable with it.  And with that being said and the couple levels of additional 

offsite parking that Jean has talked to them about I think hopefully we’ll be okay out there.  The 

30 offsite parking stalls at St. Anne’s are really going to be for construction period.  Obviously 

we don’t anybody parking on 94th or 77th or 91st during construction out there and for the grand 

openings.  

 

The other thing is they’re hoping to get this project started and get it going here early August if 

we can, at least putting in foundations out there and get the shell of the building done, the white 

box type stuff done by Christmas here so they can start turning it over to tenants first of the year 

here.  So those stores will not open all at the same time out there.  So we will have hopefully a 

staggered grand opening for those five uses out there.   

 

I ran through the parking calculations myself.  I really think we need about 114 spaces on that site 

just because the large retail use has very small demand as far as parking out there.  With that 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

29 

being said we’re still short five or six stalls out there.  So, again, they’re going to work to secure 

that with St. Anne’s and hopefully secure some closer, long-term, more feasible parking across 

the street. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

This being a conceptual plan we have time to work on this.  But I’d move approval of the 

conceptual plan. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Jean? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

I just wanted to mention with respect to Olive Garden as Tom indicated they did meet the 

minimum requirements just like Cheddar’s did.  Those restaurants are very popular still.  And 

there is still available cross-access parking in the lot to the south of 77th Street.  The key is that 

we did post all of our area streets in Prairie Ridge as no parking.  So that’s the key is that these 

tenants want people to come to their stores and their restaurants.  And if there’s not adequate 

parking that’s not good for them either.  And so people will either go through the drive through or 

they’ll go to one of the other restaurants in Prairie Ridge, and that’s exactly what’s happening.   

 

And I think these are going to be very popular for the community.  And I think that everyone, no 

different than Olive Garden or Cheddar’s or Famous Dave’s or any of the new restaurants coming 

in everyone will kind of have to find the right time to go so that dinner and lunch hour starts to 

spread out a little bit more.  But the key is that we’re not going to allow stacking on the streets, 

we’re not going to allow parking on the streets.  So they do need to address the concern.  And 

we’ll be watching it very closely like we did with Olive Garden.  And as you know how we 

addressed it with Chili’s with GFS having parking across the street at that location as well. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Will they need a membership at Costco to park there or -- 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

No, I don’t think so.  But that cross-access easement will have to be in place for that to happen. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion and a second.  Any other questions for Mark? 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

30 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

I do.  If this gets approved and you being construction, would the construction begin before you 

get an agreement with Costco? 

 

Mark Eberle: 

 

Most likely, yes.  Again, Costco isn’t even open out there.  They’re going to have to get their 

operation up and running for four or five or six months here before they can decide they can 

afford any parking stalls to be leased or under contract with these guys.  So that is an option 

they’re going to pursue, but Costco is not going to entertain that in the next 30 days. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

So then the parking plan -- we can hope for Costco, but the parking plan that can’t be part of the 

equation before you break ground. 

 

Mark Eberle: 

 

Again, we’re going to have the agreement with St. Anne’s for 30 stalls penned in writing here 

sometime in the next two weeks I would assume.  But the long-term agreement with Costco most 

likely will not happen prior to our final site and operational plan approval. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

I’m going to try to push it, though.  And I’ve already reached out to Costco, and I’ve talked to 

them about it.  And I think that their biggest concern is that there needs to be a written easement 

in place, and there has to be a commitment so that their parking lot stays clean, neat, and their 

landscaping is not damaged.  So I mean there are some thing, and they just have to make sure that 

they’re not giving away spaces that would be needed.  At this point we don’t know how popular 

it’s going to be.  I guess we’ll find out sometime after June 12th.  But I do want them to pursue it, 

and I already reached out to them to let them know that there might be an issue or concern. 

 

Mark Eberle: 

 

And we do appreciate that.  Jean has had more contact with Costco than our current developers 

have.  So with her assistance I think we can get it done. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any other questions for Mark?  If not, thank you, Mark. 

 

Mark Eberle: 

 

Thank you. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

31 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Any other questions or comments?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE A CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR TWO (2) PROPOSED 

MULTI-TENANT RETAIL BUILDINGS ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 

SOUTHEAST CORNER OF STH 50 AND 94TH AVENUE, SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS 

SET FORTH BY STAFF; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 E. Consider a request on behalf of Kwik Trip, Inc. for partial termination and release 

from two (2) Waiver of Special Assessment Notices related to on-site and off-site 

improvements to STH 50 that will be paid off prior to recording said releases.  

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is the request of Wendy Banasik on behalf of Kwik 

Trip.  And she’s requesting a partial termination and release from two waivers of special 

assessment notices that relate to offsite improvements to Highway 50.  And you will recall there 

was a Highway 50 construction special assessment that was entered into with V.K. Development.  

And at that time V.K. Development agreed to place a special assessment on a certain number of 

properties in Prairie Ridge.  And then we modified that agreement with SB1.   

 

And so there are two different agreements or memorandums that they are asking for to be 

released by the Village.  That release would be subject to the payment of the outstanding special 

assessments.  They, in fact, came into the Village Hall this morning and paid those special 

assessments off in full.  And so as a result they are requesting the release of the memorandum of 

understanding and waiver of special assessment dated May 24, 1999 and recorded at the Register 

of Deeds office on November 11, 2009 as document number 1539378.   

 

And then the second is the agreement and waiver of special assessment dated February 4, 2014 

and recorded in the Kenosha County Register of Deeds office on February 10, 2014 as document 

1720813.  And, again, both of these -- this special assessment has been paid in full.  And that first 

date was November 11, 2007 for the first memo. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

There’s no difference from last week to this week? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It is.  Last week we had five other releases that were being done.  These two specifically pertain 

to the State Trunk Highway 50 special assessments.  And so in order for us to release these two 

they had to pay those special assessments in full prior to them actually being due because we 

haven’t started the Highway 50 reconstruction yet.  So they had to pay them in full, and that was 



Village Board Meeting 

June 1, 2015 

 

 

32 

part of the agreement that we had entered into with VK.  Prior to the development of the land the 

special assessments have to be paid in full.  These two are now paid in full, or this one is paid in 

full. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I move to approve. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO GRANT THE REQUEST OF KWIK TRIP, INC. FOR PARTIAL  

TERMINATION AND RELEASE FROM TWO (2) WAIVER OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT  

NOTICES RELATED TO ON-SITE AND OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS TO STH 50 THAT  

WILL BE PAID OFF PRIOR TO RECORDING SAID RELEASES; SECONDED BY  

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

8. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday this week Kenosha Unified will be holding public forums and 

feedback sessions regarding the strategic direction for the District.  So since all of you wonderful 

Village staff people enjoy these evening work hours, if you have nothing to do tomorrow, 

Wednesday or Thursday you could go to the 3600 52nd Avenue from 5:30 to 7 and listen to the 

latest drafts related to the direction of Kenosha Unified or not. 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; 

MOTION CARRIED AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:10 PM. 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

Special Meeting – Working Session 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

June 10 2015 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A special working session of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Wednesday, June 10, 

2015.  Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris 

Keckler, Steve Kumorkiewicz and Dave Klimisch.  Mike Serpe was excused.  Also present were Michael 

Pollocoff, Village Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; 

Kurt Davidson, Assistant Village Engineer; and John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director.  One citizen 

attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

 
3 DISCUSS STORM WATER DRAINAGE IN THE CHATEAU EAU PLAINES 

 SUBDIVISION. 

 

 Matt Fineour, Village Engineer, outlined the history of the drainage problems in the Chateau Eau 

Plaines Subdivision and the past solutions presented and rejected by the residents in that area.  Mr. 

Fineour also presented potential storm water drainage remedies in the subdivision which will be presented 

at a future Village Board meeting. 

 

4. MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8 P.M. 

 

 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

June 15, 2015 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, June 15, 2015.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, 

Steve Kumorkiewicz, Dave Klimisch and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, Village 

Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development 

Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue 

Chief; Matt Fineour, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and 

Recreation Director; Dan Honore', IT Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent and Jane M. 

Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Five citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

I notice we have one Scout or is it multiple Scouts in the audience here this evening?  Three?  

Could you gentlemen come up and tell us what troop you’re from? 

 

--: 

 

We’re from Troop 544.  

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

All from Troop 544.  Why don’t you stay right there a minute.  Item Number 2 is the Pledge of 

Allegiance, and if you could lead us in the Pledge this evening? 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Do you want to give us your names here for the record? 

 

Cole: 

 

My name’s Cole. 

 

Erin: 

 

My name’s Erin. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

2 

Andrew: 

 

I’m Andrew. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Alright, gentlemen, thank you very much. 

 

3. ROLL CALL 
 

4. MINUTES OF MEETING - MAY 18, 2015 
 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I move acceptance. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Dave, second by Steve.  Is there any additions or corrections?   

 

 KLIMISCH MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 18, 2015 VILLAGE 

BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

5. TABLED PUBLIC HEARING 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We need a motion to remove from the table. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO REMOVE ITEM 5A. FROM THE TABLE; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 A. Consider the Liquor License Renewal Application for the BP Amoco gasoline 

station and convenience store located at 10477 120th Avenue. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Mr. President and Board members, as you will recall this application was tabled at my request at 

the last meeting because of the conditional use permit agenda item on the Plan Commission, and 

that was taken care of last week.  So we’re back to reviewing this application.  The Building 

Inspection and Fire and Rescue Departments have indicated there are no outstanding code 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

3 

violations at the BP facility.  The Community Development Department indicates our issues with 

the security camera, landscaping, site cleanup, parking lot, paving and secondary monument sign 

work.   

 

So I would recommend the application for the Class A fermented malt beverage license at the BP 

station located at 10477 120th Avenue be approved, and it would be subject obviously to payment 

of license and publication fees, payment of any delinquent real estate taxes, payment of the 

outstanding invoices and, of course, the resolution with the Community Development Department 

issues.   

 

As an update late this afternoon the representatives from BP were in, and they paid all the 

delinquent real estate taxes and the delinquent invoices except for the penalty and interest.  The 

penalty and interest for those two total roughly $7,460, somewhere in that neighborhood.  I don’t 

have the exact total.  But with publication fees, liquor license fees it would be $7,777.59.  So that 

was the update. 

 

And just for a point of reference as we’re dealing with these delinquencies and I was going 

through them, the $59,000 plus for the real estate taxes what that included was the real estate 

taxes from last year plus the delinquencies from the last time they made their account whole 

which would have been in July through when those were delinquent, and then they rolled the tax 

roll.  So they had the $38,000 of taxes, but they also had an additional $16,000 and some in 

invoices that became part of the tax bill when it was rolled onto the tax roll last November.   

 

So nothing was paid from last year when they got their license except their sewer and water bill 

because they’re on automatic payment until now, until this afternoon.  So as I was looking at the 

numbers and going back to see how this all unfolds.  So they paid everything but the interest and 

penalty which wouldn’t exist if the bills were paid I guess.  So it is a public hearing. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, this being a public hearing I am going to open it up to comment or question.  Give us your 

name and address for the record and do use the microphone.  I guess you’re first, Mr. McTernan. 

 

Michael McTernan: 

 

Good evening.  Attorney Michael McTernan, 6633 Green Bay Road, Kenosha, Wisconsin.  I’m 

the attorney, as you know, I represent BP in connection with the approvals that are before the 

Board tonight including the issue tonight for the renewal of the liquor license.  I know I sound 

like I’m repeating myself, but last year when we came before this Village Board the constant 

issue out at BP that we’re looking for relief of is going to come up under another agenda item.  

But it ties into this because of the cost of the outstanding obligations that have been accrued to 

my client.  And that deals with all the obligations that flow through that we’re looking for an 

amendment on a later issue tonight on the agenda. 

 

But I need to touch down on them.  I’ll save my remarks for some of the specifics for the later 

agenda item, but the issue before you tonight is satisfaction of the obligations that are posted 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

4 

against my client’s accounts.  My client has no objection to paying for the Village Engineer’s 

time.  And Matt has been kind enough to meet with us on several occasions for work through 

some issues.  Jean Werbie has done the same to get through looking at making amendments to the 

modification of the settlement agreement that we have with the Village in order to address the BP 

Amoco station. 

 

As you’ll understand and recall, we’ve been out there and have forwarded an enormous amount 

of money in the project in order to address a problem that existed that was never caused by my 

client in connection with the environmental issues that are on the site.  My client’s bought a 

contaminated site.  My clients have spent in excess of a million dollars addressing and trying to 

figure out a way to stop groundwater from being contaminated and being discharged from the 

property.  They have built and installed a water treatment system that literally treats the 

groundwater, cleans it and then discharges it into the waterways approved by the DNR. 

 

What has happened is we’ve had an incredible amount of success.  And for 24 straight months 

we’ve had nothing tested improperly or incorrectly with the tests that have run out there on the 

system that has been in place.  The system is working spectacularly well.  Don Gallo was here 

before the Village Board, gave an overview on some of the technical issues, and some of my 

environment experts explaining how well the system is functioning.  It is functioning so well that 

we’ve gone to the DNR and informally worked with them and with Matt to how the input from 

them on how much more do we need to continue to test this site. 

 

Because under the Village of Pleasant Prairie settlement agreement, and this is an evolving 

process that we’re going to be before this Village Board for many, many, many, many year 

dealing with this.  The DNR has advised us that we only need to test this site once every quarter.  

As you know from past we’ve been testing this site monthly.  Not only has the BP Amoco been 

testing this site monthly, but the environmental expert that the Village has retained has also been 

testing it monthly.  And I can report as Mr. Burns, I don’t know if he’s here tonight, can tell you 

is he told the Plan Commission for 24 straight months, neither the 24 tests that we’ve run every 

month have shown any issues nor is the 24 months the tests that Mr. Burns has run has shown any 

issues. 

 

And we were here before you on last June of 2014, as Ms. Romanowski mentioned, we 

understood there were obligations that accrued under the settlement agreement, and we needed to 

pay those in order to continue moving forward and my client did.  But as I was here last year I 

said this is eventually going to kill my client.  It is going to drain him to a point where he’s not 

able to afford this.  And what has occurred since the last time we were here is Mr. Burns through 

the environmental company has billed my client $7,708.15, $2,395.20 and $7,910.90 for a grant 

total of over $18,000.  We have paid those bills in full.  We have paid the legal bills that the 

Village has incurred in order to address settlement agreements with us.  We’ve paid for the staff’s 

time to inspect and to be on site.  We have no objection with those continuing obligations.   

 

What we have continued heartburn, and I know it will be addressed in the settlement agreement 

before you is our desire to cut back on testing to just quarterly.  We have seen, and as the bills 

with show from the last time we were here until today $18,000 from Mr. Burns charged to the 

Village of Pleasant Prairie, paid by my client, that has shown nothing that we’ve done anything 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

5 

wrong on the site with regard to testing.  Yet I can guarantee you that when I come back next year 

if nothing has changed we will have another $18,000 worth of bills that will be incurred by Mr. 

Burns.  It’s not being used to pay Village staff, not being used to pay the engineers for inspecting.  

It is an outside consultant that is testing the site every month and sending the bill and saying to 

my client please pay it. 

 

My client has satisfied all of the obligations outstanding.  And as you heard there’s approximately 

$7,500 that are sitting there in accrued interest and penalties and late fees, etc.  And part of it is 

my client’s frustration because starting in December of 2014 when the DNR approached my 

client’s experts and said why are you testing every month, there is no need for this.  We started to 

contact the Village of Pleasant Prairie and said can you please have your environmental expert 

look at this.  The DNR is telling us we don’t need to test every month.  We see no reason to spend 

$18,014.25 on an engineer outside of the community, not an employee of the Village, to 

reimburse actual costs of the staff that are here but an outside consultant billing my client on top 

of my client’s own outside consultants that are required under the settlement agreement to test 

every month. 

 

You’ll here as you come later on in the agenda that the recommendation from the DNR and what 

is proposed in the settlement agreement is to allow BP to only test quarterly.  But it’s in the 

agreement the right for the Village to continue to test every month, yet Mr. Burns never once 

mentioned why we need to continue to test every month at the tune of $18,014.25 for last year.  I 

know some of those costs are not just his lab tests.  I know they’re for him to show up on the site, 

for him to look at what’s going on and him to give reports and recommendations to the Village, 

but this is killing my client. 

 

So everything has been paid.  I personally came into the Village today with checks from my client 

to pay obligations in the amount of I believe they’re just shy of $70,000 or just over $70,000 in 

obligations, not only taxes, invoices and anything else that has been applied on the account.  

What I’m begging for the Village to do, and maybe it’s not here tonight at this point, maybe it’s 

during the settlement agreement, is could someone provide my client some credit for this 

$18,014.25 worth of expenses that we don’t understand why they just continue to come.  Because 

I can assure you if nothing has changed once again next year I’m going to be sitting here and 

saying why is my client paying another $18,014.25 to an environmental engineer when we’re 

doing the same, and the DNR is saying please cut back from monthly to quarterly.  I appreciate 

your consideration, and I’ll be here for the next item.  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Did we have a signup, Jane?  Anyone else wishing to speak on this item?  Hearing none, I’m 

going to close the public hearing and open it up to Board comment and question.  Mike, do you 

have anything to add to this? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes, I do, and Matt can speak to this as well.  One of the reasons that the Village is involved in 

this is part of the settlement discussion was to ensure that BP was compliant with the Village’s 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

6 

ordinances regarding stormwater.  We went for nearly a year trying to get BP Amoco to just 

recognize a violation that we were sending to them, and we couldn’t get them to the table.  They 

did make some improvements.  And I think that to say that we went 24 months without a 

violation, we know that in September of last year the business was in violation.  The operator 

didn’t know how to operate the system.  The system was dedicating alarms over a three day and 

eventually ending up with another spill and contamination of the creek.  And I think there was 

another incidence where there was some offsite testing that did set off some alarms. 

 

I believe that what the Village is looking for prospectively is to say we want to have the ability to 

go in should we feel we need to do it on a month-by-month basis.  We would like nothing better 

than not to have to do this.  We do have to hire a contractor out to do that.  We don’t have a 

petroleum contamination expert that’s employed by the Village on an hourly basis or daily basis.  

We’re tying up engineering staff monitoring what’s going on at BP.  And I think that the charges 

that Attorney McTernan is talking about those charges I think no bills were paid by BP from 

when they made their last payment through the end of the year.  That’s why that went to the tax 

roll. 

 

But I think what happens is the Village has an obligation to pay our staff for what they’re doing.  

We have an obligation to pay a contractor we’ve entered into a contract with to perform work that 

we’re not capable of performing and pay him for his work.  And I see no reason why the 

taxpayers should be subsidizing that and paying for that and not be entitled to the interest for not 

having access to those funds for that period of time.  I think the Village ordinances are specific.  

The County ordinances are specific on things that roll to the tax roll and how that’s handled. 

 

Nowhere after that initial payment was any payment made subsequently.  They made the 

unilateral decision themselves not to pay any bills going forward.  I understand they didn’t like it, 

but that was the agreement that was entered into.  If you think back to the settlement agreement 

that was initially constructed that was what was requested by attorneys on behalf of BP to be able 

to stay open.  Let’s do the settlement agreement.  You can bill us for whatever it costs you to take 

care of this.  And now that when those bills come due both years it was difficult to get payment 

for those. 

 

I think the Village Engineer succinctly said it at the last meeting at the Plan Commission.  What 

we really want to do is have BP own that improvement and know that they’re monitoring out 

there.  And if we go out there it’s not a case of somebody saying, well, we have somebody 

coming out to take a look at it, we don’t know what to do with it. When there’s a lot of rain which 

is what we’re protecting ourselves against that the system will handle it.  And we don’t have any 

confidence that that’s going to happen.   

 

If we go through another year where it appears that they’ve become more serious about 

maintaining this water treatment system and working with it then maybe we can start talking 

about backing off of some of the work that we’re doing.  And I believe to the extent that we see 

some cooperation on it our goal in this whole project is not to create an employment project for 

one of our consultants.  Our goal is to make sure there’s no more contaminations coming out of 

that gas station and ending up in the Des Plaines River because that’s what happened.  

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

7 

So I have a hard time recommending -- I can’t recommend to the Board that we waive interest 

charges on fees we’re already paid or penalties.  Those are spelled out.  And the mere fact that 

one payment was made and they decided not to make any additional payments throughout the 

year was their decision.  It wasn’t a decision we made.  And I know they wanted to have the 

agreement amended but it wasn’t amended.  They asked for the amendment after the last bill was 

paid.  So we’re now seeing the third amendment before us tonight after it’s been reviewed by the 

Plan Commission.  So it’s my hope that we don’t do this anymore.  My hope is they work to get 

that problem cleaned up and maintain it.  And if we had seen significant action all through last 

year I think we would have had a different approach to this in this last agreement.  But that wasn’t 

the case.  Matt, if there’s anything you’d like to add to that? 

 

Matt Fineour: 

 

I think what Mike has said is right.  I guess the only as far as maybe repeating myself from the 

Plan Commission is that as we move forward in the future if they want less involvement from the 

Village I’m all for that.  It’s just that we need to make sure that they are running the project if any 

problems arise, essentially it’s all in their ballpark and they show that they can manage that 

project and take care of it all.  And I think with that as we gain that confidence we certainly 

would back off.  There’s no reason to be there.  We want to have less involvement in there.  I 

don’t want to spend my time dealing with BP.  I’d prefer to have our consultant spend less time 

there as well.  So I really think as much as the cost issue of the Village billing them I think the 

ball kind of is in their court from here into the future to show that they can do that so we can back 

off. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Trustee Serpe? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Just for the sake of expediency here, I think we’ve heard arguments now on both sides for Item D 

on the settlement agreement and on the liquor license to be presented.  If it’s okay, and I suggest 

that we continue the dialogue on Item D instead of going over this whole thing again, and let’s 

get it done. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Move it up. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

If that’s okay, I’d make that a motion. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We did close the public hearing.  We’re now in Board comments. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

8 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

We’ll take separate action on the public hearing and on Item D.  But I think we’re into it this far 

let’s finish it off. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

You made the motion? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Yes. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

A motion by Mike, second by Steve for bringing up Item 4.  We’ll act on that after we conclude 

with Item A. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

If you want to vote on Item A and get that done I’m ready to do that.  I’d move approval of the 

liquor license to BP subject to payments of all past and overdue. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion and a second already on here for moving this up.  So why don’t we finish that 

one first and we’ll follow right after it.  Any comment or question on the motion 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO CONSIDER ITEM 8D. ON THE AGENDA; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, Mike. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I would make a motion to approve the liquor license for BP Amoco subject to full payment of all 

past due bills that the Clerk has indicated. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

9 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

And the resolution of the Community Development Department issues as well. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Yes. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ve got a question on this.  

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We have a motion.  Do we have a second first? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.   

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

 Steve? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ve got a question.  You’re talking about $7,400 [inaudible].  Are those attached to this license? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

I’m sorry? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

$7,400 that they owe.  Now, is that attached to this license renewal? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

10 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

They would have to pay the license fee of $250, publication fee of $20, the interest on the 

delinquencies that they made the payment for all the -- they made payments today, but they didn’t 

pay the interest and penalty.  They would have to pay $6,229.07 for the interest for the real estate 

taxes.  And then they would have to pay the interest and penalty on the invoices of $1,288.52.  So 

before the license goes out of my office they would have to make those payments, as well as Jean 

Werbie-Harris would have to sign off on the issues that she indicated are out there on the 

property. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Okay, clarified, thank you. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

So you seconded it? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Yes, I did. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Okay, we have a motion and a second then. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Further comment?  Dave? 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

The current license goes through the end of June? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Yes so they have time. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Just for full clarity, the current settlement agreement as it stands right now prior to any 

amendments have they fulfilled every obligation? 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

11 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Well, the Village feels there’s been testing irregularity or operational irregularities that have been 

out there.  That’s one of the reasons that caused us to recommend drafting the changes we did in 

8D for that amendment number 3. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Further comment or question?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO GRANT THE CLASS “A” FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

LICENSE TO BP AM/PM LOCATED AT 10477 120
TH

 AVENUE FROM JULY 1 THROUGH 

JUNE 30, 2016 SUBJECT TO PAYMENT OF ALL LICENSE FEES, DELINQUENT FEES AND 

RESOLUTION OF THE ISSUES OUTLINED BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DEPARTMENT; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 D. Consider Amendment #3 to the Settlement Agreement between the Village and 

VIDHYA Corp VIII, Inc. to modify the testing requirements and to follow the 

recommendation and approval of the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resource 

for testing at the BP Amoco gasoline station and convenience store located at 10477 

120th Avenue.  
 

Matt Fineour: 

 

This is the third amendment to the original settlement agreement between the Village of Pleasant 

Prairie and VIDHYA Corporation.  Amendment number 3 contains two major items.  One is the 

reduction in sampling for their treatment system that treats the groundwater on their site.  They 

currently are testing that treatment system on a monthly basis.  The current settlement agreement 

requires them on a monthly basis for two years.  They started testing on a monthly basis in 

February 2014 which would go to February 2016.  Based on the testing results and their 

discussions with the DNR they’re requesting to go to a quarterly basis which is the next step in 

the original settlement agreement.  Based on the testing results and our independent testing results 

we don’t have a problem with that reduction for the testing. 

 

The second item in the settlement agreement really pertains to the site investigation plan, and that 

is I call it more or less as the project moves forward it’s more of a roadmap of finishing off that 

site investigation plan.  There’s one section I think in amendment number 3 which is at 

discussion, and that is the Village’s involvement of independent sampling, independent going out 

there and testing the site or visiting the site taking well readings and so forth.  Right now that is in 

the original settlement agreement that the Village has the right to do that.  We do not recommend 

that be changed at this point in time.  Again, that language in the original settlement agreement 

does not require the Village to be out there, but it gives the right to do so.   

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

12 

With that, if the representatives from BP do not agree with settlement agreement number 3 or the 

amendment as proposed for the reduction the way the Village staff has it, the alternative is really 

to stick with the original settlement agreement and the amendments 1 and 2.  With that I’ll leave 

it and be able to answer any questions you may have. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I’m going to concur with the Plan Commission’s recommendation.  Mr. McTernan, before you 

got involved with this, this was not a friendly meeting between BP and us.  It was very 

contentious.  Admittedly when you came on it calmed it down quite a bit.  But there still were 

times when the distrust between BP and us still occurred.  And I think Mr. Pollocoff offered 

saying if we go this year and do some successful testing maybe next year we could look at this 

thing and do a quarterly test which I think is a reasonable offer right now considering the way 

things have been going. 

 

Michael McTernan: 

 

And if I may, the engineer has recommended and my client -- 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Once again, I just need your name and address for the record. 

 

Michael McTernan: 

 

I apologize.  Mike McTernan, 6633 Green Bay Road, Kenosha, Wisconsin.  One of the things my 

client is in the midst of doing is receiving bids.  I’ve received emails to put in an alarm system 

that would alert North Shore Testing Company, the company that oversees the wells, in order to 

alert them immediately like an alarm system would if someone broke in your building.  The 

minute one of the wells would hit that eight foot or nine foot water mark we’re going to share 

what the specifications are with the engineer so he can concur.  We’re going to have it installed 

very quickly.  It’s not part of the settlement agreement, but obviously it’s one of the things 

presented was a thing that occurred in the last 12 months that had someone known the alarm 

going off it could have been addressed immediately.  So it’s not something he has to have put in 

the settlement agreement, but my clients are having that done as a safety measure.  I hope it is a 

good year so we can be back next year and hopefully continue the confidence that you’ll have and 

also to get this thing resolved.  Thank you very much.  I have nothing further.  I appreciate it.  

Thanks. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move approval of the amendment 3 and concur with the Plan Commission’s recommendation. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ll second that. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

13 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any discussion on this?  One thing that did trouble me, Mr. 

McTernan, was at the public hearing Planning Commission you had stated that other communities 

pay for this testing out there.  And I was curious why you thought the Village of Pleasant 

Prairie’s residents and taxpayers should pay for BP’s problem out there, and especially when they 

are noncompliant with the problem.  Myself if that would have been part of this agreement I 

would be voting against it.  Because I feel it’s their obligation to take care of it out there.   

 

As Mr. Serpe said this had gone on a long time before BP even recognized or took the time to 

come and talk to the Village after we had notified them many, many times of the problem out 

there.  And probably my biggest disgust was with the DNR over their actions on this project.  If 

this had been anybody in this audience, anybody up here we’d have been slapped down with a 

lien so fast and shut down by the DNR for a minor pollution problem versus the major pollution 

problem that was going on out there.  So I don’t understand the thinking of the DNR, and I don’t 

think anybody else does.  But it’s very disheartening to know that a regulatory agency has this 

kind of attitude to the problem that was out there. 

 

This was a serious problem, and it affected a lot of people out there, and it affected the 

environment, the watershed of the area and everything else out there.  And they kind of took the 

attitude that it really wasn’t a problem which was amazing because apparently they have multiple 

ways of thinking or dealing with things. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

I did come across one of my notes in here.  I just wanted to ask, there was one of the notions on 

here that the concerns from the neighboring business, Culver’s.  And is there still an existing 

concern?  I know there is ground contamination and overall environment concerns.  Is there 

anything specific related that’s been identified that would cause any type of potential damage to 

that establishment? 

 

Matt Fineour: 

 

As part of their site investigation plan  -- as part of their site investigation plan there’s three wells 

located on Culver’s property.  My eyesight is not going to be that great.  It’s M103, M102, there 

you go, those three wells.  The middle well when they took the groundwater testing in there had 

some contamination in it.  At the time that they did that first testing the contamination was below 

enforcement standards so basically it was below a standard that would designate it as highly 

contaminated where they would have to do something about it.  It was just above what they call a 

preventative action limit which means it’s kind of like a yellow light saying warning on it. 

 

So right now I would say there is some level of contamination on Culver’s.  However, the DNR 

and everybody feels like it’s defined based on those three wells at this point in time.  Part of their 

ongoing sampling will be to sample all those wells including the three on Culver’s.  And over a 

period of time there will be a trending report.  So the contamination in that well is either going to 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

14 

decrease, it’s going to stay the same or increase.  So the point being is what the DNR would like 

to see is that stabilized so it either decreases or at least stays the same. 

 

For Culver’s the DNR does publish or has a handout basically that goes over the rights of a 

property owner that has contamination from an adjacent property on it.  So they can get kind of a 

letter of exemption if you will from the DNR if they wanted to basically stating from the DNR 

that they’re not responsible for whatever’s on their site.  So there are steps that they can take.  But 

at this point in time that’s what’s been found. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other comment or question?  One other irritating -- like I said I’m irritated by a lot here tonight.  

One of the cavalier statements made by BP’s consultant was that Culver’s should not have bought 

a contaminated site if they had concerns about it.  I don’t believe Culver’s knew that was a 

contaminated site or there was contamination in that area when they purchased that property.  

Culver’s has always been a very upstanding corporate citizen, a great part of the Village, and 

we’re hoping hopefully that BP in the future can become that, too.  So those kind of statements, 

and they’re in the record on that, I felt were out of place.  Further comment or question, otherwise 

we’ll call the question.   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE AMENDMENT #3 TO THE SETTLEMENT  

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE AND VIDHYA CORP VIII, INC. TO MODIFY THE  

TESTING REQUIREMENTS AND TO FOLLOW THE RECOMMENDATION AND  

APPROVAL OF THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCE FOR  

TESTING AT THE BP AMOCO GASOLINE STATION AND CONVENIENCE STORE  

LOCATED AT 10477 120TH AVENUE; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION  

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There was one signup tonight, Trent Moede. 

 

Trent Moede: 

 

Village Board members and Mr. President. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Name and address please. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

15 

Trent Moede: 

 

My name is Trent Moede.  I live at 5314 87th Place.  My comments and talk this evening is in 

regard to my personal situation in my neighborhood.  I’ve been a resident of Pleasant Prairie for 

the last 16 years.  It’s a great community.  My wife and I enjoy living where we do.  Recently one 

of my neighbors due to relocation for a job moved to Iowa.  They couldn’t sell their house.  And 

their realtor thought it was a good idea seeing as it was vacated that they could subsidize or 

shoulder some of their burden with dual mortgage payments renting this place out. 

 

We’ve got tenants in there now, and I feel they’re not abiding by the governing rules and codes of 

the Village and that being single family resident, and they’re also operating a business which I 

don’t feel falls under the categories listed by businesses that are acceptable like a music teacher, 

an accountant or something like that.  And I’m just asking for Mr. Pollocoff, I’ve emailed him 

and copied Mr. Steinbrink on these emails over the past month and a half. 

 

Basically this started about six months ago when they moved in, and it really came to a head 

about a month and a half ago.  And I just feel that action needs to be taken.  Because right now I 

believe that although it appears from say a person that lives two blocks away that nothing’s going 

on there, but the people that border this property can see exactly what’s going on including 

myself.  I mean it’s evident.  Like I said it’s a personal thing.  But I feel if these people move in 

and take a position there it’s not going to be good for the community. 

 

The house is being used, like I said, to run a business.  It’s not a single family.  Like I said there’s 

numerous entities there.  And, like I said, I think these are violations, and I hope you can continue 

to be an advocate through lawful action to get this thing resolved, get these people out of there.  

Like I said, it’s just not a good situation. 

 

The individual that signed this agreement that runs this business has got felony charges against 

him.  Again, you can’t judge people for housing and stuff because of that.  But he’s running a 

private security business, and he’s got charges like suffocation, strangulation, impersonating a 

police officer.  I don’t think those are good credentials for an individual in that capacity.  And, 

like I said, I hope you can team up with me and help in my situation. 

 

Mr. Pollocoff lives about 100 or 250 yards maybe from my house.  I can look out my kitchen 

window and see Mr. Pollocoff’s house.  Unfortunately, like I said, unless you’re bordering this 

property you don’t see what’s going on.  And directly across the street there’s a young lady, a 

woman and her children.  A lot of people don’t want to get involved because these people are 

intimidating.  And I’m just hoping that through legal action we can get some resolution.  That’s 

really all I have to say.  And, like I say, the emails that I’ve sent both of you kind of sum it up.  

Thank you for your time. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak under citizen’s comments?  Seeing none I’ll close 

citizens’ comments. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

16 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, I’ll take this opportunity to respond to Mr. Moede.  We’ve investigated the 

complaint that was made.  We feel that there’s grounds for it.  We’re acting on it.  In fact, they’ve 

had until today to respond to the notice that they’ve been given that they’re in violation of the 

home occupation ordinance.  And we’re going to work that through.  This isn’t a criminal action 

where if we see something we take them to jail and start the process.  It’s an ordinance violation, 

a zoning violation.   

 

And we have a process we need to follow where somebody gets their notice, we tell them that we 

believe there’s a violation there.  They have the opportunity, and in that case it was through today 

to come in and visit with us about it.  If that doesn’t take place then the Village will issue an order 

noticing them to desist, that action.  If that doesn’t get resolved then the Village can take them to 

municipal court or we can go to circuit court depending on how egregious the violation is.   

 

The Police Department has done background work on it.  They’re fully aware of what’s going on 

there, and I think we’re in a good position.  It’s probably not as fast as some people would like, 

but I don’t think anybody would want ordinance violations to carry the strength of a criminal 

conviction if there was a question as to what was happening on the property, and we really don’t 

have that ability.  So we’re going to work through that.  It’s a deliberate pace.  We can address 

home occupations.   

 

We can’t address someone’s background, what they did in the past.  I mean there’s things that are 

probably interesting, but as a government we can only enforce what people do when they violate 

the ordinance of the Village.  If they make a criminal violation they’re going to have to deal with 

the police department, and we’ll prosecute that accordingly.  So I think that will resolve itself.  I 

won’t say it’s like watching paint dry, but it doesn’t happen really fast, but it happens with 

caution and due process. 

 

On a little bit lighter note this weekend is the Pleasant Prairie Triathlon.  It’s the one triathlon that  

the Village sponsors in and of ourselves.  It’s not a contract one.  This is the one that we do for 

ourselves.  And historically it’s done a lot of good things.  We use this triathlon to help spur 

programs at RecPlex to get people who want to get in shape and be able to try a triathlon and 

work on it.  It gives them the opportunity to lead up to it. 

 

One of the other things this triathlon does is it provides funds for the Pleasant Prairie Therapeutic 

Recreation Program which is a program for disabled individuals, whether it be cognitive or 

physical, that are typically not able to participate in your normal recreation programs.  And if not 

for that program they might be stuck sitting on a couch someplace.  It’s been a very successful 

program.  And proceeds from this event go to that. 

 

Normally we haven’t had a problem getting volunteers, but we did have one group that was going 

to provide a number of volunteers that said they couldn’t make it.  So we’re putting out a last 

minute call for anybody who is interested in volunteering to help us run this event.  That could be 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

17 

anything on Sunday morning.  We’ll probably be there at six and be out of there before noon.  All 

sorts of different tasks and help that we need whether it’s out in the neighborhoods or at Lake 

Andrea.  I’d encourage the public to contact Erin Winch at LakeView RecPlex.  Their number is 

925-6747.  And, again, this is a really good event, and it’s for a good cause.   

 

It’s kind of ironic that it leads into our first item under new business.  One of the ladies who 

helped us with that event originally, Barbara Peterson, she was a great volunteer for that event as 

well as the other triathlons.  If you spend the morning out there doing it you’ll see a lot of good 

things.  It’s good for the soul.  So that’s my only comment for my report tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Mike.  And as you said it’s a great segue into Item A under new business under Item 

8. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider Resolution #15-20 in Memory and Celebration of Barbara C. Peterson -- 

RecPlex Member #1. 
 

John Steinbrink: 

 

She was more than just our first RecPlex member as you know.  She was there to volunteer all the 

time for these causes and helping out wherever possible.  And her husband was never far behind.  

I think she kind of drug him along there.  

 

[Inaudible] 

 

William Peterson: 

 

 Can I say a few words on her behalf? 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

We’re going to give you the opportunity in one second. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Do you want me to do the resolution? 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Yes, we’re going to read the resolution. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

18 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

This is Resolution #15-20, Resolution memory and celebration of Barbara C. Peterson, RecPlex 

member number 1, number 1 of thousands that have been members.  Whereas, Barbara C. 

Peterson, with her husband William Peterson, made her home in Pleasant Prairie and lived here 

for more than 60 years; and whereas, Barbara C. Peterson became the first official member of 

Pleasant Prairie RecPlex upon its opening in the year 2000 and was a member for the remainder 

of her life; and whereas, Barbara C. Peterson was known to be a valued volunteer and an 

outstanding member of the community; and whereas, Barbara C. Peterson was also known to be a 

passionate advocate of living a healthy and balanced life and was a strong supporter of Pleasant 

Prairie RecPlex; and whereas, the Village of Pleasant Prairie would like to acknowledge and 

express sincere thanks for Barbara C. Peterson’s many years of membership at RecPlex and for 

her support of its mission to serve as a community gathering space and to provide healthy 

recreational opportunities to members of our community. 

 

Now, therefore be it resolved, that the Village of Pleasant Prairie does hereby wish to remember 

and celebrate Mrs. Barbara C. Peterson, RecPlex Member #1. The Village also wishes to extend 

our most sincere respect and appreciation to Barbara C. Peterson for all that she has done to build 

up our community.  For consideration this 15th day of June, 2015. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Mr. Peterson, if you’d like to say a few words.  Come up here.  But first we’re going to adopt this. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I move that we adopt the resolution. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Dave, second by Kris.  Any discussion on this before Mr. Peterson comes up?  We’re 

going to talk after you come up.  Mr. Peterson, come on up.   

 

 KLIMISCH MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #15-20 IN MEMORY AND 

CELEBRATION OF BARBARA C. PETERSON -- RECPLEX MEMBER #1; SECONDED BY 

KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

William Peterson: 

 

I’m sure she’s looking in on this meeting with a sense of pride really.  She thought the best of 

Pleasant Prairie.  To start with we stayed with the name Cooper Road that was going to be 52nd.  

Would you like to live on 52nd Street or Cooper Road?  She thought that was the best.  Anyway, 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

19 

it went through.  She always said that Pleasant Prairie has got class, and she felt classy living in 

Pleasant Prairie.  She came from Boise, Idaho, farming town.  Well, Boise is the capital of Idaho, 

and she lived here 60 years.  And every year she lived with pride.  And I’ll tell you she’d never 

eat meat.  Can’t go along with that.  But she did everything the best she could.  And I can’t say 

enough for her.  And I appreciate the Board what they’ve done for her.  Even though she got me 

up at 5:30 one morning so I could have the sense of being number 2.  That’s alright.  Thanks 

again.  Thank you, everybody.  Appreciate it. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Alright, thank you.  We’re just going to do a couple presentations here.  And maybe, Mr. 

Peterson, you can introduce everybody that’s here from the family if you want to come up here.  

We have a nice plaque here to present.  If you could just give us your names for the record first. 

 

Bobbi Peterson: 

 

Bobbi Peterson [inaudible]. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And tell us the relationship. 

 

Bobbi Peterson: 

 

That was our mom, and she was the most amazing lady on the planet.  And unfortunately 

sometimes you don’t realize that until later.  Like my dad said, she was from Boise, Idaho.  And 

she always said Kenosha’s not my home, Kenosha’s not my home, but Pleasant Prairie was her 

home.  She loved it.  She never, ever let us forget it.  Pleasant Prairie was it for her.  And like you 

said she was a volunteer, she was such a proponent for Pleasant Prairie.  It made us all really 

proud. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And when you take Cooper Road into effect she was an advocate also.  If you guys want to come 

up to the front real quick we have a couple plaques. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

There are two plaques.  One will hang at RecPlex so that all the current members and future 

members can see it at the RecPlex as well.  I think John has both of them there. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

These are the people that make it happen by joining up.  Here’s the plaque that’s going to be 

hung. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

20 

William Peterson: 

 

Thank you, everybody.  We appreciate it. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

We’ll give you a call as soon as it’s up which will be shortly. 

 

 B. Receive the 2014 Annual Report of the Kenosha Area Convention and Visitors 

Bureau. 
 

Dennis DuChene: 

 

Good evening.  Dennis DuChene, 8710 36th Avenue.  I’m here tonight to ask you to receive and 

file the 2014 annual report for the Kenosha Area Convention and Visitors Bureau.  As you can 

see by going through the report it was a great year for us, $181.3 million spent in the community.  

But I guess I would like to forego the numbers so to speak and talk about what really makes a 

difference in tourism in our community.  And it’s folks like Barbara that you just heard about 

before.  We host a lot of events in the community.  We have a lot of great attractions.  But 

without dedicated volunteers those events wouldn’t happen in our community.   

 

Without those events we would lose affordable opportunities for our kids to get involved in 

programming.  Probably the best example of that in Pleasant Prairie right now is the Aqua Arena.  

In 2014 there were 30 swim meets hosted there.  We welcomed 21,875 athletes at that facility, 

4,755 volunteer helped make that happen.  For those of you who have gone to a swim meet often 

there’s officials that work the meet.  They’ll be there for four or four and a half hours.  Usually 10 

to 12 of them totally volunteer their time often working the morning session of four hours and an 

afternoon session because that’s what they want to do for the kids. 

 

Pleasant Prairie Triathlon that was mentioned earlier I believe it’s the 13th annual event.  It was 

started in 2002 with a joint effort marketing grant from the department of tourism.  And it’s pretty 

amazing it’s been going on that long.  Again, that’s thanks to the volunteers.  Not only members 

of the community but different groups that come in.  And more importantly the Village Trustees.  

I think every one of you guys have been out there to volunteer at an event.  Some of you have 

been at every one of the events, and not every community is like that.  And I think that’s what 

makes Pleasant Prairie a special place.   

 

It’s what makes me proud to be able to represent this community in terms of tourism.  Bring folks 

in whether they’re going to compete in an event at RecPlex, visit Jelly Belly, go have a meal at 

Culver’s, shop at Premium Outlets.  They’re all great establishments, all have great owners, and 

add to the tourism experience in the Kenosha area.  I guess that’s really all I have.  I just want to 

thank you for your support.  A lot of municipalities in the State don’t understand tourism.  And 

Pleasant Prairie hasn’t been afraid to invest in tourism whether it’s investing in infrastructure, 

whether it be the roads, the RecPlex, different facilities in the area or just investing in our 

organization and allow us to market the community outside the Kenosha area.  So I’d like to 

thank you for that and answer any questions you may have. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

21 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you, Dennis.  And you guys do a great job with this.  And it’s often a thankless job.  But 

one comment, when you go through the report I don’t see many pictures of Pleasant Prairie in 

there.  So if anybody goes to an event and you have one of those iPhones take a picture, send 

them to Dennis at the Tourism Council and maybe we’ll get more pictures in there.  We do have a 

lot of events.  Like you said a lot of people volunteer and make this possible.  I’d just like to see 

more pictures of Pleasant Prairie. 

 

Dennis DuChene: 

 

And we can do that.  Probably one of the biggest things, too, this year we did is we redid our 

website.  So I would encourage you folks to go visit Kenosha.com.  And one of the reasons we 

went to that is Kenosha CVB didn’t quite roll off the tongue especially on the radio.  But there’s a 

lot of great pictures on there and videos and whatnot. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, thank you.  Comments or questions for Dennis? 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

One of the things that stood out for me from looking over the report a lot of information in there.  

But every year for at least the last five years with an up and down national and statewide 

economy every year the amount of dollars coming into Kenosha has gone up.  So applaud 

yourself, that’s impressive in a difficult economy. 

 

Dennis DuChene: 

 

Thank you.  Since 2010 I think we’ve average six percent growth per year. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And one thing people don’t realize when I was on the tourism committees at the State that every 

dollar the State would invest in tourism had a big return for the State and, in turn, many dollars 

not only to the State but to the communities.  And we need to remind people in this budget cutting 

time that sometimes by cutting dollars you’re really not helping things out.  But the State has 

been a little better in that.  But when you look at the dollars places like Wisconsin Dells put into it 

it makes the State look pretty bleak in the numbers they put in.  What is the return on it, Dennis, 

for every dollar that’s put in? 

 

Dennis DuChene: 

 

I believe it’s six to one. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

22 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Six to one return.  I mean that’s better that going to Potawatomi.  Other questions for Dennis? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Keep up the good work Dennis.  I’d move to receive and file. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

Second. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE 2014 ANNUAL REPORT OF THE  

KENOSHA AREA CONVENTION AND VISITORS BUREAU; SECONDED BY KLIMISCH;  

MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Resolution #15-21 for a 

Floodplain Boundary Adjustment on the property located at 12575 Uline Drive for 

the purpose of constructing a conference center between the Uline Corporate Office 

building and the easternmost warehouse building on the property. 
 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a request for Resolution 15-21, and this is for a 

floodplain boundary adjustment.  And this is at the request of Matt Carey with Pinnacle 

Engineering Group.  Specifically Uline is requesting -- Route 165 LLC as the owner is requesting 

to remove 2,226 cubic yards from the 100 year floodplain and to create 3,795 cubic yards of 100 

year floodplain.  And this is to compensate for that floodplain area being filled.  And this is for 

the purpose of constructing a conference center between the Uline corporate office building and 

the easternmost warehouse building on the property. 

 

Again, the floodplain will be impacted within the interior of the retention pond as discussed at the 

Plan Commission meeting.  The floodplain will be entirely contained on the Uline property.  It 

will not impact any adjacent properties.  Again, the intent is that this conference center will be 

adjacent to and over a portion of the water.  But, again, they’re not impacting within the 100 year 

floodplain.  I guess at the Plan Commission meeting there was a few concerns raised by an 

adjacent landowner, by Jockey International.  They worked through all of those issues with Uline.  

They have no other concerns with respect to the proposal.   

 

The site specifically then is used to construct a two level 22,500 square foot Uline conference 

center generally in the north side banks of the existing retention basin.  Again, it’s going to be 

about 300 feet away from their corporate office facility.  And just as we presented at Plan 

Commission this is just an illustration or an artist rendering of what the conference center is going 

to look like.  Again, this is a process, it’s an engineering calculation process.  The Plan 

Commission recommended approval.  I’m recommending that the Board adopt Resolution 15-21 

for this floodplain boundary adjustment.   



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

23 

 

This will next need to go onto the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources for their approval.  

And FEMA will also need to grant formal approval for them.  They are looking to move it onto 

the next steps so they can get under construction this summer.  The staff recommends approval 

subject to the comments and conditions as outlined in the staff memorandum and as discussed by 

the Plan Commission. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Move to accept Resolution 15-21 as outlined. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Kris, second by Steve.  Any further discussion? 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

You mentioned that they hope for construction beginning later this summer. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

That’s anticipated. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

And completion then early next year? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

August of 2016 according to Randy Copenharve in the audience. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

And mixed used or just solely for Uline? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

It’s a private facility, so it’s intended to be various types of functions that they intend to host 

there.  I think they wrote down some of the items that they were looking to do.  They will have 

events that could accommodate between 200 and 300 attendees.  Events at the conference center 

will be held in the morning, afternoon and evenings, on the weekdays and on the weekends.  The 

building includes a large gathering area on the main level overlooking the pond.  And there’s an 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

24 

outdoor deck.  No new employees will be hired to run the events at the conference center.  Their 

existing corporate staff would be utilized to coordinate the events.  They may use catering 

companies.  Their parking will be accommodated by their existing 800 plus parking lot that is 

located to the north. 

 

And actually at this point they’ve received preliminary site and operational plans from the Plan 

Commission at their last meeting.  And they are now going to be moving to finalize the detailed 

final site and operational plans.  Preliminary would allow them with this adjustment to actually do 

some mass grading and get the utilities going to the site as well as to do the footings and 

foundation.  Again, they’ll be submitting more detailed plans to us to file that in one of the 

upcoming Plan Commission meetings. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Okay, thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other comments or questions? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

It’s an amazing company, absolutely amazing. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Bit asset for the community. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

My biggest concern from the Planning Commission was Jockey’s concerns and the boundary line.  

There’s no encroachment? 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

There’s no encroachment.  Everything is within the Uline boundaries. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

It’s still a one to three slope.  It looks nice. 

 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 

 

Correct. 

 

  



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

25 

 KECKLER MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION  

RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT RESOLUTION #15-21 FOR A FLOODPLAIN  

BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 12575 ULINE DRIVE FOR  

THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A CONFERENCE CENTER BETWEEN THE ULINE  

CORPORATE OFFICE BUILDING AND THE EASTERNMOST WAREHOUSE BUILDING ON  

THE PROPERTY; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 E. Consider an award of contract for Municipal Solid Waste Disposal. 
 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, on May 19th an RFP for municipal solid waste disposal 

was issued on VendorNet and also advertised in the Kenosha News legal for two weeks and 

mailed to three local landfills.  It’s the three landfills that are within a 20 mile radius of Pleasant 

Prairie.  On Thursday, June 4th at 9 a.m. three bids were received for municipal solid waste 

disposal.  The proposals were evaluated based on the annual tipping fee.  That’s the price that the 

Village has to pay per ton to dump solid waste or the garbage at their landfill facility. 

 

I’ll go over the analysis real quick here.  Of the three that were submitted a breakdown of the 

analysis is the tipping cost for years one, two and three, it is a three year contract, so we estimated 

tons per year based on historical projections, the tipping fee cost per year one, two and three, and 

we multiplied the tons per year times the tipping fee to come up with what we’re actually 

expecting to pay the landfill. 

 

But in addition to that analysis the other cost is our transportation cost to get the solid waste to the 

landfill.  We do that currently with our collection vehicles.  We have four vehicles that we run on 

a daily basis, and they make trips or multiple trips based on the amount of solid waste that they 

pick up per day.  And so we take those fees, we have timed how long it takes to get from the 

Prange Municipal Center at 8600 Green Bay Road to each of the three landfills, dump and come 

back, times the 910 trips that we estimate to have per year.   

 

And then you factor all that together we came up with three numbers at the bottom there.  So for 

Advanced Disposal with just over $1.052 million, Kestral Hawk was a little big larger number at 

$1.105 million, and Waste Management which is the Paris landfill site $1.13 million as an 

estimate.  This really becomes a function of the distance that our collections trucks have to travel. 

 

The tipping as you can see is really within $1.50 per ton that we collect, but it’s really the tipping 

fee component of it which is an actual true cost of the solid waste.  And so I guess with that all 

being said I am recommending a contract for the three years be entered into with Advanced 

Disposal for a tipping fee of year one of $33.50 per ton, year two of $44.60 and year three of 

$45.75 per year.  And I can answer any questions. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Where is Advanced located, John? 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

26 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Advanced Disposal is just south of Russell Road on Green Bay Road.  It’s the Zion Landfill. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

They’re expanding that landfill I hear. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yeah, I believe they’re on 27 more years that they can take solid waste material at that landfill. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I think it’s economical.  I like how you ran the numbers for the labor and for the trips.  I know 

that’s a lot of math.  I move the motion. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Dave, second by Mike.  Any further discussion? 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Just an associated one.  If I’m remembering back months ago during the budget option process 

you were giving the decline in usage of the Village overall with recycling and the concern of 

residents sometimes getting a little bit lazy with what they’re choosing to recycle or notifications 

that the public works department might take in helping promote recycling.  Has there been any 

noticeable change in that regard? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Right after the meeting for a couple months we did actually increase our diversion rate.  The 

diversion rate is the percentage of recycling that is pulled out of the solid waste stream.  And so it 

did go down for the amount of -- the amount of garbage went down, recycling went up for a 

couple months and then it’s kind of leveled off.  So it’s really a continuing education component 

of it.  And now with the budget coming out and with the newsletter we do plan on pushing that a 

little bit more again, and hopefully we can get back to the higher diversion numbers. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Okay, thank you. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

27 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

John, I think one of the questions that has been asked to me several times is what happens with 

the shopping bags, plastic bags.  So put it in the garbage, don’t put it in recycling, correct? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Right, you are correct. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

But not less [inaudible] per year.  We have to clarify that.  The plastic bags from shopping goes in 

the garbage, not in the recycling. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Right, that is correct.  And we can update our list if that’s not currently there. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Yes, update that, yes. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

I’ll make sure we have staff do that for the next release. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

That diversion rate that Kris was talking about is that published and promoted? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We talk about it during our budget process, and it’s one of our trending reports that we do and so 

the Board and the public gets to see it on an annual basis.  We record it on a monthly basis, but 

we really don’t advertise it. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

If we’re looking to increase public education because it’s a direct cost savings, if we increase the 

recycling diversion maybe we could consider putting that into our monthly newsletter or on the 

website.  Keep that diversion rate so people know where we’re at if it’s trending higher or 

trending lower. 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

28 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

I think that’s a great idea, and I can work with Chris Christenson to have that at least on our 

website on a monthly basis as we tabulate those as well. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And then they can show the trends over time. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Sure and you can see what’s up and what’s down. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And tie that to the cost savings. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

We can have multiple year. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

So much a ton or even break it down to so much a can how much money we’re saving. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yeah, we can absolutely do that.  That’s a great idea, thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other comments or questions?   

 

 KLIMISCH MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO ADVANCED DISPOSAL FOR 

MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AS OUTLINED; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0 

 

 F. Consider an award of contract for Single Stream Recycling. 
 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, on April 14th an RFP for single stream recycling was 

issued to VendorNet, the Kenosha News legal, and we sent it out to six local recycling processing 

companies.  On May 7th bids were publically opened and read aloud.  Two bids were received.  

The proposals were evaluated based on the processing fee which is the same as a tipping fee in 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

29 

the solid waste world and travel costs to the recycling facilities.  And then we have a bid analysis 

sheet on the next slide. 

 

The recycling is a little bit more complex to do an analysis on.  So what we asked the proponents 

to do is give us for whatever the way that you want to attribute the proceeds to the Village do it 

over a historical prior 12 month period.  And so we went through and we did that.  And you can 

see Advanced Disposal wants to pay us or is proposing to pay us a percentage based on the value 

market of the individual recyclables.  And so there’s a value for aluminum, tin, PETs for 

cardboard, loose paper, stuff like that.  So based on the monthly value of those recyclables how 

much per ton it’s how much the Village receives of those net proceeds. 

 

And so we take that over a historical breakdown of how many tons that we brought to the MRF 

which is where they do the transferring, how much we would have received as a rebate or as a 

charge from that company.  So Advanced Disposal we would have received $6,300.  From Johns 

Disposal they’re just looking at giving us a standard 80 percent of the value of the material, we 

would have received $18,677.  And so that’s just for the actual value of the recycling materials. 

 

Right now the value of recycling material is down from where it’s been trending historically, 

probably the lowest that it’s been since we’ve had our recycling or since we’ve been doing it in 

house.  So when you take the same logic that we did with the solid waste and you’re taking our 

transportation costs and factor them in the Advanced Disposal is actually right down the road in 

Kenosha on Highway 31 and 52nd Street about four and a half miles away.  The next closest 

processing center is Johns Recycling, and they have a new one in north Racine around Six Mile 

Road and Highway 45.  And that’s a little bit more of a hike at 28 miles down there.  And so it’s 

really a function of transportation. 

 

So even though at a first glance it would look like it’s a little bit more attractive to go with Johns 

Disposal because we would receive more rebates, by the time you factor in our transportation 

costs, take an average of 780 trips per year, it’s almost $50,000 cheaper to enter into a contract 

with Advanced Disposal.  So at this time I’m going to recommend a contract with Advanced 

Disposal for three years at the proceeds for the Village being at the percentage that’s listed in the 

RFP.  And I can answer any questions. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

John, I appreciate the effort you put into this to explain the savings by staying almost local.  And 

your explanation was great.  I’d move approval for Advanced. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Further discussion? 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

30 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

One thing I want the Board to remain aware of there’s discussion in the State budget of removing 

the recycling rebate which is a grant that we receive.  I believe it’s been as high as $70,000.  One 

of the estimates might be it would come down to $32,000.  And the other one is to eliminate it 

completely.  So we’ve applied that grant to our cost of service to reduce our recycling charges to 

make that more feasible.  So the numbers we see here today pending whatever gets approved in 

the State budget will conversely affect our rates so that once we know what that is and we prepare 

our rates for next year we’ll incorporate whatever grant we get or lack thereof into our rates. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I believe [inaudible] municipalities they were going to remove [inaudible]. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Until Joint Finance is done -- 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

The second time, okay. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

That’s something they can say they want to keep it in, but really until Joint Finance acts on the 

budget and prepares that and sends it to the Governor.  And it could still be in there, and the 

Governor has the ability to line item veto that out.  So really it’s on there.  They’ve looked at 

before eliminating it, and as communities we’ve been able to forestall that.  But what we’re 

getting is less and less every year.  And I think given how short they are this is one of the things. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Maybe the State should eliminate the budget process, just send every municipality a bill and just 

pay everything through a building process.  That’s just about what they’re doing. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

You think the original [inaudible] 1911 [inaudible] it was 70 percent of the [inaudible], 20 

percent worked for the county and 10 percent went to the state.  And now they’ve got 95 percent 

to the state and we’ve got peanuts. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Poor management is short of money.  Motion and a second.  Any further discussion?   

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

31 

 SERPE MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT FOR SINGLE STREAM RECYCLING TO 

ADVANCED DISPOSAL AS OUTLINED; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 G. Consider the purchase of an ambulance chassis and module. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, we put out an RFP for a new ambulance and chassis.  So tonight I’d like to have 

Deputy Chief Roepke explain the process and what’s being recommended from the department. 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board good evening.  The Fire and Rescue Department 

submits for your consideration the purchase of a replacement ambulance.  As part of the scope 

this version of our replacement includes both the chassis and the module.  Historically in the past 

we would purchase the chassis in one budget cycle and the module the next.  We’re also looking 

at equipping this vehicle with the four wheel drive capability.  Additionally, we’re changing up 

the design a little bit in what we refer to as a door forward which I have an example.  If you 

notice historically the bottom graphic is what we typically have been utilizing in the past.  So 

with the different design this gives us more interior continuous space in the patient area.  So it’s 

definitely a better workable interior. 

 

So we put out three bids, LifeLine, Road Rescue and Foster Coach, Horton.  We received two 

bids back from Foster Coach and Road Rescue, Everest Emergency Vehicles out of St. Paul.  The 

raw bids came back, Horton from Foster Coach at $195,682.  Their exceptions were more of 

comments and clarifications.  For instance, they commented on discontinued items with their 

recommended replacements, things that we had specified in our proposal.  Their 

recommendations through their history of experience they recommended similar products and just 

clarifications of we wanted a certain size cabinet, but we also wanted something interiorly.  Just 

physically you couldn’t have both.  So we had to clarify which do we want.  Do we want the 

[inaudible] exterior cabinet or do we want drawers inside. 

 

Foster Coach also provided very detailed proposal drawings which it made it much visually 

clearer to understand what the product would likely look like.  And they also had standard design 

elements that they have in their current vehicles. 

 

The next bid from Road Rescue, Everest Emergency Vehicle, was $195,000.  They had notable 

exceptions.  Essentially they indicated that most of the module would be a custom module.  And 

also the patient module, the box essentially, would be dimensionally smaller than what we’ve 

specified.  They did not include any proposal drawings which made it very difficult for us to 

visualize -- when they told us they were moving things around interiorly we couldn’t visualize 

that very well.  And ultimately they really didn’t meet the spec or the proposal. 

 

So what we’re proposing is to go with Foster Coach Horton.  Here’s a breakdown on some of the 

larger elements.  The original Foster Coach bid, the $195,682 we spoke after seeing the proposal, 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

32 

and we’ve added an additional $820 of items that we omitted from the original proposal.  In 

addition to some of the larger loose equipment items we listed there a striker power cot and also 

the radio package for those dollar amounts that you see there for a proposed total of $240,238.  So 

our recommendation with the original budget of $260,495 we propose to purchase this ambulance 

for $240,238. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Craig, who manufactured our previous rescue squad? 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

The company MedTech, and Oshkosh Truck bought them which they immediately closed 

MedTech down.  In addition to that we’ve had a great relationship with Foster Coach who we 

purchased the past three MedTechs from, and we continue to get parts from them today.  They’re 

very customer oriented. I can call them today and we’ll have the part tomorrow. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Craig, don’t most municipalities do about the same stocking of a vehicle or equip them the same 

way? 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

For the most part.  In the past two to three years with the new medical director and some of the 

things that we’re looking to change, for instance if you’re looking at the packet, we were actually 

looking to include an IV warmer, a refrigerator.  Those actually are a pretty big departure from 

the past.  The reason for that, there are some medications that we will potentially carry in the next 

two to five years with keeping them cook will enhance their longevity.  Or IV warmers for 

warming IV fluid or blankets.  So the things that we’ve done with our medical director and our 

different interventions and procedures some of those new adjuncts will help us. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

So communities like ours could be doing more than other communities are doing? 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

Right.  Just as an example the power cot.  We’re probably one of the last services in the region to 

utilize the power cot.  It’s pretty much the defacto standard in the industry. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

The price for the Foster Coach Horton was slightly different than what I have on my screen.  That 

one, $195,682. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

33 

Craig Roepke: 

 

And should be the additional of the $820. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

Okay, so here I’ve got $196,502, just a touch more. 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

I would have to look at the numbers.  But the 240, 238 is what we would be looking at. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

And there’s a prepayment discount?  We’re paying all this up front to get the $3,500 savings? 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

Yes, in addition there’s what they refer to as a WEMSA, the Wisconsin EMS Association 

discount as well. 

 

Dave Klimisch: 

 

I move approval. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Dave, second by Mike.  Any discussion? 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

The literature related to the HOPS program, the Protection and Occupancy When n Motion, have 

we had any instances of any of our personnel getting injured? 

 

Craig Roepke: 

 

Fortunately no. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Okay, thank you. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

34 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Other comments or questions?   

 

 KLIMISCH MOVED TO PURCHASE AN AMBULANCE CHASSIS AND MODULE  

FROM FOSTER COACH/HORTON IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $240,238 AS OUTLINED;  

SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 

 H. Consider the disallowance of a claim filed as a result of a sewer backup at 4500 83rd 

Street. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, the Village received a claim for damages for a  sanitary sewer backup at 4500 83rd 

Street.  We referred this claim for damages to our insurance company who investigated it and 

determined that the Village’s actions and maintenance of this didn’t constitute negligence.  I 

recommend the Village Board disallow the claim.  The individual involved if they wish to pursue 

this further they have 120 days to file a notice of claim for action to proceed farther, but this 

would be the first step in that process. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Do we know what caused the backup? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No.  I think there was a question as to whether or not it was a private lateral and a public lateral.  I 

think nine times out of ten that’s what it is. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I move to concur with the recommendation to disallow? 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Kris.  Any further discussion?   

 

 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE VILLAGE  

ADMINISTRATOR TO DISALLOW A CLAIM FILED AS A RESULT OF A SEWER BACKUP  

AT 4500 83RD STREET; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

35 

 I. Consider the 2015-2016 Towing License renewal applications. 
 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

By ordinance a towing license is required to perform towing services for or at the request of the 

Village or the PD.  The Police Department keeps a list of the licenses, and they are called on a 

rotation basis.  If the driver indicates a difference preference of a towing company then they 

would go off the list and they can deviate from it.  So the licensees are required to be available 24 

hours a day and respond within 15 minutes.  And the ordinance has a few other regulations.  It 

also sets forth a standard fee schedule for towing services and the claiming of vehicles that makes 

sure that all licensees charge the same and follow the same rules. 

 

So we have the renewal applications.  These companies have had licenses in the Village for quite 

some time.  We have Atlas Service Center, Firehouse Performance, J & M Towing, Jantz 

Towing, Jensen & Jensen and Pro Towing.  And all applications comply with section 332 of the 

municipal code.  And Chief Smetana has also given his approval of the renewal of these licenses.  

And I would recommend that they be renewed effective July 1st through June 30th of next year 

subject to the conditions outlined in the ordinance. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I have a question.  Is J & M and Pro Towing one and the same company? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

No, they signed a financial interest disclaimer indicating that they are not. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I mean their addresses are almost identical, and that would put them on the list twice compared to 

somebody else being on it.  If you’re satisfied with it I’m satisfied. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Unless they’re just locations to store vehicles are close.  Maybe that’s the address they use.  She 

took over Glasman Towing.  Remember Glasman was towing for a lot of years. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Out in Bristol. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

They did sign the information that they were not financially included with another company. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

36 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

We can take another look at it. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We’ll take another look definitely.  Before I issue them I will. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Move approval of the towing license -- 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Based off recommendations and verification of separate entities. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Kris, second by Steve.  Any other discussion?   

 

 KECKLER MOVED TO APPROVE THE 2015-2016 TOWING LICENSES FOR ATLAS 

SERVICE CENTER, FIREHOUSE PERFORMANCE, J & M TOWING, JANTZ TOWING, 

JENSEN & JENSEN AND PRO TOWING AND TO ALSO CHECK THAT J & M AND PRO 

TOWING ARE NOT WORKING TOGETHER UNDER TWO SEPARATE LICENSES; 

SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 J. Consider a Letter of Credit Reduction for the Ashbury Creek Subdivision. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, we’ve been presented with a letter of reduction in the amount of $4,573 from the 

development agreement for Ashbury Creek.  I believe this last amount is for the remaining street 

trees to be installed in the subdivision.  And I believe that completes the letter of credit.  I’d 

recommend that the Village President and Clerk execute the document so we can provide this to 

the developer and close that account out. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

June 15, 2015 

 

 

37 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Kris.  Any discussion?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE A LETTER OF CREDIT REDUCTION IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $4,573 FOR THE ASHBURY CREEK DEVELOPMENT; SECONDED BY 

KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KECKLER; 

MOTION CARRIED AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:30 P.M. 



MEMORANDUM 
 

Date: June 23, 2015 

 

To: Village Board of Trustees 

 

From: Jane M. Romanowski 

 Village Clerk 

 

Re: Kwik Trip 230 – 10451 72
nd

 Avenue 

 Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License Application 

 

 
Joshua Specht, Agent for Kwik Trip, Inc. has applied for a Class "A" Fermented Malt Beverage 

License for the Kwik Trip store currently under construction at 10451 72
nd

 Avenue.  A Class "A" 

License allows for the sale of fermented malt beverages (beer and certain wine coolers that are 

not wine-based) to consumers in original packages or containers for off-premises consumption 

only from 8 a.m. - 12:00 midnight.    

 

Attached is a list of the Kwik Trip stores in Wisconsin as well as the company’s Alcohol Sales 

Policy.  The store is scheduled to be completed by July 31
st
 with business operations to begin on 

August 6, 2015.   

  

Mr. Specht has met the agent requirements including the approval of Chief Smetana.  I 

recommend a Class "A" Fermented Malt Beverage License be issued to Joshua Specht, agent for 

Kwik Trip, Inc. subject to the following conditions: 

 

 1. Payment of license fees and publications costs. 

 2. Certificate of Occupancy issued by the Fire & Rescue, Inspection and Community 

 Development Departments. 
  

The license, if granted, will be issued when all conditions have been met and will expire June 30, 

2016. 

 
 * * * * * 































 

9915 39th Avenue,   Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    
Telephone 262.925.6707 . FAX 262.925.6785 

Office of the Village Assessor 
Rocco Vita 

 
 
 

Memorandum 
 

Date: June 29, 2015 
To:  Pleasant Prairie Village Board 
CC:  Michael Pollocoff, Village Administrator  
From: Rocco Vita 
  Pleasant Prairie Assessor 
Re: Sanmina Corporation; Tax Appeals Commission Decision; Claim for Property Tax Refund  

Parcel Number: 92-4-122-213-0105 
Years of Appeal: 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012 

 
Board Members: 
 
Pursuant to a recent decision of the Wisconsin Tax Appeals Commission (WI TAC), Sanmina 
Corporation has filed a claim with the Village of Pleasant Prairie for refunds of property taxes 
paid for the years 2009, 2010, 2011, 2012. 
 
Under Wisconsin law, the entire property assessment process involving manufacturing property 
is facilitated by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (WI DOR). The WI DOR has staff that 
annually determines the property value of manufacturing property and defends the value during 
the appeal process. Sanmina Corporation is a manufacturer of high-tech parts and components 
for technology industries and is located within the Lakeview Corporate Park. As such, their 
property assessment is determined by the WI DOR.  
 
Sanmina Corp. was assessed by the WI DOR for the tax years 2009 through 2012 and has 
appealed their assessed value of each of those years to the WI TAC. A recent decision by the WI 
TAC found in favor of the Sanmina Corp. for each year on appeal and orders the following: 
 

2009: Reduce the DOR’s assessed value from $8,948,900 by  $2,198,900 to  $6,750,000. 
2010: Reduce the DOR’s assessed value from $7,976,400 by  $1,226,400 to  $6,750,000. 
2011: Reduce the DOR’s assessed value from $8,225,400 by  $2,330,400 to  $5,925,000. 
2012: Reduce the DOR’s assessed value from $7,856,500 by  $1,931,500 to  $5,925,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

9915 39th Avenue,   Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    
Telephone 262.925.6707 . FAX 262.925.6785 

Office of the Village Assessor 
Rocco Vita 

 
 
 
 
 
Based on the preceding decision of the WI TAC, Sanmina claims a refund of paid property tax 
plus statutory interest for the tax years of 2009 to 2012 as follows: 
 

2009: Refund of $36,425.92 plus interest of $500.86 for a total refund of $36,926.78. 
2010: Refund of $23,823.77 plus interest of $203.69 for a total refund of $24,027.46. 
2011: Refund of $45,231.08 plus interest of $  79.15 for a total refund of $45,310.23. 
2012: Refund of $40,874.31 plus interest of $143.06 for a total refund of $41,017.37. 

 
For the tax years 2009 through 2012, Sanmina Corp. claims a refund of $146,355.09 plus interest 
of $926.76 for a total amount of $147,281.85.  
 
Note: the interest stated is through July 31, 2015 and continues to accrue at $0.60 per day.  
 

 
 















































































1 
 

THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE SAME TIME 

HOWEVER SEPARATE ACTION IS REQUIRED. 

 

Consider approval of a Conceptual Plan for the request of Bob Poch, agent for Care Animal 

Hospital to construct an 11,021 square foot veterinary office on the vacant property 

generally located on the north side of Prairie Ridge Blvd. west of 88th Avenue within the 

Prairie Ridge development. 

Recommendation:  On June 22, 2105, the Plan Commission held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board approve the Conceptual Plan subject to the 

comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report of July 6, 2015. 

 

 

Consider the request of David Galowich, agent on behalf of the owners SB1 Pleasant Prairie, 

WI LLC for approval of a Certified Survey Map to subdivide the property generally located 

on the north side of Prairie Ridge Blvd. west of 88th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge 

development. 

Recommendation:  Plan Commission recommended that the Village Board approve the 

Certified Survey Map subject to the comments and conditions of the Village Staff Report 

of July 6, 2015. 

 

 

 



2 
 

VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JULY 6, 2015 

 

Consider approval of a Conceptual Plan for the request of Bob Poch, agent for Care Animal 

Hospital to construct an 11,021 square foot veterinary office on the vacant property 

generally located on the north side of Prairie Ridge Blvd. west of 88th Avenue within the 

Prairie Ridge development. 

Consider the request of David Galowich, agent on behalf of the owners SB1 Pleasant Prairie, 

WI LLC for approval of a Certified Survey Map to subdivide the property generally located 

on the north side of Prairie Ridge Blvd. west of 88th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge 

development. 

 

THESE ITEMS ARE RELATED AND WILL BE DISCUSSED AT THE SAME TIME 

HOWEVER SEPARATE ACTION IS REQUIRED. 

 

The petitioners are requesting to subdivide the property generally located  on the north side 

of Prairie Ridge Blvd. west of 88th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge development into two (2) 

Lots and for the approval of a Conceptual Plan for the development of the of Lot 1 for a 

veterinary clinic.  

2013 Conceptual Plan:  On September 16, 2013, the Village Board approved a Conceptual 

Plan to subdivide Outlot 17 of the Prairie Ridge Subdivision into four (4) lots and approved 

CSM 2744, which subdivided Outlot 17 into 2 parcels.  The property at the southeastern 

portion of the 2013 Conceptual Plan is proposed to be created by a new CSM and developed 

with a veterinary clinic.  The CSM and the Conceptual Plan (attached) will be discussed 

further below.  The Conceptual Plan submitted and discussed below generally conforms to 

the 2013 Conceptual Plans, with the exception of the cross access location. (The Outlot 17 

Prairie Ridge Conceptual Plan will need to be modified to depict the Care Animal Hospital 

site layout and cross access).   

The wetlands on the site were re-delineated by Wetland and Waterway Consultants on 

September 2, 2011 and are located within Dedicated Wetland Preservation and Protection, 

Access and Maintenance Easements and will be located on the new lot being created.  If the 

veterinary clinic development does not occur within five (5) years from date of the ACOE 

approval which would be March 29, 2017, then a new wetland staking will be required prior 

to development of the property. 

Certified Survey Map:  The Certified Survey Map is proposed to create two lots pursuant 

to the Master Conceptual Plan.   

 Lot 1 is proposed to be 2.161 acres with over 350 feet of frontage on Prairie Ridge 

Blvd.  This lot is proposed to be developed with a veterinary clinic.  

 Lot 2 is proposed to be 4.880 acres with over 400 feet of frontage on Prairie Ridge 

Blvd. and over 550 feet of frontage on 91st Avenue.  No uses are proposed at this 

time on this lot. 

Conceptual Plan:  The petitioner is proposing to construct an 11,800 square foot 

veterinary clinic on Lot 1 of the proposed CSM.  This veterinary clinic, referred to as Care 

Animal Hospital, is proposing to relocate from their existing location on the north side of 

Highway 50 in the Village to a new larger facility.  The existing business activity will be 

similar to Care Animal’s existing location.  Care Animal Hospital treats dogs, cats and exotic 

pets, and offers from routine preventative care to orthopedic surgery by six (6) 

veterinarians.  The new facility will include an under-roof dog exercise area that is about 



3 
 

300 to 400 square feet.   

There will be no pet cremation on site. Animals that die will be refrigerated and picked up by 

a removal company. 

The clinic is proposed to operate Monday – Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and 

Saturdays from 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  The Care Animal Hospital is proposed to be open 

for emergency services up to 24-hours per day only on an on-call basis. 

The number of employees anticipated is 32 working various shifts throughout the day.  It is 

anticipated that there would be between 128 and 160 customer visits per day and one (1) 

to two (2) truck deliveries per day.  The facility is proposed to open in the fall of 2017. 

Pursuant to the Village Zoning Ordinance, the minimum required parking spaces for a 

veterinary clinic is four (4) spaces for every doctor (6 doctors x 4 =24), plus one (1) space 

for every employee (32 employees), plus the required handicapped accessible parking 

spaces as required by the State Code (3 parking spaces).  The minimum required number of 

parking spaces required is 59 parking spaces which include the 3 handicapped accessible 

spaces.  The plans provide for 71 parking spaces (including 3 handicapped accessible 

parking spaces).  The parking provided exceeds the minimum parking requirements of the 

zoning ordinance. 

Storm water management for the site is provided for at the ponds located to the northwest 

and southwest of the intersection of Prairie Ridge Boulevard and 88th Avenue.  Storm water 

from the proposed building and east parking lot shall be conveyed by a new storm sewer to 

the northwest pond and storm water piping from the west parking lot shall be connected up 

to the catch basin located 235’ west of the east property line.  (The storm sewer shown on 

the plans is a 4” drain tile and is not to be used for storm water conveyance).  

Detailed Site and Operational Plans and a Conditional Use Permit will be required to be 

submitted for the Village’s approval.  In addition, a Zoning Text Amendment (PUD) will be 

required to allow for dimensional modifications of the Zoning Ordinance including: 

 a 10 foot setback instead of the required 20 foot side setback for east parking lot,  

 a 5 foot setback instead of the required 25 foot setback for the parking lot to the 

wetlands, and 

 a 10 foot setback instead of the required 25 foot building setback to wetlands for the 

building expansion area. 

The developer/owner is providing full building sprinklers and will be installing a Digital 

Security Imaging System (DSIS) pursuant to Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code as 

part of the required community benefits being provided to the Village.  The specific PUD will 

be prepared by the Village staff and reviewed by the Village Plan Commission at the time of 

that the Site and Operational Plans/Conditional Use Permit application is submitted to the 

Village. 

The Plan Commission held a public hearing on June 22, 2105 and recommended that the 

Village Board conditionally approve the Conceptual Plan subject to the above comments 

and the following conditions: 

1. The Conceptual Plan approval will be valid for a period of one (1) year.  Prior to the 

expiration of the Conceptual Plan, the developer will be required to submit 

applications and required documents for the following approvals: Site and 

Operational Plan with a Conditional Use Permit and Zoning Text Amendment to 

create a specific PUD for the development for the following: 

 a 10 foot setback instead of the required 20 foot side setback for east parking 

lot,  



4 
 

 a 5 foot setback instead of the required 25 foot setback for the parking lot to 

the wetlands, and 

 a 10 foot setback instead of the required 25 foot building setback to wetlands 

for the building expansion area. 

2. Detailed Site and Operational Plans are required to be submitted for review and 

approval prior to any permits being issued for the development pursuant to Article IX 

of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  In addition, a Conditional Use Permit will be 

required for the proposed veterinary clinic.  This is a joint application to be filed. 

3. The Conceptual Plans were reviewed for compliance with generally accepted 

engineering practices and Village policies.  Although the data has been reviewed, the 

design engineer is responsible for the thoroughness and accuracy of plans and 

supplemental data and for their compliance with all State and local codes, 

ordinances, and procedures. Modifications to the plans, etc. may be required should 

errors or changed conditions be found at a future date and detailed engineering 

plans are prepared and reviewed.  The following changes shall be made and 

incorporated into the required Site and Operational Plans.   

a. Include a Location Map. 

b. Provide the parcel size in acres and square feet. 

c. The Sheet Index information at the upper right corner of Sheet C1-0 shall list 

all five (5) plan sheets included in the submittal. 

d. Include the following zoning designations on the Plans.  The developable/non-

wetland portion of the property is zoned B-2 (PUD), Community Business 

District with a Planned Unit Development Overlay.  The wetland portion of the 

property is zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District.  

e. Under Zoning Information remove the note per Jean’s email – a PUD will need 

to be approved by the Village Board to address dimensional variations. 

f. Label the abutting parcels with ownership and tax parcel number information. 

g. The B-2 District and parking regulations require a minimum 25 foot wetland 

setback.  The plan shall depict and dimension the 25 foot wetland setback 

line.  Portions of the west parking lot and the future 2,450 sq. ft. building 

expansion do not meet the 25 foot wetland setback requirement.   Any 

building addition or parking lot/driveway must meet a minimum of 10 foot 

setback to the wetlands. 

h. The wetland shall be labeled with the delineation information, i.e. the entity 

that performed the delineation, the date of the delineation and the WIDNR 

concurrence information.  The wetland may need to be re-delineated if 

permits are not obtained and work does not commence prior to the 5 year 

wetland delineation approval date of March 29, 2017. 

i. Add setbacks for building and paved surfaces to the property lines.   

j. The plans shall be revised to ensure that all setbacks proposed to be included 

in the PUD are being met. 

k. A Cross Access and Maintenance Easement for vehicles and/or pedestrian to 

allow travel between the properties to the north and west are required. In 

addition to showing the Easement on the CSM, a separate Easement 

document shall be prepared by the developer/owner, reviewed and approved 

by the Village and recorded at the Register of Deeds office.  At a minimum 



5 
 

such easement shall include a legal description, its specific use and 

maintenance responsibilities.  A copy of the Easement shall be provided to the 

Village. 

l. The new facility will include a dog exercise area that is about 300 to 400 

square feet and it will be under-roof. 

m. Dimension the narrowest width of the semi-circular drive located at the front 

entrance to the building. 

n. Label the right-of-way width of Prairie Ridge Boulevard (100’). 

o. Show the location of the existing easternmost St. Anne’s Church Prairie Ridge 

Boulevard driveway. 

p. Any repairs/replacement to the existing Prairie Ridge Boulevard sidewalk and 

the Prairie Ridge Boulevard street trees will be the responsibility of this 

(abutting) property owner, at the property owner’s expense. 

q. The plans shall show the location of the existing public sidewalk in Prairie 

Ridge Boulevard. 

r. A sidewalk shall connect the exit door back patio to the east parking lot. 

s. To facilitate pedestrian movement and walkability, the Plans shall show a 

minimum 5’ wide concrete sidewalk connection to the facility from the 

existing Prairie Ridge Boulevard public sidewalk. 

t. The existing 5’ wide concrete public sidewalk in Prairie Ridge Boulevard shall 

be the dominant improvement when traversing the private driveway 

entrances.  In other words, the concrete sidewalk shall cross-thru the paved 

driveways. 

u. The sidewalk shall provide the same height as curb would on the south end of 

the main parking lot.  No curb stops or wheel stops shall be installed. 

v. Relocate the electric transformer to the north end of the east parking lot. 

w. All bollards shall be painted or sleeved to match the building – brown or tan. 

x. Details of the dumpster enclosures shall be provided on the Site and 

Operational Plans.  The dumpster enclosures shall be constructed of the same 

brick, block or stone materials as the building and be attached to the building.  

The doors shall provide complete screening for the garbage dumpsters and 

recycling. Detached garbage enclosures are not allowed.  A wooden fence 

enclosure is not allowed.  Sample materials, doors and paint colors of the 

dumpster enclosures shall be submitted for review and approval. 

y. Is any fencing proposed?  If so, show the location and details. 

z. Storm water management for the site is provided for at the ponds located to 

the northwest and southwest of the intersection of Prairie Ridge Boulevard 

and 88th Avenue.  Storm water from the proposed building and east parking 

lot shall be conveyed by a new storm sewer to the northwest pond and storm 

water piping from the west parking lot shall be connected up to the catch 

basin located 235’ west of the east property line.  The storm sewer shown on 

the plans is a 4” drain tile and is not to be used for storm water conveyance.  

See attached as-built storm sewer plans. 

aa. Verify all existing public utilities are shown correctly (i.e. storm, water, 

sanitary etc.).  Record drawings for the public utilities are attached for 



6 
 

general reference.  The design engineer shall field survey the actual utility 

locations. 

bb. Show the existing sidewalk, curb and gutter, street trees, and median on 

Prairie Ridge Boulevard.  The existing driveway aprons shown on the plans do 

not exist. 

cc. The plans do not include existing or proposed topographic information.  The 

adjacent pond shall be shown on the plans.  Does the future drive extension 

located at the northwest corner work with the existing topography? 

dd. There is an existing electrical transformer on the property located near the 

west entrance that shall be shown on the plan.  The electrical pedestal that is 

shown on the plan appears to be further west.  Is this a different transformer 

or proposed relocation? 

ee. A curb cut does not currently exist for eastern driveway entrance.  Curb and 

gutter for the driveway shall be removed and replaced with 30-inch Type D 

curb and gutter with the curb head removed. 

ff. Curb ramps are to be installed at the driveways. 

gg. Additional detail shall be provided for the site grading and storm water 

collection system.   

hh. All commercial buildings will be required to install a sanitary sewer sampling 

manhole pursuant to the Village specifications.  The location and details shall 

be shown on the Site and Operational Plans required for each site. Contact 

the Village & Rescue Department will need to review site access.  Current 

layout does not appear to meet the 30-foot wide access requirements. 

ii. Approval from the Fire & Rescue Department shall be obtained for fire 

hydrant locations and fire suppression system design. 

jj. The following items are currently not included and / or shown on the plans 

and will need to be provided for a detailed engineering design review as part 

of the required Site and Operational Plans. 

i. Cover sheet. 

ii. Detail sheet. 

iii. Erosion control / grading plans. 

iv. Sanitary sewer and water main plans. 

v. Storm sewer plans. 

vi. Photometric plan. 

vii. Landscaping Plan 

kk. The following comments relate to landscaping and shall be included as part of 

the Site and Operational Plans: 

i. All landscaped areas will be required to be irrigated with a sprinkler 

system.  The base map for these landscape plans shall include the 

approved grading plan.   In addition, the location of all pedestals and 

transformers and proposed screening shall be shown on the Plans.  

ii. The public street trees (and the type) shall be identified on the 

Landscape Plan.  Existing street trees will need to be pruned and all 

missing or dead street trees will need to be replaced staked, placed 

mulch beds. 



7 
 

iii. Landscaping and parking lot islands will be required pursuant to the 

Village Ordinance requirements.  In particular, landscaping between 

parking areas and roadways shall comply with Section 420-57 J (2) (d) 

of the Village Zoning Ordinance that states “Parking lots associated 

with manufacturing, business or institutional uses shall be screened 

from public rights-of-way and/or residential zoning districts located 

within 50 feet of such parking lots; such screening shall be installed in 

close proximity to the parking lot and shall be 75% opaque to a height 

of at least four (4) feet above the grade of the nearest edge of such 

parking lot within three (3) years of installation and may consist of 

shrubs and trees, an appropriately landscaped undulating berm…”.  

ll. The following comments relate to signage and shall be included on the Site 

and Operational Plans: 

i. A primary monument sign.  Secondary entrance signs (entry 

monument signs) at the shared access locations may be allowed. All 

signage shall conform to the provisions of the PUD Ordinance and all 

general requirements of the Village Sign Ordinance (Chapter 420 

Article X) unless specifically allowed in the PUD. 

ii. Dimension the setback distance of the proposed monument sign to the 

Prairie Ridge Boulevard right-of-way line.  Ordinance requires a 

minimum 15 foot sign setback.  

iii. Provide details for monument sign – maximum height is 6 feet.  Must 

have a 5 foot landscaping area around the sign. 

iv. Primary Monument Signage shall include the street address of the 

convenience store building, including the street number(s) and the 

name of the street (letters and numerals shall be at least 3 inches in 

height and at least 18 inches above the surface of the ground). The 

address may be placed on the base of the sign (where it will not count 

toward the maximum area of the sign display). 

v. Provide informational, directional and accessible signage details. 

vi. Show any signage is proposed for the building. 

mm. All parking lot signage shall utilize attractive black ornamental poles for all 

signage, including handicapped accessible signage. No u-channel poles for 

any site signs. 

nn. Attractive address numerals shall be placed on the building. 

oo. The following comments related to the required Photometric Plan to be 

submitted with the Site and Operational Plans: 

i. The photometric site lighting plan shall include details of the light 

standards and fixtures. 

ii. Parking lot light standards shall be the same color as the bollards with 

a maximum height of 20 feet. 

iii. Concrete bases shall not exceed 18 inches above grade and shall be 

located in landscape island areas. 

pp. All downspouts shall be directly interconnected at grade to the private 

underground storm water system.  Show on the plans. 



8 
 

qq. Upon review of the limited plans submitted, the Fire & Rescue have the 

following concerns as specified in the attached June 12, 2015 memorandum:  

we have the following concerns:   

i. The building shall be equipped with a fire sprinkler system, a fire alarm 

system and recessed Knox Boxes. The combination water main feeding 

the building will need to be sized by a WI Licensed Fire Sprinkler 

Designer.  These items will need further review once more detailed 

plans are submitted. 

ii. AED. Because of the type of occupancy the owner shall install one or 

more public access Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) onsite for 

employee and customer use in the event of a sudden cardiac arrest. 

The Fire and Rescue Department can provide the training necessary to 

perform CPR and to operate the AED. 

iii. Fire Alarm Control Panel: The main FACP will be placed in the fire riser 

room.  Remote annunciator panel location(s) will also need to be 

determined during the pre-construction meeting.  

iv. Both the fire department sprinkler connection and the fire hydrant, 

(pumper pad), shall be installed remote from the building and located 

a minimum distance from the building equal to the highest wall.  The 

location should be moved to the north in the area of the loading zone. 

v. Fire safety system plans, such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, 

will need to be submitted to the State of Wisconsin Department of 

Safety and Professional Services and also to this fire department for 

review. No installation of any fire protection system is allowed until a 

satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  

vi. All driveway entrances off of Prairie Ridge Blvd and future driveway 

extensions shall be 30 feet wide. 

vii. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within 

the building that can be used as a "severe weather shelter" or "safe 

haven" during severe weather such as a tornado. That area will be 

identified with signage.  

viii. All outside doors must have access to the interior. Such as a lock and 

handle provided at each door.  

rr. It is recommended that all exits and entrances are numbered, inside and 

outside, beginning in the front of the building and moving in a clockwise 

fashion around the building.  The numbering system allows for easy 

identification of where first responders are needed or the location of a safe 

entry point. 

4. The medical/drug storage area within the building shall be monitored by cameras 

and kept in a locked cabinet.   

5. General boarding or cremation services shall not be provided at this location. 

6. Building architectural designs, elevations and sample materials will be required to be 

approved by the Plan Commission as part of the detailed Site and Operational Plans. 

7. All easements shall be shown on the required Site and Operational Plans submitted 

for review and approval as each lot is proposed to be developed. 



9 
 

8. Each handicapped parking space shall be appropriately signed (locations to be 

reviewed with planning staff) and painted on the pavement (same color for all 

development) pursuant to ADA requirements prior to occupancy of any development 

site. 

9. All exterior transformers, mechanical units, antennae and/or satellite dishes, whether 

roof-mounted or ground-mounted, shall be screened from the general public’s view.  

10. Site and Operational Plans will be required to be approved by the Prairie Ridge 

Commercial Owners Association.  Written approval shall be submitted to the Village 

prior to issuance of building permits. 

11. Impact fees shall be paid prior to issuance of the building permit. (Currently based 

upon $1.94 per $1,000 of valuation as determined by the Village Assessing 

Department). 

12. There shall be no parking of any vehicles on 91st Avenue or Prairie Ridge Blvd.  

13. During construction, the contractors will be required to park on-site or make 

arrangements for other off-site parking. 

14. Airport Height Overlay District approval shall be obtained from the City of Kenosha 

prior to the issuance of Village building and zoning permits. 

15. The site shall provide a Digital Security Imaging System (DSIS) pursuant to Chapter 

410 of the Village Municipal Code. 

16. After footings and foundations are installed and prior to framing or construction of 

walls, an as-built survey stamped by a Wisconsin Registered Land Surveyor shall be 

submitted to the Village to verify that required building setbacks have been met. 

17. All required landscaping and screening for the buildings and signage shall be installed 

prior to occupancy of any building. A written letter verification and certification shall 

be provided to the Village by the landscape designer that all building and signage 

landscaping has been installed in accordance with the approved landscape plan prior 

to the issuance of a certificate of compliance/occupancy.  However, if weather 

conditions prevent installation of all or portions of the landscape materials, the 

developer, owner or occupant shall enter into a written agreement with the Village 

that specifies the date by which all approved landscaping shall be completed and 

grants the Village a temporary easement to complete the landscaping if not timely 

completed and shall deposit with the Village Clerk a cash deposit, an irrevocable 

letter of credit, or other financial assurance approved by the Zoning Administrator to 

ensure timely completion of all required landscaping; the amount of the financial 

assurance shall be equal to 110% of the contracted amount to complete the 

landscaping improvements in order to reasonably compensate the Village for the cost 

of completion of any landscaping improvements not completed within the specified 

time. 

18. Prior to written occupancy three (3) copies of an as-built plan, stamped by a 

Wisconsin Registered Land Surveyor shall be submitted to the Village to verify that 

required building, above ground structures and all impervious surfaces meet the 

minimum setbacks and that all signage and pavement markings were installed per 

the approve site plans and the grading of the site was completed pursuant to the 

approved Site and Operational Plans.  In addition, written certification from the 

signage companies that the signage was installed pursuant to the approved Site and 

Operational Plans shall be submitted. 



10 
 

19. Prior to written occupancy an as-built record drawing of graphical data of all private 

sewer, water, and storm sewer facilities and underground irrigation systems installed 

shall be provided to the Village for the Village to update the Village’s Geographic 

Informational System.  Information shall conform to the Village’s electronic format 

requirements.  In addition, a paper copy prepared and stamped by the Engineer of 

Record for the project shall be submitted. 

20. No site within the development shall be used for any parking (neither overnight nor 

during the day) of junked/inoperable/dismantled/unlicensed vehicles.  All 

junked/inoperable/ dismantled/unlicensed vehicles that are parked overnight will be 

issued citations. 

21. Real Estate Marketing Signs and/or Temporary Development Signs are permitted 

only by permit pursuant to the requirements of Article X of Chapter 420.  

22. At no time shall any site within the development be used to sell or advertise any 

vehicles that are “for sale”. 

23. No vehicular parking will be permitted in driveways, maneuvering lanes, fire lanes or 

on landscaped areas. 

24. There shall be no outside banners, strings of pennants, signs placed in the ground, 

flag pennants, flags, inflatable devices or streamers affixed or attached to the 

building(s), fencing, light poles, ground or landscaping, etc. within the Development.  

Special event and grand opening signs are permitted by Ordinance with permit. 

25. There shall be no semi-truck/trailer, delivery trucks or commercial box truck or 

commercial van parking permitted on the site within the Development, except 

temporarily, for routine deliveries. 

26. There shall be no outdoor storage or display of materials, goods or equipment on any 

site, within the Development unless as approved by the Village. 

27. The use of semi-trailers, storage units, storage bins, roll-off storage devices (e.g. 

P.O.D.S., S.A.M.S.) or other trucks, for storage purposes is prohibited.  Outdoor 

storage of any materials, including but not limited to: raw materials, business 

supplies, pallets, crates, etc., is prohibited. 

28. No trucks, trailers or cars shall be parked in a manner that would constitute 

advertising for the business on the properties. 

29. No sign walkers – persons with costumes or signs strapped, hung, affixed or over 

their clothes shall walk the properties or public right-of-ways for extended periods of 

time advertising the businesses, sales or special offers of the service or retail 

businesses. 

30. No use shall be conducted in such a way as to constitute a public or private nuisance 

or to violate any of the performance standards set out in Section 420-38 of the 

Village Zoning Ordinance. 

31. Municipal connection fees shall be paid prior to the connections of each building to 

the sanitary sewer system. 

32. This development shall be in compliance with the Village Land Division and 

Development Control Ordinance, the Village Municipal and Zoning Codes, the Village 

Construction Site Maintenance and Erosion Control Ordinance and the State of 

Wisconsin Statutes. 

33. All Village fees incurred by the Village Engineer, Village Inspectors and/or expert 

Assistants/Consultants/Attorneys required by the Village throughout the 



11 
 

development process will be billed directly to the Developer.  Such fees shall be paid 

in a timely manner.  

34. All Village fees incurred by the Village Community Development Department and/or 

expert Assistants/Consultants/Attorneys required by the Village throughout the 

development process will be billed directly to the Developer.  Such fees shall be paid 

in a timely manner.  

Item B: Recommendation:  Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve 

the Certified Survey Map subject to the following conditions: 

1. The attached changes to be made to the CSM. 

2. The CSM shall include full easement for shared access driveway. 

3. Dedication and Easement Provisions for the CSM shall include the following 

dedications: 

a. Dedicated Cross Access and Maintenance Easement (extending north in the 

eastern corner of the site and along the western side of the site);  

b. Dedicated Wetland Preservation and Protection, Access and Maintenance 

Easement; 

c. Dedicated 12’ Utility, Access and Maintenance Easements 

d. Dedicated 13’ Planting and Landscape Easement and Restricted Planting, 

Landscape and Vehicle Non-Access Area 

e. Dedicated Public Street 

4. Restrictions and Covenants shall be shown on the CSM which include provisions 

pertaining to: 

a. Street tree planting and maintenance 

b. Driveway cross access and maintenance 

c. DSIS access and maintenance 

d. Wetland preservation and protection maintenance 

5. Abandonment of the Wetland Access Easement shall be shown on the CSM. 

6. If the wetland needs to be re-delineated, the wetland and parcel line information on 

the CSM will need to be changed accordingly.   

7. Any outstanding taxes or special assessments shall be paid prior to recording the 

CSM. According to the Village Finance Department.  Pursuant to the Village records 

there are taxes of $8,126.88 due by July 31, 2015, on parcel# 91-4-122-081-0131 

(the parcel -0134 is split from in 2015).  There is also an outstanding STH 50 

transportation improvement assessment of $158,840.30. 

8. The CSM shall be finalized, executed and recorded at the Kenosha County Register of 

Deeds Office and a recorded copy of the CSM shall be provided to the Village within 

30 days of Village Board’s approval and prior to issuance of building permit.  







 

 

8044 88th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2015    Phone 262.694.8027    Fax 262.697.1901    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

 

Office of the  

Chief of Fire & Rescue  

Doug McElmury 

 
 

VILLAGE STAFF MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO:  Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director 
FROM:  Doug McElmury, Chief Fire & Rescue Department 
CC:  Deputy Chief, Craig Roepke 

Lt. Thomas Clark, Fire & Rescue Department 
  Peggy Herrick, Assistant Planner, Community Development 
SUBJECT: Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 
DATE:  12 June 2015 

 
 
This is the review of the Conceptual Plan for the proposed 11,021 sq. ft. new facility for Care 
Animal Hospital. 
 
The Fire and Rescue Department will be responsible for providing fire prevention inspections of 
this facility, twice annually. The concerns of the Fire & Rescue Department are as follows: 
 

1.  Distribution of Comments: the person who obtains the building permit to all 
Contractors and Subcontractors affected by this document shall distribute Copies of 
these comments. This document outlines critical times and deadlines. All recipients of 
this document need to become familiar with the contents. 

 
2. Compliance: A letter shall be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department prior to 

receiving a building permit, stating that the project will comply with all requirements 
addressed within this document. 

 
3. In the event a conflict in code(s) is identified, or a conflict with the insurance carrier 

criteria occurs, the more stringent shall apply.  In the event this conflicts with any codes 
adopted by the State of Wisconsin, the owner must petition the State directly for a 
variance.  The Owner must demonstrate that they will provide materials or design 
equivalent to the code or that they will exceed the code when petitioning the State and 
or Village when applicable. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Upon review of the limited plans submitted, we have the following concerns: 

 The building will need to be equipped with a fire sprinkler system, a fire alarm system 
and recessed Knox Boxes. The combination water main feeding the building will need to 
sized by a WI Licensed Fire Sprinkler Designer.  These items will need further review 
once more detailed plans are submitted. 
   

 AED. Because of the type of occupancy the owner shall install one or more public access 
Automatic External Defibrillator (AED) onsite for employee and customer use in the 
event of a sudden cardiac arrest. The Fire and Rescue Department can provide the 
training necessary to perform CPR and to operate the AED. 
 

 Fire Alarm Control Panel: The main FACP will be placed in the fire riser room.  Remote 
annunciator panel location(s) will also need to be determined during the pre-
construction meeting.  
 

 Both the fire department sprinkler connection and the fire hydrant, (pumper pad), shall 
be installed remote from the building and located a minimum distance from the 
building equal to the highest wall.  The location should be moved to the north in the 
area of the loading zone. 
 

 Fire safety system plans, such as fire sprinkler and fire alarm plans, will need to be 
submitted to the State of Wisconsin Department of Safety and Professional Services and 
also to this fire department for review. No installation of any fire protection system is 
allowed until a satisfactory review is obtained from both departments.  
 

 All driveway entrances off of Prairie Ridge Blvd and future driveway extensions shall be 
30 feet wide. 
 

 Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall identify the area within the building that can be 
used as a “severe weather shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 
That area will be identified with signage.  
 

 All outside doors must have access to the interior. Such as a lock and handle provided at each 
door.  
 

4. Fire and Rescue Department Review and Comments: 

 A.  Site and Operational Permits 

1. Site accessibility   
2. Fire Pump Location     
3. Pumper Pad    
4. Fire hydrant spacing       

 

 

 



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 B.  Conditional Use and Operational  

1. Standpipe outlet locations  Not shown at this time. 
2. Fire alarm pull stations   Not shown at this time. 
3. Emergency and Exit Lighting  Not shown at this time.   

    4.    Fire extinguishers   Not shown at this time. 

 
5. Plan Review, Permits and Fees:  The plans for the fire protection underground, 

aboveground and fire alarm system shall be submitted for review a minimum of four (4) 
weeks before installation is scheduled to begin.  The Village will use an independent fire 
safety consultant for review of all fire protection plans submitted.  A satisfactory review 
must be completed before any permits will be issued and before construction can begin. 
 

6. Insurance Carrier: The Owner of this project shall submit to the insurance carrier for 
review the plans for both underground water distribution and fire protection prior to 
construction. The Fire & Rescue Department shall receive a copy of the comments when 
plans are submitted for review. 
 

7. The following information must be submitted with the sprinkler plans for review: 
Building height:     
Number of stories/floors:    
Mezzanines:     
Elevators:      
Hazard class: 
Commodity:     
Maximum storage height:    
Square footage, office space:   
Square footage, receiving space: 
Square footage, shipping space: 
Square footage, warehouse space: 
Exterior storage: 
Fire protection: 
 

8. The following Fees and Permits are generated directly from the Fire & Rescue 
Department. 
NOTE: Permits are required from the Fire & Rescue Department for the installation of 
water main in addition to any permits required by other Village of Pleasant Prairie 
Departments. 

o Water Usage  
o Fire Protection Plans for Underground and Aboveground 
o Fire Alarm System Plans 
o Kitchen Hood Systems Plans 

o Occupancy Permit & Re-Inspection fees 
 

Permit fees must be paid at time of submission for review. Work cannot begin until all 
permits have been issued. A typical review turnaround is four weeks.      

 
9. Required Licenses:  A Wisconsin licensed fire protection contractor and Wisconsin licensed 

sprinkler fitters must install underground fire mains and aboveground fire protection.  
Periodic inspections of the job site will be made by fire inspectors to assure compliance. 



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 
10. Pre-Construction Meeting:  A pre-construction meeting shall take place with the general 

contractor, the fire protection contractor, the Fire and Rescue Department and any other 
sub-contractor prior to the installation of any underground fire protection.  The purpose 
of this meeting is to assure that the requirements of the State of Wisconsin that only a 
Wisconsin licensed sprinkler fitter shall perform the installation of all devices, etc.  All 
parties will be asked to initial this document and or permit.  Any violation of the 
installing requirements will be reported in writing to the State of Wisconsin Department 
of Safety and Professional Services. 

 
11. Site Access:  Access shall be provided to the site for all Fire Department apparatus, and 

must comply with the State of Wisconsin and the International Building Code, 2009 
edition. A minimum wall-to-wall turning radius of 45’-0” shall be allowed for apparatus 
movement.   

a. All entrances from public streets, as well as road and driveways around the proposed 
building must be a minimum of 30 feet wide. 

b. All exterior exit pathways as well as access to the Fire Riser Room shall have a hard 
surface, leading to a hard surface.  

c. An exterior personnel door shall be located in close proximity to each fire 
sprinkler riser. 

 
12. Sprinkler System:  The building shall be equipped with an “automatic fire sprinkler 

system”.  The systems shall be designed and constructed to the current edition of NFPA 
13, Automatic Fire Sprinklers and the Village of Pleasant Prairie Ordinance 180-16, 
Automatic Fire Sprinklers. 

 
13. Water Service:  If it is determined that the building will be serviced by a combination 

municipal water and fire protection main, that main must be sized by the fire protection 
(sprinkler) contractor. No main is allowed to travel underground, under the building.  

 
14. Plan Review (Underground): A review of the underground drawings is required along 

with the fire protection drawings before a permit will be issued by the Fire and Rescue 
Department. Underground plans shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) weeks before 
installation begins.  

 
15. Fire Hydrants:  Fire hydrants shall be spaced no more than 350 feet apart around the 

perimeter of the building, per Village Ordinance 180-16. The insurance carrier must 
agree in writing to the hydrant spacing. As many hydrants as possible shall be supplied 
directly by municipal water.  The distance from the finished grade line to the lowest 
discharge shall be no less than 18 inches and no more than 23 inches.  The Fire 
Department connections shall be located, and of sufficient height where typical snow fall 
or snow removal operations will not obstruct access.  
 

16. Fire Hydrant Acceptance: This project will include the installation of water mains for 
domestic and fire protection use. Prior to the fire sprinkler system connection to any 
new water mains (including water mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building 
and risers) must be hydrostatically tested flushed according to National Fire Protection 
Association (NFPA–National Fire Code) Standard 24 and witnessed by the Fire Chief 
and or the Chief’s representative, the installing contractor and the fire sprinkler 
contractor at a minimum.  



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 
17. Fire hydrant and water main flushing can be disruptive to the job site and requires 

significant coordination of all sub-contractors by the General Contractor. Nonetheless 
flushing is an essential part of assuring public safety. 
 

18. The General Contractor is highly encouraged to coordinate the flushing of all new water 
mains, fire hydrants, laterals leading to the building and risers with both the sub-
contractors responsible, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Engineering Department, Fire & 
Rescue Department and the Water Utility Department, prior to seeking a ‘clean water 
sample’ on this site.  
NOTE: The Fire Protection Designer must meet with the Fire and Rescue Department 
before the underground drawings are submitted for review to finalize the placement of 
the hydrants. 

 
19. Pumper Pad:  There shall be dedicated space for a fire engine to have unobstructed 

access to the Pumper Pad.  Both the Fire Department Sprinkler connection and the fire 
hydrant shall be installed remote from the building and located a minimum distance 
from the building equal to the highest wall.  The fire hydrant shall be located no more 
than five (5) feet from the roadway and the Fire Department sprinkler connection shall 
be placed no more than five (5) feet from the fire hydrant.  The Fire Department 
connection shall be constructed along with an underground drain with access for 
inspection.  A guideline detail is attached and is meant to illustrate the requirements 
needed to meet the requirements stated in Village Ordinance 180-16. 

 
NOTE: The Fire Department Connection riser shall include a single five (5) inch Storz fitting 
and the Pumper Pad hydrant shall include two 2 ½”NST threaded connections and one 5 inch 
storz connection. 
 

20. Bollards:  Shall be placed near fire hydrants, remote post indicator valves (PIV) and Fire 
Department connection(s) to prevent damage.  Bollards shall be 6 inches in diameter. 
Bollards shall not obstruct charged fire hoses.  It is recommended that the Fire 
Department approve the location of the bollard(s) before final placement is made.  

 
21. Strobe Light:  A strobe light shall be provided for each riser and installed vertically 

above each sprinkler water flow bell. The strobe light shall operate for a sprinkler water 
flow.  The lens color shall be RED.  The strobe light shall meet Village specifications as 
found in section 180-16 K of the Sprinkler Ordinance.  
 

22. Fire Alarm System:  The system shall be fully addressable so that detailed 
information will be received about the device in alarm.  Utilizing a fire pull station, 
sprinkler water flow, or any other fire detection device that maybe installed in this 
building shall activate the internal fire alarm system.  

a. Manual Fire Alarm Pull Stations:  Shall be located at a minimum, immediately 
adjacent to each exterior door. Any additional exterior doors will be required to 
meet this requirement. The pull station shall not be placed in the area of the door, 
but immediately adjacent to the door jamb. 

b. Pull Stations and Audiovisual Alarms:  Shall be installed per ADA requirements. 

c. Smoke and Heat Detection:  Shall be installed as required. 

d. Tamper Switches:  Tamper switches shall be placed on all sprinkler valves and be 
identified on the annunciator panel. 



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 6 of 7 

 

e. Fire Alarm Control Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type 
shall be approved by the Fire & Rescue Department. The Fire Alarm Control Panel 
shall be located within the Fire Pump Room. The panel shall identify a fire 
sprinkler water flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull 
stations and any other fire detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

f. Annunciator Panel:  Shall be addressable.  The annunciator panel type shall be 
approved by the Fire and Rescue Department. The panel shall identify a fire 
sprinkler water flow by riser, and the specific locations of the fire alarm pull 
stations and any other fire detection devices that may be installed in this building. 

g. Transmission of Fire Alarms.  The method of transmission to central station must 
be approved by the Fire & Rescue Department.  i.e. Phone line, RF Radio and /or 
Cellular technologies. 

h. Central Station:  The Fire Alarm Control Panel shall transmit all fire alarm, 
tamper, trouble and supervisory signals to a central station that is certified by 
Underwriters Laboratories (UL) and/or Factory Mutual (FM) and approved by the 
Fire & Rescue Department. The owner shall provide such documentation for 
approval. It is recommended that the owner consult with the Fire & Rescue 
Department prior to signing any contracts with the Central station. 

 
1) The central station shall be provided with this information regarding the 

geographical location of this alarm:   
   Village of Pleasant Prairie, County of Kenosha, State of Wisconsin 
 

   Fire:   Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
   Medical:  Pleasant Prairie Fire & Rescue 
    
   Phone numbers: 
   Emergency:   (262) 694-1402 
   Non-emergency: (262) 694-7105 
  
   Business:  (262) 694-8027 

 
23. Knox Box:  Knox Boxes shall be provided for the building, one by mechanical room 

door, front (lobby) door. The Knox Boxes shall be flush mounted Model 4400. Two sets 
of all keys (Master, fire alarm pull station, annunciator, elevator, etc.) shall be placed 
within the box, as well as a copy of the pre-fire plan.   

 
24. MSDS Knox Box: A minimum of One (1) Knox Box(s) designed for Material Safety Data 

Sheet storage shall be provided for each tenant to contain the data sheets on all products 
that are considered hazardous within the facility. The MSDS Box(s) shall be installed 
within the Fire Riser Room.  
 

25. Fire Extinguishers:  Shall meet NFPA 10 (Portable Fire Extinguishers) for the specific 
use of the building and be in sufficient number.  Final approval, of fire extinguisher 
locations and quantity, will not be given until occupancy is taken, to see how a tenant 
furnishes the space.  The company providing the fire extinguishers shall submit a letter 
to the Fire and Rescue Department stating the locations and size of the extinguishers are 
in compliance with NFPA 10. 
 
 



Review of the Conceptual Plan for Care Animal Hospital 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 
26. Emergency and Exit Lighting:  Exit and Emergency Lighting shall be provided and shall 

have battery backup. Combination units are acceptable and recommended.  An 
Emergency Generator eliminates the need for battery backup.  Exit and Emergency 
Lighting shall not be placed on electrical circuits that cannot be disturbed or interrupted, 
this is for test purposes.  These circuits shall be clearly labeled. An Emergency light shall 
be placed within the fire riser room.  

 
27. Final Inspection:  The General Contractor shall provide the following documentation at 

the time the Final Inspection takes place and before a building occupancy certificate will 
be issued. 

a. The fire protection contractor shall provide the owner with a letter (upon completion 
of the sprinkler work) stating the sprinkler system, or portion thereof, is “100% 
operational and built according to the design”, Village Ordinance, 180-16 N. 

b. Copy of contract with fire alarm central monitoring station. 
c. Copy of UL and/or FM certificate(s) for the fire alarm central monitoring station. 
d. Copies of the fire protection underground flushing documents. 
e. Copies of the underground and fire sprinkler hydrostatic test certificates. 
f. Copies of the fire sprinkler operational test certificates. 
g. Copies of the fire alarm test documents. 
h. Copies of other test documents such as, hood/duct, smoke, etc… 
i. The Pleasant Prairie Fire and Rescue Department shall have all information needed for 

our pre-fire plan prior to occupancy. 
j. Provide two- (2) CD’s, one for the property owner and one for the Fire & Rescue 

Department.  The disks shall include all Floor plans and fire protection plans for the 
building in an as-built condition.   

k. Severe Weather Shelter: The architect shall provide for both the Owner and the Fire & 
Rescue Department the area within the building that can be used as a “severe weather 
shelter” or “safe haven” during severe weather such as a tornado. 

l. Maps of the fire alarm and fire sprinkler system shall be placed in the fire pump room, near 
the fire alarm control panel; the maps shall be hung on the wall, with a waterproof 
covering and accessible to firefighters wearing bulky clothes and equipment. 

m. AED, in place at such time a tenant takes occupancy. 
n. A copy of the tenants Emergency Plan must be submitted to the Fire & Rescue Department 

before occupancy. 
28. Fees: Occupancy inspection fee and re-inspection fee will be assessed at the final inspection 

in accordance with ordinance 180-17. 
29.  Occupancy:  All fire and life safety requirements must be in place prior to any building 

being occupied. 

























DEDICATED WETLANDDEDICATED WETLANDDEDICATED WETLANDDEDICATED WETLAND
PRESERVATION ANDPRESERVATION ANDPRESERVATION ANDPRESERVATION AND
PROTECTION ACCESS ANDPROTECTION ACCESS ANDPROTECTION ACCESS ANDPROTECTION ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE EASEMENTMAINTENANCE EASEMENTMAINTENANCE EASEMENTMAINTENANCE EASEMENT

25'-
0" P

AV
ING

 SE
TB

ACK

25'-
0" P

AV
ING

 SE
TB

ACK

25'-
0" P

AV
ING

 SE
TB

ACK

25'-
0" P

AV
ING

 SE
TB

ACK

40'-0" BUILD
ING SET

BACK

40'-0" BUILD
ING SET

BACK

40'-0" BUILD
ING SET

BACK

40'-0" BUILD
ING SET

BACK

10
'-
0
" 
P
A
V
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

10
'-
0
" 
P
A
V
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

10
'-
0
" 
P
A
V
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

10
'-
0
" 
P
A
V
IN

G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

30
'-0

" B
UI LD

I N
G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

30
'-0

" B
UI LD

I N
G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

30
'-0

" B
UI LD

I N
G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

30
'-0

" B
UI LD

I N
G
 S

E
TB

A
C
K

10'-0" PAVING SETBACK10'-0" PAVING SETBACK10'-0" PAVING SETBACK10'-0" PAVING SETBACK

30'-0" BUILDING SETBACK30'-0" BUILDING SETBACK30'-0" BUILDING SETBACK30'-0" BUILDING SETBACK

PROPOSEDPROPOSEDPROPOSEDPROPOSED
BUILDINGBUILDINGBUILDINGBUILDING

DUMPSTERDUMPSTERDUMPSTERDUMPSTER
ENCLOSUREENCLOSUREENCLOSUREENCLOSURE

18'-0"x18'-0"18'-0"x18'-0"18'-0"x18'-0"18'-0"x18'-0"
LOADING ZONELOADING ZONELOADING ZONELOADING ZONE

FUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVE
EXTENDED NORTHEXTENDED NORTHEXTENDED NORTHEXTENDED NORTH

FUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVEFUTURE DRIVE
EXTENSIONEXTENSIONEXTENSIONEXTENSION

A=472
.57

A=472
.57

A=472
.57

A=472
.57

NEWNEWNEWNEW
DRIVEWAYDRIVEWAYDRIVEWAYDRIVEWAY

NEWNEWNEWNEW
DRIVEWAYDRIVEWAYDRIVEWAYDRIVEWAY

S
0
2°
5
9
'2
4
"E

  
 1
22
.3
7'

S
0
2°
5
9
'2
4
"E

  
 1
22
.3
7'

S
0
2°
5
9
'2
4
"E

  
 1
22
.3
7'

S
0
2°
5
9
'2
4
"E

  
 1
22
.3
7'

S48°16'30"W   23.34'S48°16'30"W   23.34'S48°16'30"W   23.34'S48°16'30"W   23.34'

S41°43'30
"W   29.10

'

S41°43'30
"W   29.10

'

S41°43'30
"W   29.10

'

S41°43'30
"W   29.10

'

N87°10'02"E   243.52'N87°10'02"E   243.52'N87°10'02"E   243.52'N87°10'02"E   243.52'

N17°22'25"W   15.26'N17°22'25"W   15.26'N17°22'25"W   15.26'N17°22'25"W   15.26'

N58°03'46"W   33.49'N58°03'46"W   33.49'N58°03'46"W   33.49'N58°03'46"W   33.49'S79°27'4
8"W   39

.05'

S79°27'4
8"W   39

.05'

S79°27'4
8"W   39

.05'

S79°27'4
8"W   39

.05'
S89°30'22"W   58.57'S89°30'22"W   58.57'S89°30'22"W   58.57'S89°30'22"W   58.57'

P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 N

E
W
 P

R
O
P
E
R
TY

 L
IN

E
 2
26

'
P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 N

E
W
 P

R
O
P
E
R
TY

 L
IN

E
 2
26

'
P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 N

E
W
 P

R
O
P
E
R
TY

 L
IN

E
 2
26

'
P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D
 N

E
W
 P

R
O
P
E
R
TY

 L
IN

E
 2
26

'

PROPOSED NEW PROPERTY LINE 145'

PROPOSED NEW PROPERTY LINE 145'

PROPOSED NEW PROPERTY LINE 145'

PROPOSED NEW PROPERTY LINE 145'

PRAIRIE R
IDGE B

OULE
VARD

PRAIRIE R
IDGE B

OULE
VARD

PRAIRIE R
IDGE B

OULE
VARD

PRAIRIE R
IDGE B

OULE
VARD

FUTUREFUTUREFUTUREFUTURE
DEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENT

FUTUREFUTUREFUTUREFUTURE
DEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENTDEVELOPMENT

BUILDINGBUILDINGBUILDINGBUILDING
TOWERTOWERTOWERTOWER

5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"

18'-0"18'-0"18'-0"18'-0" 29'-0"29'-0"29'-0"29'-0" 18'-0"18'-0"18'-0"18'-0" 12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

18'-0
"

29'-0
"

29'-0
"

29'-0
"

29'-0
"

20
'-0

"

20
'-0

"
20

'-0
"

20
'-0

"

CURB &CURB &CURB &CURB &
GUTTER TYP.GUTTER TYP.GUTTER TYP.GUTTER TYP.

PROPOSED CURBPROPOSED CURBPROPOSED CURBPROPOSED CURB
& GUTTER TYP.& GUTTER TYP.& GUTTER TYP.& GUTTER TYP.

10'X25' PATIO10'X25' PATIO10'X25' PATIO10'X25' PATIO

FUTUREFUTUREFUTUREFUTURE
EXPANSIONEXPANSIONEXPANSIONEXPANSION
2,450 S.F.2,450 S.F.2,450 S.F.2,450 S.F.

9'-0"x18'-0"9'-0"x18'-0"9'-0"x18'-0"9'-0"x18'-0"
LOADING ZONELOADING ZONELOADING ZONELOADING ZONE

18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD
POLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGH
CONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASE

30
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

ROOF HATCHROOF HATCHROOF HATCHROOF HATCH

PACKAGED AIRPACKAGED AIRPACKAGED AIRPACKAGED AIR
HANDLING UNITHANDLING UNITHANDLING UNITHANDLING UNIT

ELEC.ELEC.ELEC.ELEC.
TRANSFORMERTRANSFORMERTRANSFORMERTRANSFORMER

PROPOSED INTERNALLY LITPROPOSED INTERNALLY LITPROPOSED INTERNALLY LITPROPOSED INTERNALLY LIT
GROUND MOUNTED SIGNGROUND MOUNTED SIGNGROUND MOUNTED SIGNGROUND MOUNTED SIGN

48"X48" PUMPER48"X48" PUMPER48"X48" PUMPER48"X48" PUMPER
PAD & FDC W/PAD & FDC W/PAD & FDC W/PAD & FDC W/
(2) GUARD POSTS(2) GUARD POSTS(2) GUARD POSTS(2) GUARD POSTS

12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT
FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,
AND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLE

18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD
POLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGH
CONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASE

6
7'-5 5/16

"

6
7'-5 5/16

"

6
7'-5 5/16

"

6
7'-5 5/16

"

114'-1 7/16"

114'-1 7/16"

114'-1 7/16"

114'-1 7/16"

PROPOSED DEDICATED ACCESS ANDPROPOSED DEDICATED ACCESS ANDPROPOSED DEDICATED ACCESS ANDPROPOSED DEDICATED ACCESS AND
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT TO BE DETERMINEDMAINTENANCE EASEMENT TO BE DETERMINEDMAINTENANCE EASEMENT TO BE DETERMINEDMAINTENANCE EASEMENT TO BE DETERMINED
UPON SELLER COMPLETING A NEW CSMUPON SELLER COMPLETING A NEW CSMUPON SELLER COMPLETING A NEW CSMUPON SELLER COMPLETING A NEW CSM

12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"

10
'-0

 5/16
"

10
'-0

 5/16
"

10
'-0

 5/16
"

10
'-0

 5/16
"

ABANDONED DEDICATEDABANDONED DEDICATEDABANDONED DEDICATEDABANDONED DEDICATED
ACCESS AND MAINTENANCEACCESS AND MAINTENANCEACCESS AND MAINTENANCEACCESS AND MAINTENANCE
EASEMENTEASEMENTEASEMENTEASEMENT

EXISTING DELINEATEDEXISTING DELINEATEDEXISTING DELINEATEDEXISTING DELINEATED
WETLAND LINEWETLAND LINEWETLAND LINEWETLAND LINE

18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD18'-6" HIGH (2) HEAD
POLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGHPOLE LIGHT ON 18" HIGH
CONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASECONCRETE BASE

8

26

13

6

9

12

12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT12'-0" DEDICATED UTILITY EASEMENT
FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,FOR WISCONSIN ELECTRIC, AMERITECH,
AND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLEAND TIME WARNER CABLE

13' WIDE DEDICATED PLANTING AND  LANDSCAPE13' WIDE DEDICATED PLANTING AND  LANDSCAPE13' WIDE DEDICATED PLANTING AND  LANDSCAPE13' WIDE DEDICATED PLANTING AND  LANDSCAPE
EASEMENT AND RESTRICTED PLANTING, LANDSCAPEEASEMENT AND RESTRICTED PLANTING, LANDSCAPEEASEMENT AND RESTRICTED PLANTING, LANDSCAPEEASEMENT AND RESTRICTED PLANTING, LANDSCAPE
AND VEHICLE NON-ACCESS AREA.AND VEHICLE NON-ACCESS AREA.AND VEHICLE NON-ACCESS AREA.AND VEHICLE NON-ACCESS AREA.

EXISTING CONC.EXISTING CONC.EXISTING CONC.EXISTING CONC.
DRIVEWAY APRONDRIVEWAY APRONDRIVEWAY APRONDRIVEWAY APRON

PROPOSED DRIVEWAYPROPOSED DRIVEWAYPROPOSED DRIVEWAYPROPOSED DRIVEWAY
ACCESS AND DRIVEWAYACCESS AND DRIVEWAYACCESS AND DRIVEWAYACCESS AND DRIVEWAY
MAINTENANCE EASEMENT,MAINTENANCE EASEMENT,MAINTENANCE EASEMENT,MAINTENANCE EASEMENT,
DETAILS TO BE DETERMINEDDETAILS TO BE DETERMINEDDETAILS TO BE DETERMINEDDETAILS TO BE DETERMINED
UPON RECEIVING FINALUPON RECEIVING FINALUPON RECEIVING FINALUPON RECEIVING FINAL
CSM FROM SELLERCSM FROM SELLERCSM FROM SELLERCSM FROM SELLER

25'-0
"

25'-0
"

25'-0
"

25'-0
"

12'-0
"

12'-0
"

12'-0
"

12'-0
"

13'-0
"

13'-0
"

13'-0
"

13'-0
"

15
'-0

"
15
'-0

"
15
'-0

"
15
'-0

"

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANTEXISTING FIRE HYDRANTEXISTING FIRE HYDRANTEXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING ELECTRICALEXISTING ELECTRICALEXISTING ELECTRICALEXISTING ELECTRICAL

EXISTING GAS MAINEXISTING GAS MAINEXISTING GAS MAINEXISTING GAS MAIN

EXISTING WATER MAINEXISTING WATER MAINEXISTING WATER MAINEXISTING WATER MAIN

EXISTING STORM MAN HOLEEXISTING STORM MAN HOLEEXISTING STORM MAN HOLEEXISTING STORM MAN HOLE

EXISTING 10" SANITARYEXISTING 10" SANITARYEXISTING 10" SANITARYEXISTING 10" SANITARY
SEWERSEWERSEWERSEWER

EXISTING STORM SEWEREXISTING STORM SEWEREXISTING STORM SEWEREXISTING STORM SEWER

EXISTING 8"EXISTING 8"EXISTING 8"EXISTING 8"
SANITARY LATERALSANITARY LATERALSANITARY LATERALSANITARY LATERAL

EXISTING 6"EXISTING 6"EXISTING 6"EXISTING 6"
WATER LATERALWATER LATERALWATER LATERALWATER LATERAL

NEW 4" SEWERNEW 4" SEWERNEW 4" SEWERNEW 4" SEWER
LATERALLATERALLATERALLATERAL

NEW 6" WATERNEW 6" WATERNEW 6" WATERNEW 6" WATER
LATERALLATERALLATERALLATERAL

CURB INLETCURB INLETCURB INLETCURB INLET

C.B.C.B.C.B.C.B.

C.B.C.B.C.B.C.B.

EXISTING STREET TREES (TYP.)EXISTING STREET TREES (TYP.)EXISTING STREET TREES (TYP.)EXISTING STREET TREES (TYP.)

30' SIDE YARD30' SIDE YARD30' SIDE YARD30' SIDE YARD
PAVING SETBACKPAVING SETBACKPAVING SETBACKPAVING SETBACK

REDUCED 10' PAVING SET BACK,REDUCED 10' PAVING SET BACK,REDUCED 10' PAVING SET BACK,REDUCED 10' PAVING SET BACK,
IN LIEU OF 30' PER JEANS E-MAILIN LIEU OF 30' PER JEANS E-MAILIN LIEU OF 30' PER JEANS E-MAILIN LIEU OF 30' PER JEANS E-MAIL

3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON
10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE

3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON3 1/2" ASPHALT ON
10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE10" STONE BASE

SPRINKLERSPRINKLERSPRINKLERSPRINKLER
RISERRISERRISERRISER

WETLAND AREAWETLAND AREAWETLAND AREAWETLAND AREA

PROJECT INFORMATION

APPLICABLE BUILDING CODE

2009 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (WITH WISCONSIN AMENDMENTS)

BUILDING CONTENT

OCCUPANCY

B - BUSINESS
NON SEPARATED

CONSTRUCTION CLASSIFICATION

TYPE VB CONSTRUCTION
SPRINKLED YES/NO
FIREWALL YES/NO

(4) SPACES/DOCTOR: (4) DOCTORS X (4) = 16 STALLS

ALLOWABLE AREA

TABULAR FLOOR AREA: 9,000 S.F.

FRONTAGE INCREASE: 10,459 S.F.

SPRINKLER INCREASE:                                        _27,000 S.F.

TOTAL ALLOWABLE AREA: 46,459 S.F.

ALLOWABLE FIRE AREA: 12,000 S.F.

PROPOSED BUILDING                                              _11,021 S.F.

TOTAL FIRE AREA 11,021 S.F.

ZONING INFORMATION

ZONING: B2/C-1 AND PUD

FRONT YARD BUILDING SETBACK: 65'-0" FROM ARTERIAL STEETS OR HIGHWAYS

SIDE YARD BUILDING SETBACK: 30'-0"

FRONT PAVING SETBACK: 25'-0"

ASHRE STANDARD 90.1-2007

HIGH PILE STORAGE YES/NO

FIRE ALARM SYSTEM YES/NO

40'-0" FROM NONARTERIAL STREETS OR PRIVATE ROADS

EAST SIDE PAVING SETBACK: 10'-0" PERJEANS E-MAIL IN LIEU OF 30'-0"

REAR PAVING SETBACK: 10'-0"

PARKING REQUIREMENTS

(1) PER EMPLOYEE: (20) EMPLOYEES = 20 STALLS

HANDICAP STALLS: 3  STALLS

PARKING REQUIRED: 39 STALLS

PARKING PROVIDED: 71 STALLS (1 STALL/221 S.F.)

PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:

DATE:DATE:DATE:DATE:

SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 - 

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

C1.0
5/6/155/6/155/6/155/6/15

B. POCHB. POCHB. POCHB. POCH

S. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIG

PASPASPASPAS

----------------------------

----------------------------

P14306P14306P14306P14306

----------------------------

3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS

4  5/13/15  JRS4  5/13/15  JRS4  5/13/15  JRS4  5/13/15  JRS

5  5/26/15  PAS5  5/26/15  PAS5  5/26/15  PAS5  5/26/15  PAS

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

P
L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 P

R
A

IR
IE

,

C
A

R
E

 A
N

IM
A

L
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

CARE ANIMAL HOSPITAL

PROPOSED FOR:

PLEASANT PRAIRIE,

 1" = 30'-0"

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLANCONCEPTUAL SITE PLANCONCEPTUAL SITE PLANCONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN
NORTHNORTHNORTHNORTH

SHEET INDEX

C1.0 SITE PLAN
A1.0 FLOOR PLAN
A2.0 ELEVATIONS

THE LOT DIMENSIONS AND BEARINGS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE INTERPRETED VALUES.  FOLLOW UP INVESTIGATION WITH STATE
AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND/OR WITH CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DATA
WHEN AVAILABLE IS REQUIRED.

WISCONSIN

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN



14
'-
6
"

14
'-
6
"

14
'-
6
"

14
'-
6
"

36
'-
4
 1
/2
"

36
'-
4
 1
/2
"

36
'-
4
 1
/2
"

36
'-
4
 1
/2
"

7'
-2
 1
/4

"
7'
-2
 1
/4

"
7'
-2
 1
/4

"
7'
-2
 1
/4

"
5
9
'-
9
 1
/8

"
5
9
'-
9
 1
/8

"
5
9
'-
9
 1
/8

"
5
9
'-
9
 1
/8

"

10
3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"

42'-7 1/2"42'-7 1/2"42'-7 1/2"42'-7 1/2" 89'-2 3/8"89'-2 3/8"89'-2 3/8"89'-2 3/8"

131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"

18
'-
0
 5

/8
"

18
'-
0
 5

/8
"

18
'-
0
 5

/8
"

18
'-
0
 5

/8
"

8
5
'-
3 

1/
4
"

8
5
'-
3 

1/
4
"

8
5
'-
3 

1/
4
"

8
5
'-
3 

1/
4
"

10
3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"
10

3'
-3

 7
/8

"

10
'-
0
 5

/8
"

10
'-
0
 5

/8
"

10
'-
0
 5

/8
"

10
'-
0
 5

/8
"

7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"

5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"12'-0"

7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
9
'-
6
"

9
'-
6
"

9
'-
6
"

9
'-
6
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

9'-6"9'-6"9'-6"9'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"14'-0"14'-0"14'-0"14'-0"

25
'-
1 
1/
4
"

25
'-
1 
1/
4
"

25
'-
1 
1/
4
"

25
'-
1 
1/
4
"

11 
3/

8
"

11 
3/

8
"

11 
3/

8
"

11 
3/

8
"

5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 6'-0"6'-0"6'-0"6'-0"

12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"

9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"9'-0" 9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"9'-0" 8'-11 3/4"8'-11 3/4"8'-11 3/4"8'-11 3/4" 10'-2"10'-2"10'-2"10'-2" 5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 11 3/8"11 3/8"11 3/8"11 3/8"11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

12
'-
0
"

6'-0"6'-0"6'-0"6'-0" 4'-4 3/4"4'-4 3/4"4'-4 3/4"4'-4 3/4" 6'-0"6'-0"6'-0"6'-0"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

12
'-
4
"

12
'-
4
"

12
'-
4
"

12
'-
4
"

7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"

18
'-
8
 1
/4

"
18

'-
8
 1
/4

"
18

'-
8
 1
/4

"
18

'-
8
 1
/4

"

7'
-0

 3
/8

"
7'
-0

 3
/8

"
7'
-0

 3
/8

"
7'
-0

 3
/8

"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

25
'-
1 
7/

8
"

25
'-
1 
7/

8
"

25
'-
1 
7/

8
"

25
'-
1 
7/

8
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

31
'-
10

 7
/8

"
31
'-
10

 7
/8

"
31
'-
10

 7
/8

"
31
'-
10

 7
/8

"
1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

22'-4 5/8"22'-4 5/8"22'-4 5/8"22'-4 5/8"

1'-0"1'-0"1'-0"1'-0" 5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 3'-8 3/4"3'-8 3/4"3'-8 3/4"3'-8 3/4" 5'-2"5'-2"5'-2"5'-2"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

4
3'
-6

 3
/4

"
4
3'
-6

 3
/4

"
4
3'
-6

 3
/4

"
4
3'
-6

 3
/4

"

WASHERWASHERWASHERWASHER

DRYERDRYERDRYERDRYER

PASS-THRUPASS-THRUPASS-THRUPASS-THRU
SANITARY PACKSSANITARY PACKSSANITARY PACKSSANITARY PACKS

LARGELARGELARGELARGE
DEEP WELLDEEP WELLDEEP WELLDEEP WELL
SINKSINKSINKSINK

MOBILEMOBILEMOBILEMOBILE
DETAILDETAILDETAILDETAIL
X-RAYX-RAYX-RAYX-RAY

ADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLE
DENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLE

DOUBLEDOUBLEDOUBLEDOUBLE
ACTINGACTINGACTINGACTING
DOORSDOORSDOORSDOORS

6" H. X 30" D.6" H. X 30" D.6" H. X 30" D.6" H. X 30" D.
CURB, CONC.CURB, CONC.CURB, CONC.CURB, CONC.

CAGESCAGESCAGESCAGES

AUTOCLAVEAUTOCLAVEAUTOCLAVEAUTOCLAVE
CENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGES

U/CU/CU/CU/C
REF.REF.REF.REF.

(3) COMPUTER WORKSTATIONS(3) COMPUTER WORKSTATIONS(3) COMPUTER WORKSTATIONS(3) COMPUTER WORKSTATIONS
W/ STOOLS & LAPTOPSW/ STOOLS & LAPTOPSW/ STOOLS & LAPTOPSW/ STOOLS & LAPTOPS

W.H.W.H.W.H.W.H.

F.D.F.D.F.D.F.D.

SPRINKLERSPRINKLERSPRINKLERSPRINKLER
RISERRISERRISERRISER

F.D.F.D.F.D.F.D.
CONNECTIONCONNECTIONCONNECTIONCONNECTION

OXYGENOXYGENOXYGENOXYGEN
GENERATORGENERATORGENERATORGENERATOR

42" WIDE42" WIDE42" WIDE42" WIDE
DOORDOORDOORDOOR

DOGSDOGSDOGSDOGS
WASHWASHWASHWASH
TUBTUBTUBTUB

30"X30"30"X30"30"X30"30"X30"
MOP SINKMOP SINKMOP SINKMOP SINK

WASHERWASHERWASHERWASHER

DRYERDRYERDRYERDRYER

D.W.D.W.D.W.D.W.

F.D.F.D.F.D.F.D.

GURNEYGURNEYGURNEYGURNEY
TABLETABLETABLETABLE

PULL DOWNPULL DOWNPULL DOWNPULL DOWN
EXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLE

CAGESCAGESCAGESCAGES

INCUBATORINCUBATORINCUBATORINCUBATOR

X-RAYX-RAYX-RAYX-RAY
TABLETABLETABLETABLE

LEADLEADLEADLEAD
APRONAPRONAPRONAPRON
HOLDERHOLDERHOLDERHOLDER

COPIER/COPIER/COPIER/COPIER/
PRINTER/PRINTER/PRINTER/PRINTER/
FAXFAXFAXFAX

CENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGES

REF.REF.REF.REF.

HOODHOODHOODHOOD
MICROSCOPEMICROSCOPEMICROSCOPEMICROSCOPE
STATIONSTATIONSTATIONSTATION

PRINTERPRINTERPRINTERPRINTER

30" DEEP30" DEEP30" DEEP30" DEEP
CHEMICALCHEMICALCHEMICALCHEMICAL
RESISTANTRESISTANTRESISTANTRESISTANT
COUNTERTOPSCOUNTERTOPSCOUNTERTOPSCOUNTERTOPS

SOFFIT (ABOVE)SOFFIT (ABOVE)SOFFIT (ABOVE)SOFFIT (ABOVE)

COMPUTERCOMPUTERCOMPUTERCOMPUTER
STATION ANDSTATION ANDSTATION ANDSTATION AND
STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE

RETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLE
EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)

CABINET (TYP.)CABINET (TYP.)CABINET (TYP.)CABINET (TYP.)

BENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-IN
STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)

RETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLE
EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)EXAM TABLE (TYP.)

PORTABLE EXAMPORTABLE EXAMPORTABLE EXAMPORTABLE EXAM
TABLE (TYP.)TABLE (TYP.)TABLE (TYP.)TABLE (TYP.)

RETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLERETRACTABLE
EXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLE

X-RAY PROTECTIONX-RAY PROTECTIONX-RAY PROTECTIONX-RAY PROTECTION
AS REQUIRED (VERIFY)AS REQUIRED (VERIFY)AS REQUIRED (VERIFY)AS REQUIRED (VERIFY)

S
C
R
E
E
N

S
C
R
E
E
N

S
C
R
E
E
N

S
C
R
E
E
N

WET TREADMILLWET TREADMILLWET TREADMILLWET TREADMILL

48" HIGH48" HIGH48" HIGH48" HIGH
PARTITIONPARTITIONPARTITIONPARTITION

WORKSTATIONWORKSTATIONWORKSTATIONWORKSTATION

B
O
O
K
C
A
S
E

B
O
O
K
C
A
S
E

B
O
O
K
C
A
S
E

B
O
O
K
C
A
S
E

MOP BASINMOP BASINMOP BASINMOP BASIN

DOGDOGDOGDOG
SCALESCALESCALESCALE

RETAIL AREARETAIL AREARETAIL AREARETAIL AREA

JUGJUGJUGJUG
WATERWATERWATERWATER

U/CU/CU/CU/C
REF.REF.REF.REF.

BENCHBENCHBENCHBENCH

WALK-OFF MATWALK-OFF MATWALK-OFF MATWALK-OFF MAT

PUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTON
OPERATOROPERATOROPERATOROPERATOR

RECEPTIONRECEPTIONRECEPTIONRECEPTION
PODIUMPODIUMPODIUMPODIUM

DISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREA

SOFFIT W/SOFFIT W/SOFFIT W/SOFFIT W/
DISPLAYDISPLAYDISPLAYDISPLAY
 (ABOVE) (ABOVE) (ABOVE) (ABOVE)

36" DR.36" DR.36" DR.36" DR.

36" DR.36" DR.36" DR.36" DR.

6"X6" COLUMN6"X6" COLUMN6"X6" COLUMN6"X6" COLUMN

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"2'-0" 5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0" 3'-0"3'-0"3'-0"3'-0" 17'-11 3/4"17'-11 3/4"17'-11 3/4"17'-11 3/4"

PULL DOWN STAIRSPULL DOWN STAIRSPULL DOWN STAIRSPULL DOWN STAIRS
TO HATCHTO HATCHTO HATCHTO HATCH

3070 SLIDING DR.3070 SLIDING DR.3070 SLIDING DR.3070 SLIDING DR.

VESTIBULEVESTIBULEVESTIBULEVESTIBULE
100100100100

WAITINGWAITINGWAITINGWAITING
101101101101

RETAILRETAILRETAILRETAIL
102102102102

UNISEXUNISEXUNISEXUNISEX
TOILETTOILETTOILETTOILET
104104104104

CONSULT/EXAMCONSULT/EXAMCONSULT/EXAMCONSULT/EXAM
105105105105

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
106106106106

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
107107107107

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
108108108108

LARGELARGELARGELARGE
EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
109109109109

COORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDOR
110110110110

COORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDOR
111111111111

CHECKOUTCHECKOUTCHECKOUTCHECKOUT
112112112112

LABLABLABLAB
113113113113

PRIVATEPRIVATEPRIVATEPRIVATE
BATHROOMBATHROOMBATHROOMBATHROOM
114114114114

PRACTICEPRACTICEPRACTICEPRACTICE
MANAGERMANAGERMANAGERMANAGER
OFFICEOFFICEOFFICEOFFICE
115115115115

COORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDOR
116116116116

TECH.TECH.TECH.TECH.
STATIONSTATIONSTATIONSTATION
117117117117

RECOVERYRECOVERYRECOVERYRECOVERY
118118118118

TREATMENTTREATMENTTREATMENTTREATMENT
120120120120

PACKPACKPACKPACK
PREP.PREP.PREP.PREP.
121121121121

I.T./ELEC.I.T./ELEC.I.T./ELEC.I.T./ELEC.
RM.RM.RM.RM.
122122122122

SURGERYSURGERYSURGERYSURGERY
123123123123

COORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDORCOORIDOR
124124124124

MECH.MECH.MECH.MECH.
126126126126

CANINECANINECANINECANINE
RUNSRUNSRUNSRUNS
127127127127

KITCHENETTEKITCHENETTEKITCHENETTEKITCHENETTE
128128128128

LOCKERLOCKERLOCKERLOCKER
129129129129

FOODFOODFOODFOOD
PREP.PREP.PREP.PREP.
130130130130

EXOTICEXOTICEXOTICEXOTIC
WARDWARDWARDWARD
131131131131

SPECIALSPECIALSPECIALSPECIAL
PROCEDURESPROCEDURESPROCEDURESPROCEDURES
RM.RM.RM.RM.
132132132132

RADIOLOGYRADIOLOGYRADIOLOGYRADIOLOGY
133133133133

PHARMACYPHARMACYPHARMACYPHARMACY
134134134134

BREAK/MULTI-PURPOSEBREAK/MULTI-PURPOSEBREAK/MULTI-PURPOSEBREAK/MULTI-PURPOSE
135135135135

ASSOCIATESASSOCIATESASSOCIATESASSOCIATES
OFFICESOFFICESOFFICESOFFICES
136136136136

STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
137137137137

CANINECANINECANINECANINE
REHABREHABREHABREHAB
GYMGYMGYMGYM
138138138138

CLOSETCLOSETCLOSETCLOSET
139139139139

CLOSETCLOSETCLOSETCLOSET
140140140140

LARGELARGELARGELARGE
EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
141141141141

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
142142142142

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
143143143143

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
144144144144

EXAMEXAMEXAMEXAM
ROOMROOMROOMROOM
145145145145

PHONEPHONEPHONEPHONE
OFFICEOFFICEOFFICEOFFICE
146146146146

STAFFSTAFFSTAFFSTAFF
WOMENSWOMENSWOMENSWOMENS
TOILETTOILETTOILETTOILET
147147147147

HOSE BIBHOSE BIBHOSE BIBHOSE BIB
AND REELAND REELAND REELAND REEL

SOLID KENNELSOLID KENNELSOLID KENNELSOLID KENNEL
PANEL SEALEDPANEL SEALEDPANEL SEALEDPANEL SEALED
AT FLOORAT FLOORAT FLOORAT FLOOR

3'X6'3'X6'3'X6'3'X6'
DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)

4'X6'4'X6'4'X6'4'X6'
DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)DOG RUN (TYP.)

12"X12" FULL HGT.12"X12" FULL HGT.12"X12" FULL HGT.12"X12" FULL HGT.
LOCKERSLOCKERSLOCKERSLOCKERS

3'X3' ADA3'X3' ADA3'X3' ADA3'X3' ADA
SHOWERSHOWERSHOWERSHOWER

(2) - 2 YARD(2) - 2 YARD(2) - 2 YARD(2) - 2 YARD
ROLLING DUMPSTERSROLLING DUMPSTERSROLLING DUMPSTERSROLLING DUMPSTERS
REFUSEREFUSEREFUSEREFUSE

10'-0" WIDE GATE10'-0" WIDE GATE10'-0" WIDE GATE10'-0" WIDE GATE

(4
) 
5
'X

2'
 C

LE
A
R
S
TO

R
Y
 W

IN
D
O
W
S
 (
A
B
O
V
E
)

(4
) 
5
'X

2'
 C

LE
A
R
S
TO

R
Y
 W

IN
D
O
W
S
 (
A
B
O
V
E
)

(4
) 
5
'X

2'
 C

LE
A
R
S
TO

R
Y
 W

IN
D
O
W
S
 (
A
B
O
V
E
)

(4
) 
5
'X

2'
 C

LE
A
R
S
TO

R
Y
 W

IN
D
O
W
S
 (
A
B
O
V
E
)

REFUSEREFUSEREFUSEREFUSE
149149149149

STAFFSTAFFSTAFFSTAFF
TOILET/SHOWERTOILET/SHOWERTOILET/SHOWERTOILET/SHOWER
150150150150

COPY/COPY/COPY/COPY/
PRINTER/PRINTER/PRINTER/PRINTER/
FAXFAXFAXFAX

JANITORJANITORJANITORJANITOR
151151151151

131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"131'-9 7/8"

PUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTONPUSH BUTTON
OPERATOROPERATOROPERATOROPERATOR

BENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-INBENCH BUILT-IN
STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)STORAGE (TYP.)

6'
-7

 5
/16

"

6'
-7

 5
/16

"

6'
-7

 5
/16

"

6'
-7

 5
/16

"

28
'-
6
 3

/4
"

28
'-
6
 3

/4
"

28
'-
6
 3

/4
"

28
'-
6
 3

/4
"

3'
-6

"
3'
-6

"
3'
-6

"
3'
-6

"
1'-
6
"

1'-
6
"

1'-
6
"

1'-
6
"

3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

7'-
0"

7'-
0"

7'-
0"

7'-
0"

2'-0"2'-0"2'-0"2'-0" 4'-6"4'-6"4'-6"4'-6" 7'-6"7'-6"7'-6"7'-6" 14'-6 1/8"14'-6 1/8"14'-6 1/8"14'-6 1/8"

1'-6"1'-6"1'-6"1'-6"

28'-6 3/4"28'-6 3/4"28'-6 3/4"28'-6 3/4"

35'-9 1/4"35'-9 1/4"35'-9 1/4"35'-9 1/4" 7'-2 1/4"7'-2 1/4"7'-2 1/4"7'-2 1/4" 77'-6 1/8"77'-6 1/8"77'-6 1/8"77'-6 1/8" 11'-4 1/4"11'-4 1/4"11'-4 1/4"11'-4 1/4"

5'-0
"

5'-0
"

5'-0
"

5'-0
"

6
'-
7"

6
'-
7"

6
'-
7"

6
'-
7"

7'-5"7'-5"7'-5"7'-5"

2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
4
'-
6
"

4
'-
6
"

4
'-
6
"

4
'-
6
"

7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
7'
-6

"
14

'-
6
 1
/8

"
14

'-
6
 1
/8

"
14

'-
6
 1
/8

"
14

'-
6
 1
/8

"

8'-0 7/8"8'-0 7/8"8'-0 7/8"8'-0 7/8" 5'-9 7/8"5'-9 7/8"5'-9 7/8"5'-9 7/8"

10'-2 1/8"10'-2 1/8"10'-2 1/8"10'-2 1/8"

11'-11"11'-11"11'-11"11'-11"

12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"12'-0 5/8"

6
'-
8
"

6
'-
8
"

6
'-
8
"

6
'-
8
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

9
'-
0
"

TELEPHONE BOARDTELEPHONE BOARDTELEPHONE BOARDTELEPHONE BOARD
SERVERSERVERSERVERSERVER
RACKRACKRACKRACK

E
LE

C
TR

IC
A
L

E
LE

C
TR

IC
A
L

E
LE

C
TR

IC
A
L

E
LE

C
TR

IC
A
L

P
A
N
E
LS

P
A
N
E
LS

P
A
N
E
LS

P
A
N
E
LS

11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"11'-0 5/8"

9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"

8
'-
5
 1
/2
"

8
'-
5
 1
/2
"

8
'-
5
 1
/2
"

8
'-
5
 1
/2
"

27'-0"27'-0"27'-0"27'-0"

MICROWAVEMICROWAVEMICROWAVEMICROWAVE MICROWAVEMICROWAVEMICROWAVEMICROWAVE

REF.REF.REF.REF.

STOVESTOVESTOVESTOVED.W.D.W.D.W.D.W. COFFEECOFFEECOFFEECOFFEE

3'
-9

 7
/8

"
3'
-9

 7
/8

"
3'
-9

 7
/8

"
3'
-9

 7
/8

"

19
'-
0
 1
/4

"
19
'-
0
 1
/4

"
19
'-
0
 1
/4

"
19
'-
0
 1
/4

"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

8
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

6
'-
0
"

9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"

CAGESCAGESCAGESCAGES

30"X45"30"X45"30"X45"30"X45"
LIFT TABLELIFT TABLELIFT TABLELIFT TABLE

8
'-
9
 5

/8
"

8
'-
9
 5

/8
"

8
'-
9
 5

/8
"

8
'-
9
 5

/8
"

11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2" 11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2"11'-2 1/2"

DRY TREADMILLDRY TREADMILLDRY TREADMILLDRY TREADMILL

WORKSTATIONWORKSTATIONWORKSTATIONWORKSTATION

HANDHANDHANDHAND
SINKSINKSINKSINK

REF.REF.REF.REF. REF.REF.REF.REF.

8
'-
8
 1
/8

"
8
'-
8
 1
/8

"
8
'-
8
 1
/8

"
8
'-
8
 1
/8

"
5
'-
9
 7

/8
"

5
'-
9
 7

/8
"

5
'-
9
 7

/8
"

5
'-
9
 7

/8
"

13'-10 3/4"13'-10 3/4"13'-10 3/4"13'-10 3/4"

11'-11 11/16"11'-11 11/16"11'-11 11/16"11'-11 11/16"

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

7'
-4

"
7'
-4

"
7'
-4

"
7'
-4

"

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

D
IS
P
LA

Y
 A

R
E
A

DISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREADISPLAY AREA

CHANGINGCHANGINGCHANGINGCHANGING
TABLETABLETABLETABLE

CHANGINGCHANGINGCHANGINGCHANGING
TABLETABLETABLETABLE

UNISEXUNISEXUNISEXUNISEX
TOILETTOILETTOILETTOILET
153153153153

COFFEECOFFEECOFFEECOFFEE

R
E
TA

IL
 A

R
E
A

R
E
TA

IL
 A

R
E
A

R
E
TA

IL
 A

R
E
A

R
E
TA

IL
 A

R
E
A

9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"9'-0"

REBECCA &REBECCA &REBECCA &REBECCA &
RUSSEL'SRUSSEL'SRUSSEL'SRUSSEL'S
OFFICEOFFICEOFFICEOFFICE
154154154154

CENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESCENTRIFUGESHANDHANDHANDHAND
SINKSINKSINKSINK

WORKWORKWORKWORK
STATIONSTATIONSTATIONSTATION

U/CU/CU/CU/C
REF.REF.REF.REF.

GLASSGLASSGLASSGLASS
DOORDOORDOORDOOR

15'-5"15'-5"15'-5"15'-5"

ADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLEADJUSTABLE
DENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLEDENTAL TABLE

SURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLE
W/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNIT

SURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLESURGERY TABLE
W/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNITW/ TRACK UNIT

SURGERY SINKSURGERY SINKSURGERY SINKSURGERY SINK

(1) HOUR RATED RM.)(1) HOUR RATED RM.)(1) HOUR RATED RM.)(1) HOUR RATED RM.)

GASESGASESGASESGASES

PULL DOWNPULL DOWNPULL DOWNPULL DOWN
EXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLEEXAM TABLE

4'X4'4'X4'4'X4'4'X4'
CAGECAGECAGECAGE

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

1'-
0
"

23
'-
0
"

23
'-
0
"

23
'-
0
"

23
'-
0
"

24
'-
0
"

24
'-
0
"

24
'-
0
"

24
'-
0
"COVEREDCOVEREDCOVEREDCOVERED

YARDYARDYARDYARD
155155155155

ISOLATIONISOLATIONISOLATIONISOLATION
125125125125

WINDOWWINDOWWINDOWWINDOW

WINDOWWINDOWWINDOWWINDOW

WINDOWWINDOWWINDOWWINDOW

4'X4'4'X4'4'X4'4'X4'
PASSPASSPASSPASS
THRUTHRUTHRUTHRU

DESKDESKDESKDESK

CHESTCHESTCHESTCHEST
FREEZERFREEZERFREEZERFREEZER

24" ADJUSTABLE SHELVING24" ADJUSTABLE SHELVING24" ADJUSTABLE SHELVING24" ADJUSTABLE SHELVING

SUPERVISORSUPERVISORSUPERVISORSUPERVISOR

WORK AREAWORK AREAWORK AREAWORK AREA

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"5'-0"

ADAADAADAADA
SHOWERSHOWERSHOWERSHOWER

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

B
E
N
C
H

GRILLGRILLGRILLGRILL TABLETABLETABLETABLEPATIOPATIOPATIOPATIO

NURSINGNURSINGNURSINGNURSING
SUPERVISORSUPERVISORSUPERVISORSUPERVISOR

COPIERCOPIERCOPIERCOPIER

HYDROHYDROHYDROHYDRO
THERAPYTHERAPYTHERAPYTHERAPY
156156156156

THERAPYTHERAPYTHERAPYTHERAPY
148148148148

2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

BOOKBOOKBOOKBOOK
KEEPERKEEPERKEEPERKEEPER

PLANTERPLANTERPLANTERPLANTER

15'-6 7/8"15'-6 7/8"15'-6 7/8"15'-6 7/8"

2'
-8

"
2'
-8

"
2'
-8

"
2'
-8

"
4
'-
9
 5

/8
"

4
'-
9
 5

/8
"

4
'-
9
 5

/8
"

4
'-
9
 5

/8
"

DISPENSARYDISPENSARYDISPENSARYDISPENSARY
157157157157

10'-6 3/4"10'-6 3/4"10'-6 3/4"10'-6 3/4" 1'-0"1'-0"1'-0"1'-0"

SUSPENDEDSUSPENDEDSUSPENDEDSUSPENDED
PROJECTORPROJECTORPROJECTORPROJECTOR

(45) SEATS(45) SEATS(45) SEATS(45) SEATS

27'-0"27'-0"27'-0"27'-0"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

5
'-
0
"

6'-7"6'-7"6'-7"6'-7"

7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"
7'
-5

"

W
IN

D
O
W

W
IN

D
O
W

W
IN

D
O
W

W
IN

D
O
W

NEW WALL/FURRINGNEW WALL/FURRINGNEW WALL/FURRINGNEW WALL/FURRING

NEW MASONRY VENEERNEW MASONRY VENEERNEW MASONRY VENEERNEW MASONRY VENEER

TYPICAL EXISTING WALLTYPICAL EXISTING WALLTYPICAL EXISTING WALLTYPICAL EXISTING WALL

EXISTING CMU WALLEXISTING CMU WALLEXISTING CMU WALLEXISTING CMU WALL

DEMO WALLSDEMO WALLSDEMO WALLSDEMO WALLS

WALL KEYWALL KEYWALL KEYWALL KEY

NEW CMU WALLNEW CMU WALLNEW CMU WALLNEW CMU WALL

PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:

DATE:DATE:DATE:DATE:

SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 - 

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

A1.0
5/6/155/6/155/6/155/6/15

B. POCHB. POCHB. POCHB. POCH

S. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIG

PASPASPASPAS

----------------------------

----------------------------

P14306P14306P14306P14306

----------------------------

3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

P
L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 P

R
A

IR
IE

,

C
A

R
E

 A
N

IM
A

L
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

 3/16" = 1'-0"

FLOOR PLANFLOOR PLANFLOOR PLANFLOOR PLAN

NORTHNORTHNORTHNORTH

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN



6
'-
3"

6
'-
3"

6
'-
3"

6
'-
3"

2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"
2'
-0

"

ASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLES

GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

BRICKBRICKBRICKBRICK

CUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDING

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

CUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILL

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

PLANTERPLANTERPLANTERPLANTER

STRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATION
(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)

GATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERS

FINISH FLOORFINISH FLOORFINISH FLOORFINISH FLOOR
100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"

BRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOW
112' - 0"112' - 0"112' - 0"112' - 0"

BRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGH
128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"

ASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLES

GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

BRICKBRICKBRICKBRICK

CUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDING

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

CUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILL

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

STRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATIONSTRUCTURAL FOUNDATION
(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)(REINFORCE AS REQUIRED)

GATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERSGATES TO DUMPSTERS

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

HIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNIT

HIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICAL

FINISH FLOORFINISH FLOORFINISH FLOORFINISH FLOOR
100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"100' - 0"

BRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOWBRG HGT. - LOW
112' - 0"112' - 0"112' - 0"112' - 0"

BRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGHBRG. HGT. - HIGH
128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"128' - 1 1/2"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

5
'-
4
"

5
'-
4
"

5
'-
4
"

5
'-
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

3 
1/
4
"

2'
-7
 3

/4
"

2'
-7
 3

/4
"

2'
-7
 3

/4
"

2'
-7
 3

/4
"

26
'-
0
"

26
'-
0
"

26
'-
0
"

26
'-
0
"

6
"

6
"

6
"

6
"

3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
3'
-0

"
6
"

6
"

6
"

6
"

HIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNITHIDDEN MECHANICAL UNIT

HIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALHIDDEN ROOF PIT MECHANICALCRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURE

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

PLANTERPLANTERPLANTERPLANTER

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

CRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURECRICKET IN ROOF STRUCTURE

ASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLESASPHALT SHINGLES

GUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUTGUTTER AND DOWNSPOUT

BRICKBRICKBRICKBRICK

CUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDING

MASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEER

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH 6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH6:12 PITCH

PLANTERPLANTERPLANTERPLANTER

CUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILLCUT STONE SILL

MASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEERMASONRY VENEER

CUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDINGCUT STONE BANDING

PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:

DATE:DATE:DATE:DATE:

SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 - 

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

A2.0
5/6/155/6/155/6/155/6/15

B. POCHB. POCHB. POCHB. POCH

S. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIG

PASPASPASPAS

----------------------------

----------------------------

P14306P14306P14306P14306

----------------------------

3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

P
L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 P

R
A

IR
IE

,

C
A

R
E

 A
N

IM
A

L
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

 1/8" = 1'-0"

EAST ELEVATIONEAST ELEVATIONEAST ELEVATIONEAST ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

NORTH ELEVATIONNORTH ELEVATIONNORTH ELEVATIONNORTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATIONSOUTH ELEVATIONSOUTH ELEVATIONSOUTH ELEVATION

 1/8" = 1'-0"

WEST ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATION

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

 1/8" = 1'-0"

FRONT ENTRANCE ELEVATIONFRONT ENTRANCE ELEVATIONFRONT ENTRANCE ELEVATIONFRONT ENTRANCE ELEVATION



PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:PRELIMINARY NO:

SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:SUPERVISOR:

EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:EXPEDITOR:

DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:DRAWN BY:

DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:DESIGNER:

PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:PROJECT MANAGER:

CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:CONTRACT NO:

DATE:DATE:DATE:DATE:

SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:SHEET:

REVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONSREVISIONS

"COPYRIGHT NOTICE"
This design, drawing and detail is the
copyrighted property of KELLER, INC.
No part hereof shall be copied, duplicated,
distributed, disclosed or made available to
anyone without the expressed written
consent of KELLER, INC.

P
R

E
LI

M
IN

A
R

Y
 - 

N
O

T 
FO

R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N

A2.1
5/6/155/6/155/6/155/6/15

B. POCHB. POCHB. POCHB. POCH

S. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIGS. KLESSIG

PASPASPASPAS

----------------------------

----------------------------

P14306P14306P14306P14306

----------------------------

3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS3  5/6/15  PAS

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

.   ..   ..   ..   .

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

P
L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 P

R
A

IR
IE

,

C
A

R
E

 A
N

IM
A

L
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

W
IS

C
O

N
S

IN

















Consider Ord. #15-21 for several Zoning Text Amendment including amendments to 

Section 420-22 related to zoning permits required, time limits for zoning and sign permits; 

Section 420-24 related to certificate of occupancy; Section 420-64 related to approval or 

denial of a sign permit; Section 420-65 related to issuance of a sign permit and Section 

420-69 related to the duration of a sign permit. 

 

Recommendations:   On June 22, 2015, the Village Board held a public hearing and 

recommended that the Village Board approve the Zoning Text Amendments (Ord #15-

21) as presented in the July 6, 2015 Village staff report.  

 

  



VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JULY 6, 2015 

Consider Ord. #15-21 for several Zoning Text Amendment including amendments to 

Section 420-22 related to zoning permits required, time limits for zoning and sign permits; 

Section 420-24 related to certificate of occupancy; Section 420-64 related to approval or 

denial of a sign permit; Section 420-65 related to issuance of a sign permit and Section 

420-69 related to the duration of a sign permit. 

 

On March 23, 2015 the Village Board adopted Resolution #15-10 to initiate amendments to 

the Village Zoning Ordinance to re-evaluate and amend the Zoning procedures for zoning 

and sign permits related to submittal requirements, time limits and notification of approval 

and denial of both zoning and sign permits. 

The following amendments are proposed: 

1. To amend Section 420-22 A (1) related to requiring a Zoning Permit for a driveway.  

In the past driveway permits were specified in the building code.  This requirement 

has been relocated to the Zoning Ordinance. 

2. To amend Section 420-22 J (2) (b) related to changing the time limits for zoning 

permits to from six (6) months to 12 months to coincide with building permits.   

3. To amend Section 420-22 J (2) (e) related to changing the time limits for sign 

permits from 120 days to 12 months to coincide with the time frame for building 

permits. 

4. To amend Section 420-24 C and D related to modifying Certificate of Compliance.  

This is a clarification since some projects are issued a Certificate of Occupancy and 

some projects are issued a Certificate of Compliance.  This change clarifies that a 

verbal occupancy can also be referred to as a temporary occupancy.  These changes 

will now make the Building Code and the Zoning Code terminology consistent. 

5. To amend Section 420-64 A and B related to the approval or denial of sign permit 

application.  The Amendment will require that the applicant be informed in writing by 

first class mail, email or by fax, only if the permit is denied. 

6. To amend Section 420-65 related to the issuance of a sign permit to indicate that a 

permit shall be issued only upon payment of any sign inspection fees. 

7. To amend Section 420-69 A related to changing the duration of a sign permit.  The 

sign permit will be valid for 12 months to coincide with building permits.   

 

On June 22, 2015, the Village Board held a public hearing and recommended that the 

Village Board approve the Zoning Text Amendments (Ord #15-21) as presented in the 

July 6, 2015 Village staff report.  

 

 



ORD. NO. 15-21 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 420) 

RELATED TO ZONING PROCEDURES FOR ZONING AND SIGN PERMITS RELATED TO 

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS, TIME LIMITS AND NOTIFICATION OF APPROVAL AND 

DENIAL OF BOTH ZONING AND SIGN PERMITS 

IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT THE FOLLOWING 

SECTIONS OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE RELATED TO FEES BE AMENDED 

AS FOLLOWINGS” 

1. To amend Section 420-22 A (1) related to Zoning Permits required to read 

as follows: 

(1) Zoning permit. No person shall construct, place, move, park, enlarge, 

reconstruct, structurally alter or repair, or convert to a new use any building 

or structure, or any part of a building or structure, or a driveway, and no 

person shall commence any new or expanded use, or resume any prior use 

after a hiatus of more than one year, of any land, building, or structure, or 

any part of any building or structure, unless a valid zoning permit has first 

been issued, as required by this chapter, and such permit has neither expired 

nor been suspended or revoked. 

2. To amend Section 420-22 J (2) (b) related to time limits for zoning permits 

to read as follows: 

(b) All zoning permits for residential accessory structures shall expire within six 

12 months of the issuance of said permit. The applicant may request that the 

permit be renewed, prior to the expiration, for an additional six months only 

after paying the required renewal fee. If said permit expires, the applicant 

shall reapply for a building and zoning permit before recommencing work on 

the structure. Any permit issued in conflict with the provisions of this chapter 

shall be null and void. 

3. To amend Section 420-22 J (2) (e) related to time limits for sign permits to 

read as follows: 

(e) All zoning permits for a sign shall automatically expire 120 days 12 months 

after the date of issuance of the permit, or, if a building permit is associated 

with the permit, said permit shall be automatically extended to match the 

expiration date of said building permit. After such right expires, or after the 

permit is revoked or voided, or while it is suspended, no work requiring such 

a permit shall be commenced, continued or resumed until after a new permit 

is issued or until after the original permit has been reinstated. A suspension of 

the permit tolls the remainder of such one-hundred-twenty-day period. 

4. To amend Section 420-24 C and D related to Certificate of Occupancy and 

verbal to occupy to read as follows: 

 C. Certificate of occupancy/Certificate of compliance. 

(1)  Requirement. No person shall use or occupy any newly completed 

building or structure, and no person shall use or occupy any newly 

completed portion of any existing building or structure, unless a valid 



certificate of occupancy or certificate of compliance has first been 

issued for such use or occupancy and such permit has neither expired 

nor been suspended or revoked. No person shall commence any new 

occupancy of any existing building or structure for any use other than 

a permitted residential use in a residential zoning district or a 

permitted agricultural use in any agriculture zoning district unless a 

valid certificate of occupancy has first been issued for such use or 

occupancy and such permit has neither expired nor has been 

suspended or revoked. 

(2)  Preconditions. No certificate of occupancy or certificate of 

compliance shall be issued unless: 

(a)  Valid zoning, building and erosion control permits or other 

required permits were issued for the project; and 

(b)  The project, as built, was completed in accordance with all 

applicable provisions of this chapter and of any orders, 

decisions, permits or other approvals made or issued pursuant 

to Village ordinances. 

D.  Verbal or temporary occupancy.  To facilitate occupancy and prevent 

unnecessary hardship, the Zoning Administrator is authorized to issue a 

verbal or temporary occupancy with respect to any building or structure, or 

any part of a building or structure, for which valid permits have been issued, 

prior to completion of the building or structure, provided that such temporary 

occupancy will not jeopardize the safety, health, or public welfare of the 

occupants or the general public. The Zoning Administrator is authorized to 

impose as conditions upon the issuance of such verbal occupancy whatever 

temporary precautionary measures may be required to safeguard the public. 

No such verbal occupancy shall be construed as vesting in the applicant any 

right to receive a certificate of occupancy for a building or structure, or a part 

of a building or structure, unless it satisfies all requirements of this chapter, 

Chapter 370, Building and Mechanical Code, of the Village Code, or other 

ordinances that would be applicable to such building or structure in the 

absence of the verbal occupancy certificate or any activity conducted 

pursuant thereto. 

5. To amend Section 420-64 A and B related to the approval or denial of sign 

permit application to read as follows: 

(A) As soon as practicable after a sign permit application is complete, the Zoning 

Administrator shall approve or deny it. The Zoning Administrator, or his/her 

designee, shall have authority to impose any conditions reasonably based 

upon the requirements of this article. The Zoning Administrator, or his/her 

designee, shall promptly notify the applicant of the approval and any 

conditions of approval.  If denied, the Zoning Administrator shall 

notify the applicant or denial in writing by first class mail, email or by fax 

and state in such notice the reasons for any denial and any conditions of 

approval. 

(B)  As soon as practicable after a sign special exception application is complete, 

the Zoning Administrator, or his/her designee, shall approve or deny it and 

state in its decision the reasons for any denial, any findings it is required to 

make to approve the application, and any conditions of its approval. The 

Zoning Administrator shall have authority to impose any conditions 



reasonably based upon the requirements of this article and any conditions 

which it reasonably determines are necessary for it to make any required 

findings. The Zoning Administrator, or his/her designee, shall promptly 

notify the applicant of the approval and any conditions of approval.  If 

denied, the Zoning Administrator shall notify the applicant or denial in 

writing by first-class mail, email or by fax and state in such notice the 

reasons for any denial and any conditions of approval.  

6. To amend Section 420-65 related to issuance of a sign permit to read as 

follows: 

With the notice of permit approval pursuant to § 420-64 above, the Village 

Zoning Administrator shall also promptly notify the applicant in writing by first 

class mail or by fax of the procedure for issuance of the permit. A permit shall 

be issued only upon payment of any sign inspection fees provided for in or by 

this chapter. 

7. To amend Section 420-69 A related to the duration of a sign permit to read 

as follows: 

A. The right to install, construct or modify a sign pursuant to a sign permit or a 

sign special exception permit shall automatically expire 120 days 12 months 

after the date of issuance of the permit. After such right expires, or after the 

permit is revoked or voided, or while it is suspended, no work requiring such 

a permit shall be commenced, continued or resumed until after a new permit 

is issued or until after the original permit has been reinstated. A suspension of 

the permit tolls the remainder of such one-hundred-twenty-day period. 

Adopted this 6th day of July, 2015. 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

ATTEST:  

  

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

  

Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted:    

 

21-zoning procedures amend 



 

 

8600 Green Bay Road    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709    Phone 262.925.6765    Fax 262.694.2941    

PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

Office of the Director of Public Works  
John Steinbrink Jr., P.E. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
To: Michael Pollocoff 
From: John Steinbrink, Jr. 
Subject: Cooper Road Sewer Rehabilitation Award of Contract 
Date: July 6, 2015 
 
The Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility is planning the final phase of the multi-year sewer main 
rehabilitation project for the Cooper Road Sewer drainage basin.  The area is generally located 
north of 85th to 76th St along Cooper Road West to 56th Ave.  This year will include relining the 
final section of sanitary sewer main on Cooper Road and one on 82nd St.  Nine manholes will be 
repaired and 200 lateral connections will be grouted from the main upstream for five feet.  In 
West Chateau, 1844 feet of sewer main to the East Frontage Road will be relined with eight 
manhole repairs. This year’s program will also include repair and epoxy coating of two large 
sewer vaults and a sewer manhole.  This epoxy coating will prevent future deterioration from 
hydrogen sulfide gasses.  These gasses are common within sewer structures that accept flow 
from lift stations.  Please see attached maps for project location. 
 
The clay sewer area has been subject to high sewer flows from infiltration of groundwater.  
During rain events the flow will increase ten times higher than in dry conditions.  The suspected 
causes of these high flows are infiltration of groundwater into sewer mains and laterals and 
illegal sump pump connections. 
 
On Wednesday, June 24th, three bids were received for the installation of approximately 3,640 
feet of sewer main lining and rehabilitation for 24 sanitary manholes, grouting of 200 lateral 
connection to the sewer main to grout and three sewer structures to repair and epoxy coat. 
 
Michels Corporation   $  279,535.50 
Visu-Sewer, Inc.   $  352,441.25 
Terra Engineering and Construction $  426,167.00 
 
The approved 2015 Sewer Utility Capital Budget for this rehabilitation project is $242,000.   
 
Due to the increased cost of mobilization, I am recommending to defer the section of work in the 
River Oaks subdivision until 2016.  This work represents a value of $42,410 and will make the 
contract value $238,563.25.  Engineering is expected to cost $4,100. 
 
Pipe relining is a popular rehabilitation method.  A new liner is pulled into the existing sewer 
main or lateral and cured into place.  This is the most cost effective method and is 
recommended for this project.  Michels Corporation is the lowest responsible bidder and is 
experienced in this type of sewer rehabilitation work. 
 
I recommend a contract be awarded to Michels Corporation for sanitary sewer lining services 
and manhole rehabilitation in the Cooper Road Sewer Rehabilitation project, not to exceed 
$238,563.25. 



Bid Date:  06/24/15

No. Item Description Unit

Estimated 

Quantity Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Unit Price Total Price Quantity Unit Price Total Price

1 Mobilization LS 1 $33,190.00 $33,190.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 1 $33,190.00 $33,190.00

2 Sewer Lining with CIPP, 8" LF 1480 $22.00 $32,560.00 $23.00 $34,040.00 $28.50 $42,180.00 377 $22.00 $8,294.00

3 Sewer Lining with CIPP, 10" LF 320 $26.00 $8,320.00 $25.50 $8,160.00 $39.00 $12,480.00 320 $26.00 $8,320.00

4 Sewer Lining with CIPP, 12" LF 1844 $32.00 $59,008.00 $33.00 $60,852.00 $45.00 $82,980.00 1844 $32.00 $59,008.00

5 Open Service Connection in CIPP EA 21 $120.00 $2,520.00 $150.00 $3,150.00 $200.00 $4,200.00 16 $120.00 $1,920.00

6 Sewer Cleaning and Root Removal LF 3640 $3.25 $11,830.00 $5.00 $18,200.00 $4.00 $14,560.00 2537 $3.25 $8,245.25

7 Post Construction CCTV Inspection LF 3640 $0.50 $1,820.00 $2.00 $7,280.00 $1.00 $3,640.00 2537 $0.50 $1,268.50

8 Manhole Rehabilitation (assume 24 manholes at 9 ft. deep) VF 216 $190.00 $41,040.00 $135.00 $29,160.00 $137.50 $29,700.00 153 $190.00 $29,070.00

9 Service Lateral Grouting (5ft) EA 200 $375.00 $75,000.00 $985.00 $197,000.00 $495.00 $99,000.00 200 $375.00 $75,000.00

10 Structure Rehabilitation Hwy 165 (Vault) SF 330 $13.75 $4,537.50 $31.00 $10,230.00 $31.35 $10,345.50 330 $13.75 $4,537.50

11 Structure Rehabilitation Hwy H (Drop Manhole) SF 220 $15.50 $3,410.00 $31.00 $6,820.00 $31.35 $6,897.00 220 $15.50 $3,410.00

12 Structure Rehabilitation 7th Avenue (Vault) SF 525 $12.00 $6,300.00 $31.00 $16,275.00 $31.35 $16,458.75 525 $12.00 $6,300.00

Total Base Bid $352,441.25 $238,563.25$279,535.50 $426,167.00

RECOMMENDATIONMichels Corporation Terra Engineering Visu-Sewer

Village of Pleasant Prairie

2015 Sewer Lining

BID TABULATION



&&

SH2071 SH2070 SH2069 SH2068

SH2067

SH2066SH2063

SH2042

SH2030

CO
OP

ER
 R

D

85TH ST

80TH ST

57TH AVE

54
TH

 AV
E

80TH ST

82ND ST

48TH AVE

81ST ST

84TH ST

47TH CT

83RD PL

83RD ST

79TH ST

55TH AVE

49
TH

 AV
E

47TH AVE

56
TH

 AV
E

50
TH

 AV
E

56
TH

 AV
E

84TH ST 84TH ST

83RD PL

83RD ST

48TH AVE

83RD ST

49TH AVE

Village of Pleasant Prairie
Department of Public Works

Text

Legend
Manholes needing to be Lined
Service Connections
10" Mains to Line
8" Main to Line

O
Sheet No.

Drawn By:

Checked by:

Date:

Cooper Lining Project

01
Justin Bain

5/9/2014

Totals:
9 Manholes to Line
12 Services to Open
200 5ft Lateral Grouting
320 ft of 10" Sewer Lining
377 ft of  8" Sewer Lining

82ND

COOPER

SH2068

SH2043

SH2042

SH2041

28 ft x 10" Main

291 ft x 10" Main

Mains to be LIned



WILMOT RD

82ND ST

79TH ST

108TH AVE

113TH AVE

84TH ST

88TH ST
110TH AVE

10
7T

H 
AV

E

80TH ST

115TH AVE

118TH AVE

111TH AVE

109TH AVE

83RD ST

83RD PL

86
TH

 ST

79TH PL

87TH ST

84
TH

 PL

11
2T

H A
VE

120TH AVE

86T
H PL

84TH PL

111TH AVE

84TH ST

109TH AVE

11
3T

H A
VE

Village of Pleasant Prairie
Department of Public Works

Legend
Service Connections
Manholes to Line
8" Mains to Line
12" Mains to Line
Sanitary Main

O
Sheet No.

Drawn By:

Checked by:

Date:

Zirbel Lining Project

01
Justin Bain

4/24/2015

Totals:
15 Manholes to Line
9 Service Connections to Open
1,844 ft of 12" Sewer Lining
1,103 ft of  8" Sewer Lining

0 310 620 930 1,240155
Feet



WILMOT RD

82ND ST

79TH ST

108TH AVE

113TH AVE

84TH ST

88TH ST
110TH AVE

10
7T

H 
AV

E

80TH ST

115TH AVE

118TH AVE

111TH AVE

109TH AVE

83RD ST

83RD PL

86
TH

 ST

79TH PL

87TH ST

84
TH

 PL

11
2T

H A
VE

120TH AVE

86T
H PL

84TH PL

111TH AVE

84TH ST

109TH AVE

11
3T

H A
VE

Village of Pleasant Prairie
Department of Public Works

Legend
Service Connections
Manholes to Line
8" Mains to Line
12" Mains to Line
Sanitary Main

O
Sheet No.

Drawn By:

Checked by:

Date:

Zirbel Lining Project

01
Justin Bain

6/30/2015

Totals removed from program:
7 Manholes to Line
4 Service Connections to Open
1,103 ft of  8" Sewer Lining

0 310 620 930 1,240155
Feet

Totals Remaining in program:
8 Manholes to Line
5 Service Connections to Open
1,844 ft of 12" Sewer Lining



 

 

8600 Green Bay Road    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709    Phone 262.925.6765    Fax 262.694.2941    

PleasantPrairieOnline.com 

Office of the Director of Public Works  
John Steinbrink Jr., P.E. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To: Michael Pollocoff 

From: John Steinbrink Jr. 

Subject: Vehicle Disposal Approval 

Date: July 6, 2015 

I am requesting approval for the disposal of the following Village equipment which have 
reached the end of their useful life: 

 Vehicle 7022 -  2002 Ford Winstar Van; 114,621 miles 

 Equipment # A042 – 1987 Econoline Tandem Trailer 

 
Cost savings would be realized in the elimination of insurance, repair and/or storage 
costs. 
 
The aforementioned vehicles will be sent to auction. 
 
I recommend that the above equipment be disposed of. 

 



  

RESOLUTION #15-22 

 

 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE  

 VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 TO DISPOSE OF SURPLUS VEHICLES 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie currently owns a 2002 Ford Winstar Van 

(114,621 miles) and a 1987 Econoline Tandem Trailer; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 2002 Ford Winstar Van and the 1987 Econoline Tandem Trailer are no 

longer capable of performing the work required by the Village because of their age, hours of 

operation and condition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the two pieces of equipment are no longer needed to meet the needs of the 

Village. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Village Administrator be 

authorized to sell the 2002 Ford Winstar Van and the 1987 Econoline Tandem Trailer to an 

authorized automobile auction company.  

 

Passed and adopted this 6
th

 day of July, 2015. 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

John P. Steinbrink, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Jane M. Romanowski, Clerk 

 

Posted:_________ 



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT ACCOMPANYING DRAFT UNDER  

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 1628 

DATED FEBRUARY 6, 2015 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 

    ) SS: 

COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 

 

Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 

 

1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 

 

2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 6th day of July, 2015, duly 

approved a draft upon Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 1628 dated February 6, 2015 in the 

amount of US $187,517.63 (One Hundred Eighty-seven Thousand Five Hundred Seventeen  

63/100 U.S. Dollars). 

 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Michael R. Pollocoff 

        Village Administrator 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 6th day of July, 2015. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 

My commission expires __________ 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Jane M. Romanowski 

        Village Clerk 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT FOR DRAWING UNDER 

STANDBY LETTER OF CREDIT NO. HACH373054OS 

 

DATE:  July 6, 2015 

 

TO:  BMO Harris Bank N.A. 

  c/o Bank of Montreal 

  234 Simcoe Street, 3
rd

 Floor 

  Toronto, Ontario M5T 1T4 

 

Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 

 

1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin. 

 

2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 6th day of July, 2015, duly 

approved a draw upon BMO Harris Bank N.A. Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 

HACH373054OS, dated July 18, 2007.  We are drawing for USD $551,191.85. 

  

 

Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

 

________________________________ 

Michael R. Pollocoff 

Village Administrator 

 

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 6th day of July, 2015. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 

My commission expires __________ 

 

cc: The settlement at Bain Station LLC and the Landing at Bain Station LLC 


	July 6 2015 agenda
	Minutes - June 1 2015
	Minutes - June 10 2015 Working Session
	Minutes - June 15 2015
	5A. Kwik Trip Class A License
	Kwik Trip Wisc. Stores
	Kwik Trip Sales Policy

	8A. Claim for refund - Sanmina Corp
	Claim for refund - Sanmina 92-122-213-0105
	Sanmina v DOR 10-M-055

	8B. & C. Care Animal Concept Plan and CSM
	san and water
	storm
	Fire Comments 6-12-15
	CSM Changes
	2013 Concept Plan
	Concept Plan Application
	Conceptual Plans
	CSM Application
	CSM

	8D. Ord #15-21 Amend Chapter 420
	Ord #15-21-Zoning Procedures amend

	8E. Award of Contract 2015 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Memo
	8F. Res 15-22 Dispose of surplus vehicles
	Resolution 15-22 Dispose of Equipment 7002 A042

	8G. Vintage Parc Draw on LOC 1628
	8H. Bain Station Crossing Draw on LOC

